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I HIGHLIGHTS OF THE YEAR

REVENUE UP 15 9% TO £748 3 MILLION

OPERATING PROFIT UP 14 2%' TQ £200.0 MILLION
PROFIT BEFORE TAX UP 18 2% TO £131 1 MILLION

EARNINGS PER SHARE®™ UP 20 2% T0 30 3p®“
DIVIDEND PER SHARE UP 7 8% TO 18 55p
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Basic earnings per share are 26 5p {2005/06 % 9p)
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DIRECTORS REPORT e BUSINESS REVIEW

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

| AM ONCE AGAIN PLEASED TO REPORT EXCELLENT PROGRESS BY THE GROUP

DURING THE YEAR, RE-AFFIRMING THE SUCCESS OF OUR STRATEGY TO FOCUS ON
OUR TWO KEY BUSINESSES OF SOUTH WEST WATER AND VIRIDOR

Il FINANCIAL OVERVIEW

Group revenue increased by 15 9% to £748 3 milbon Operating profit
ncreased by 14 2% to £200 0 mithon, profit before tax increased by
18 2%t0 £131 1 mllion and earmings per share (before deferred tax)
for the year were 30 3p, an increase of 20 2% (all before excephonal
tems n 2005/06)

The Board 1s recommending a final dwidend of 12 7p, an 8 5% increase
whnch, together with the intenm dmdend of 5 85p, wall result n a total
dnadend for the year of 18 55p, an increase of 7 8% on the total dradend
for the previous year Thisis1n accordance with the Board's stated pohcy
of growing the Group dividend by 3% above inflabon per annum up to
2009/10 Once again, shareholders will also be gven the opportumity to
parbapate in the Company’s Dvidend Re-investment Plan

In Apnl 2006 the Company completed the redemphion of the outstanding
B Shares as part of the approved return of cash to shareholders
Circa £145 milbon has now been retumed through the B Sharessue

B SOUTH WEST WATER

South West Water's revenue increased by £33 0 milbon to £381 5 milbon
and operating profit increased 10 8% (before exceptional costs n
2005/06) to £156 8 mlhon Operating costs, excluding depreaabon,
creased by £11 9 milhon to £147 0 milhon after £3 0 mithon of
effiaency savings

The company is implementing detailed plans to ensuret1s well on track
to acineve the operating cost effinency target set by the Director General
of Water Sennices for the K4 penod up to 2010

The company has putin place a comprehenswe strateqy to help ensure a
conbinued secure supply of water for the reqion Three of the company's
key reservorrs were again replemshed dunng the winter by pumping
water from downstream nver flows to supplement the natural rainwater
inflow The pump infrastructure was installed several years ago to
provide enhanced drought protection

Once again, dnnking water quality and nver water quality have been
sustained at an all ime igh and the reqion features the nghest
proparhon of igh quabity nvers in England

In 2006, for the first me, 100% of the designated bathing waters in
the South West Water reqion achteved the EU mandatory standard and
92% achieved the even more stringent guideline standard Alt major
projects in the company’s 15 year onginal ‘Clean Sweep’ coastal sewage
treatment programme have now been completed Thmss a sigmficant
contnbutor to the the record bathing water quality comphance

The company continues to deliver improvang levels of product and
customer senace and has embarked upon a number of imbatives to
enhance service and effinency further These include the company’s new
‘Service+’ centre, wihnch utilises the latest mobile computing technology,
and “‘WaterCare’, a ground-brealang new customer care programme
targeted at helping those mostn need to pay their water ills

Regulatory capital value (RCV)1s expected to grow by 34% to £2 6 tilbon
over the current regulatory period to March 2010 Thisis the mghest
forecast percentage increase of any quoted UK water company

In prepanng for the forthcerming Penodic Review of pnces in 2009
{PR09), a number of projects are under way to ensure that South West
Water1s prepared for the new challenges that e ahead Further detanls
of these are provided 1 Chns Loughbn’s Overview of the company's
performance and actvties

Bl VIRIDOR

Bunlchng further on the growth achieved over the past six years, Vindor
traded particularly strongly n 2006/07 Revenue was up £68 8 milhon
(23 0%) to £367.7 million Operating profit before Intangqibles
amcrtisation (PBITA) for the year increased by 30 4% to £46 8 mllion
This increase included a full year's contnbution from last year’s Brett
Waste Management acquisibion, the positive effect of Wyvern Waste and
Skipaway, which were acquired dunng the year and 12 6% growth in the
underlying business




Total landfill disposal velurmes increased by 9% to 4 7 million tonnes due to acquisitions Average gate
fees rase by 7% to £19 per tonne with margins increasing by 50p to over £6 per tonne In addrhion, power
generation output increased by a further 15% 1n the year to 423 GWh with average pnces increasing 4 3%
to £62 per MWh reflecting strong brown energy prices

A sigmficant part of Vindor's strategy 1s explonng private finance imtiative and publbic/private partnerstup
opportunthes In January 2007 Greater Manchester Waste Disposal Authonty announced that the Vindor
Waste Management Limited/John Laing Infrastructure Linited consorbium had been setected as preferred
ndder for1ts waste management senices contract, With an nvestment value of around £300 million, this wall
be the largest such scheme 1n the UK and willinvolve the handbing of around 1 4 milion tonnes of waste per
annum Final negobahons are under way and the contract 1s due to commence in the current financal year

There were other sigmficant developments in the year These indluded new and extended regycing contracts,
acheving preferred bidder status for medum-term counal waste disposal contracts, the submission of a
planmng application for a 60,000 tonne energy from waste facility in Exeter, and progress as planned with
the Lakeside energy from waste plant at Colnbrook, near Heathrow, as part of the 50 50 joint venture with
Grundon Waste Management Linited

Cobin Drummond’s Qveniew of performance and achvities contains more detail on the achnevements of the
company dunng the year

Il STRATEGY & PROSPECTS

The Board’s pnonty continues to be the creation of shareholder value through 1ts strategic focus on water,
sewerage and waste management The excellent performance mghhighted above 1s testament to the Board’s
strategy of focusing on these key business areas

The Board remains confident that South West Water will successfully debiver the K4 requlatory contract and
sigmficantly grow 1ts requlatory capital value up to 2010 Furthermore, Vindor’s successful strategy of
creating long-term sustanable profit growth is expected to continue through capitalising oniits landfill asset
basa, explorting its landfill gas power generation potential and pursuing profitable opportunities n line with
the Government’s develoming waste strategy In addition, the Group has putn place a long-term funding
structure to enable it to continue to finance 1ts achwibies efficently

Il BOARD MATTERS

Chns Loughlin joned the Board as an Executive Director and became Chief Executive of South West Water on

1 August 2006 following Bob Baty's retirement from that role on 31 July The Board expresses 1ts grattude to
Bob for ms sigmficant contnbubion to South West Water since pnvatisahon 1n 1989 and wishes mm a long and
emjoyable retirement,

To recogmse the growing importance of sustainability and the need for the continuing development of the
Group's environmental, socal and governance pohaes, the Board established the Corporate Responsibility
Commttee 1n November 2006 under the chairmanship of Dinah Michots This Committee supersedes the
Environment Committee and further details are set out 1n the Corporate Governance and Internal Control
Reporton page 41

B EMPLOYEES

Dunng the bme I have been Chawman of the Group many structural and orgamsational changes have
taken place, throughout which employees have continued to demonstrate a high level of loyalty,
commitment and professionalism Ithank them most sincerely for their continuang support.

My personal thanks also go to the Non-executive Directors and Executive
Drrectors for their sigmificant contnbutions dunng what has been another
busy and demanding year

Ken Harvey, Chairman
Pennon Group Ple
22 June 2007
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SOUTH WEST WATER

SOUTH WEST WATER CONTINUED TO MAKE EXCELLENT PROGRESS IN DELIVERING

IMPROVEMENTS TO CUSTOMER SERVICE AND ACHIEVING REGULATORY

PERFORMANCE TARGETS

Il OVERVIEW

The company’s revenue increased by £33 0 million to £381 5 million
Ofwat approved tanffincreases and 7,100 new customer connechons,
offset by customers switching to metered tanffs and a 2 9% decreasen
measured demand, were the main dnvers of tms change (Over 57% of
our domestic customers now receve a metered supply

South West Water's operating profit rose by 10 8% (before exceptional
costs 1n 2005/06) to £156 8 mlhon Operabing costs, excluding
deprecation, increased by £11 9 mlhion to £147 0 rmlbon The increase
was dnven by addbonal costs from new capital schemes of £2 7 million,
nflabion of £10 2 mlbon (including addmional power costs of

£5 5 milbon) and other costincreases of £2 ¢ million (including
nfrastructure expenditure charged to operating costs) The cost of bad
debts (part of which 1s charged aganst revenue} 1s nsing more stowly
than the tanff increase These inflabonary pressures were parbally
offset by continued good progress on operational efficencies with
some £3 0 mlhon acheved 1n the year and £7 0 mlhon so farin K4

The company remains on track to delver the demanding efficency
targets, set by Ofwat at the last pnce Determination, over the
2005-2010 penod Capital expenditure was £184 0 milhon with

over £70 0 mithon being spent on quabity schemes, prinapally

water mains rehabiitation

This 1s my first contnbution to the Pennon Group Annual Report since
succeeding Bob Baty as Chnef Executive last August The achievements
delvered during my predecessor’s time have been outstanding

In particular, the hugely successful ‘Clean Sweep’ waste water
programme has transformed the quality of the very specal coastal
and estuanal environment of the South West.

‘Clean Sweep’ was a massive capital investment programme which
dominated the company’s actvihes for the best part of two decades

As this nears completion, 1t1s appropnate to look towards the future
direchon of the company and the many challenges 1t faces Thisis
particularly important as we begin planmng for the next Penodhic Review
for the penod 2010-15 We want to stnke the nght balance for the
future between investment to improve our services, financeability and,
wmportantly, customer affordability This 1s a parbcular chaltenge we are
determined to meet We must also meet the ongoing governmental and
regulatory requirements whilst prepaning for potential chmate change
mmpacts The comrng years should nevertheless see a shift away from
capital debvery to achmeve new standards dnven by legislation, towards
a more customer-focused agenda

As we embark on new challenges, we must build on what has beenan
outstanding year across the company

This has been our tenth consecutive year without water restnctions
The company has putn place a comprehensive strategy to help ensure
a continued secure supply of water for the region Three of the
company’s key reservoirs were again replemshed dunng the winter
by pumping water from downstream river flows to supptement the
natural rainwater inflow The pump infrastructure was installed
severalyears ago to provide enhanced drought protection

To improve water resource flexinlity, sigmficant addibional

water resources 1n Cornwall were secured through the purchase

of a former china clay mit to be named Park Lake Itwill become
the reqon’s fourth-largest reservoir

We achieved our best ever leakage performance We have achieved or
beaten our leakage target in every year since targets were introduced
by Ofwat 1n 1999,/2000




A further 638km of water mans were replaced or relined dunng the year as part of the company’s ‘Putting
the Sparkle Back into Your Water programme, agreed with the Dnnking Water Inspectorate (DWI) for
completion by 2010 Dnnking water quality comphance for calendar year 2006, as momtored by the DWI,
equalled the highest ever 99 96% level achieved 1n 2005

The success cof ‘Clean Sweep’1s evident from our achewving 100% comphance with mandatory bathing water
standards for the first ime (99%1n 2005) at the 144 bathng waters in our area Comphance with the even
hgher gundeline standards has also improved to 92% from 89% the year before The extent of this
achmevement can be measured against only 51% compliance with the guideline standard ten years ago

The ‘percentage populabon equivalent’ (see Glossary, page 29, for descnption) connected to samtary
compliant waste water treatment works was the mghest ever at 99 6%

‘Semice+’, a major project to improve the service to customers 1n relation to the company’s day to day
operational actwities and to reduce costs, was launched in October 2006 The new Service Centre 1n Exeter
utihises the latest mobile computing technology to give quicker, more accurate informabon to customers on
senvice 1ssues as well as better pnontising the work of field operations staff The benefits of the new system
are already being seen, with a sigmficant reduchon in the number of repeat contacts from customers

‘Watercare’, a ground-breaking new customer care programme, was launched early in 2007 targeted at
helping these most in need to pay their bills by advising them on how to manage better both their water use
and household budget. Trained adwisors are meeting with around 2,500 qualifyang customers a yearn their
hames and offenng a range of free services 1ncluding home water audits, advice on potential savings from
fitting a meter and advice on recewving finanoal benefits to which they are entitted Thedentification of
customers who would benefit from moving on to special payment plan enables them to make regular
affordable payments, thereby reduang the company’s cutstanding debt

Ofwat’s 2005/06 'Levels of Senace Report’ confirms that South West Water has maintained last
year's step change improvement in its Overall Performance Assessment (OPA) ranking,
mantaining its 6th posibon out of the 10 water and sewerage compamtes We expect this
position to be consolidated when 2006/07 scores are published later this year

In prepanng for the forthcormng penodic review of pnces 1n 2009, a number of imbatives
are under way to ensure that South West Water1s prepared for the new challenges that e
ahead. The customer contact/billing contract will be re-tendered dunng 2007 and the
company will build on the success of “Service+” The role of tanff structures 1n addressing
the agenda of affordanhty and sustainabibity 1s also being reviewed

To meet the twin olpectives of sennce excellence and operational effioency, South West
Water has launched a long-term project, "Puros’, to move the orgamsation towards a
more centralised operational structure employing increased levels of automation and
remote working In the shorter term, a new ‘nghtsouraing’ review 1s under way to
determine the optimal combination of internal and external resource provision

Iths expected that the cost of £3 milhon to £4 milhion of ongoing orgarmsational
restructunng will be provided forin 2007/08

Looking forward, we are deterrmined to improve further our customer service and
delver new operational effinences Iam confident that wath the quabty and
commitment of the people we have in place and the improvement programmes
that they are focused on, we will buld on our achievements to date
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B BUSINESS AND STRATEGY

South West Water1s the licensed water and sewerage senice

provider for Devon, Cornwall and parts of Dorset and Somerset.

It serves a region of nearly 10,300 square klometres with 1 65 mllion
residents and around eight mlbon annualvisitors It distnbutes

aver 440 mllion litres of treated water per day and disposes of
around 250 million litres of waste water each day through an asset
base compnsing

- 15,000 kms - Distnbution mains

- 9,100 kms — Sewers

= 16 - Impounding reservoirs

- 39 -Water treatment works

- 623 - Waste water treatment works

- wcluding 52 works with ultra violet treatment and two with
membrane filtrabion
- 1,030 - Combwned sewer averflows

Since prvatisation, the company has successfully detivered the
largest capital programme per capita of any of the pnvatised water
and sewerage compames with a particular focus on improving
coastal waste water treatment and disposal The region currently has
144 EUJ designated batmng waters, almost one third of the totaln
England and Wales.

South West Water expects to create value through delivenng the
regulatory contract agreed with Ofwat (now the Water Senices
Regulatory Authonty) The contract scope s reviewed at five-yearly
ntervals As well as determing outputs, Ofwat sets pnces, inter aha,
to enable efficient compames to eam a reasonable rate of return on
thewr assets In the K4 Deterrnation (Apni 2005 to March 2010),
Ofwat assumed that the equity cost of capital for all compames would
be 7 7% real after tax wath an overall weighted average cost of capital
of 5 1% real after tax Ofwat’s Determination allows for further
nvestment by South West Water to improve the quabty of water and
sewerage services As a result, the company's Regulatory Capital Value
15 expected to ncrease from around £1 95 ilbion i March 2005 to

arca £2 6 bilhon 1in March 2010 This will enlarge the base on which the

retum to shareholderss calculated

Additvonal value may be created where South West Water
outperforms Ofwat’s assumptions by, for example, delivenng
services at lower operating and/or capital costs and/or finanang
the investment programme and operation at lower cost

B REGULATORY & COMPETITIVE ENVIRONMENT

M APPOINTMENTS

In 1989, the UK Government appointed compames (appointees)
to provide water and waste water sernices {the Appointments)
Economic regulation pursuant to the Appointments 1s the
responsimbity of Ofwat

The Appomntments 1mpose conditions which Ofwat enforces, along
with the appointees’ pnnapal duties under the Water Industry Act.
An Appowntment may be terninated on 25 years’ notice by the
Secretary of State, with more immechate revocation in certain
speafied arcumstances (including, for example, failure to comply
with an enforcement order made by Ofwat)

The water industry 15 also subject to Government direction and
legislation 1n relation to 1nvestment requirements and soaal
pohcy {for example the protechon of vulnerable customers)
From a customer witerest perspective, water ndustry activinies
are also reviewed by the Consumer Counal for Water, a separate
statutory body

Il PRICE CAP REGULATION

Ofwat regulates water and waste water charges by determining

the maxamum ncrease in charges which a company can impoese 1
any year The water regulator conducts a Penodic Review and sets
pnce limts every five years Pnces are set by reference toinflation as
measured by the Retail Pnce Index {(RPI) plus an adjustment factor
known as K’ whach 1s speaific for each company and which can vary
for each year of the Review penod The size of a company's ‘K’ factor
{which can be positive, negative or zero) reflects the scale ofits
capitalmvestment programme, the cost of capital determined by the
water regulator and its operational and environmental obhigations
offset by assumed efficency improvements required of the company
Ofwat instituted a system of ‘comparative competition’ which compares
South West Water's performance on a wide range of parameters,
ncluding efficency, customer service, and environmental
performance Operating and capital cost compansons are used by
Ofwat to deterrmne the level of efficiency improvement winch night
be achieved at each Penodic Review

Compames are incentivised to be efficient both in terms of their
operating costs and in the implementation of their capital
expenchture programmes The benefit of any effiaency savings
achieved through effective management 1n excess of those assumed
by the water regulator 1s retained by the compames for a penod
generally of five years Afterthat bme the benefit1s passed to
customers The cost of any underperformance due to poor
management 1s borne by the compames Compames are also
ncentivised to provide a tugh quabity serice and penalised if they
prowvide a poor quality senvice by means of an adjustment to the 'K’
factor at the subsequent Penodic Review
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Unexpected costs or savings ansing from changes in certain
regulatery assumptions or legal requirements, dunng a Penodic
Review penod, are recorded by South West Water These may, in
certain arcumstances agreed by Ofwat, be logged up or down, with
prices adjusted at the next Penodic Review to compensate for the
unexpected change In certain arcumstances, where the change 1s
matenal, the company can request, and Ofwat can inshgate, a
re-setting of 1ty pnce imats ('K’ factors) dunng the five-year pencd
This 1s known as an ‘Interim Determnation of ‘K" {IDoK}

The ‘K’ factors for the penod 2005 - 2010 for South West Water were
deterrmned by Ofwat inits Final K4 Determination in December 2004
and are shown below

Ofwat Final

Determination

Year ‘K’ factor %
2005/06 . - e e - . 125
2006/07 - . - 98
2007/08 .- 98
2008/09 17
2009/10 14
Average 69

The K4 Determination prowides for total capital expenditure of
£762 mlhon {2002/03 pnces) over the five year penod The prce
bmits are intended to enable South West Water to

- continue to mawntain a safe, rebable water supply to customers
and effective treatment and disposal of sewage, 1ncluding
increasing achvity to maintan 1ts pipes, sewers and sewage
treatment works

- mplement new odour control measures at pnonty sites

- meet the demands of new and existing customers for rebable
water supply and sewerage services

- nstall 113,000 ophonal domestic customer water meters

= deliver required dnnking water and environmental quality
mprovements including

« renovation of more than 3,200kms of water distnbution
mains

o 1mprovements at 14 water treatment works to improve
dnnking water

« phosphorous removat at mne sewage treatment works

» work to address 49 unsatisfactory intermttent discharges

- resolve or mbgate problems identified in the company’s plan
where overloaded sewers cause internal flooding

-~ mamntain access to capital markets to finance delivery of these
outputs at a reasonable cost.

In setting pnce hmts for South West Water, Ofwat assumed the
following effioency improvements

- average annual operating efficency improvements of
2 5% (water} and 2 0% (sewerage)

- capital maintenance efficiency improvements of 5 0% (water)
and 8 7% (sewerage}

- capital enhancement efficiency improvements of 5 0% (water)
and 16 4% (sewerage).

Il ENVIRONMENT/QUALITY REGULATION

The water industry 1n the UK 1s subject to substantial domestic and
EU requlation This places sigmificant statutory obligabons on South
West Water with regard to, amongst other things, the quabty of
treated water Examples of relevant EU directives include the
Dnnking Water Directive, the Bathing Water Directive and the Urban
Waste Water Treatment Directive The Water Framework Directive was
incorporated into UK law in 2003 and rationabses EU water
tegislabion Ttis provides a framework for the protection of and
wmprovement 1 the qualbity of water resources, together with

the promotion of sustainable water consumption To comply

with the Water Framework Directive, member states will

have to actneve the challenging target of ‘good’ status

for ground water, nver water, as well as estuanne and

coastal water, by the

end of 2015

Emironmental regulation for water and waste
water 1n England 1s pnmanly the responsibility
of the Secretary of State for Environment,
Food and Rural Affairs, together with,
amongst others

- the Environment Agency (EA)
which s responsible for the
beensing of water abstrachon
and the regulation of
discharges to controlled
waters, including discharges
from waste water treatment
works

- the DWIwhich sets and
enforces dnnlking water
quabty standards
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B COMPETITION

As the hcensed undertaker 1n Devon, Cormwall and small parts of
Dorset and Somerset, South West Water has no direct compebtion
for the provision of water and sewerage services to the vast majonty
of its customers The Government has introduced a new reqime
whereby customers using more than 50ML per year can contract with
alternatwe supphers for water supply South West Water has only 37
customers 1n this category, whose aggregate water charges account
for less than 2% of 1ts total revenue No single customer accounts for
more than 1 0% of revenue

B KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) used by the Directors to assess
performance against ther stated objechves are as follows

Il GROWTH IN REGULATORY CAPITAL VALUE

Regqulatory Capital Value {RCV)1s the finanoal base upon which
Ofwat allows a rate of return and sets pnces at the Penodic Review
The opeming RCV 15 adjusted for projected capital and infrastructure
renewals expenditure, grants and contnbubons, infrastructure
renewals charge and current cost depreaation, together with the
effinency outperformance from the previcus regulatory penod

Ofwat then projects each component for every year of the

Rewview penod The RCV1s adjusted annually for Retail Pnice Index
movements Atthe following pnce review, the RCV1s restated for
outputs under-dehivered, the logging-up of new cbhgations and

the effect of construction pnce inflation on capital and wnfrastructure
expenditure A full explanation 1s given n the Ofwat letter to
Regulatory Directors, RD07/05, which 1s available on the Ofwat
website - www ofwat.gov uk

The RCV at 31 March 2007 amounted to £2 265 illion

Graph here

Projected RCVs up to 2009,/10 are based upon Ofwat's projechons
These were set out 1n ‘Future Water and Sewerage Charges 2005-10"
pubhshed 1 December 2004 and have been adjusted by South West
Water's estmates of RPI indexation

The growth 1n RCV adds directly to shareholder value as the allowed
return 1s attnbuted te South West Water’s asset base by the
water regulator

Bl OPERATING PROFIT

South West Water achieved an operabing profit of £156 8 milionn
2006/07, up £15 3 milhon on 2005/06 (before excephonal costs
n 2005/06)

For the five year pened 2003 to 2007, operating profit (before
exceptronal items) was

Year ended 31 March

2003* 2004 2005 2006 2007
m £m £m im £m
1115 1189 1222 1415 156 8
*UK GAAP

B OVERALL PERFORMANCE ASSESSMENT

The Overall Performance Assessment (OPA} index was devised by
Ofwat as a comparatve tool to measure compames’ performance
The OPA1s based on performance n areas such as customer service
and complaint handling, billing, debt collechon, asset
serviceabnlity, environmental comphance and quabty of dnnking
water delivered

Data s collated for 12 month penods, part calendar year and part
financial year The final OPA assessment s published as part of
Ofwat’s Annual Report on “Levels of Semce for the Water Industryin
England and Wales’, usualty in the autumn

In 2005/06, South West Water maintained ts 6th posibon out of the
10 water and sewerage compames in Ofwat’s OPA 1ndex.

Graph here
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M DRINKING WATER COMPLIANCE

Dunng 2006, South West Water maintained 1ts overall high level
of compliance with the dnnking water quality regulations with 99 96%
of its regulatory tests meeting the required standards

Graph here

Bl CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY/RELATIONSHIPS

Bl RELATIONSHIPS WITH REGULATORS AND CUSTOMERS

South West Water views relationships with regulators, Government
bodies, customer representative orgamsations and 1ts customers as
central to 1ts operations

The company maintains a continuing dhalogue with Ofwat, the EA
and DWI and contnbutes to national dialogue on developing 1ssues
through 1ts membership of Water UK, the industry trade body

It works with the Consumer Counal for Water to ensure
that customer 1ssues and concerns are addressed and a full
understanding of the company’s achivities 1s maintained

Customers are informed through a customer newspaper entitied
‘Waterlevel’ and by regular press releases and media bnefings

Customer service improvement 1s a key focus for the company, as
evidenced by the “Serace+ project and the recent introduction of a
new contact centre platform

The company 1s also investing 1n a new debt recovery system to
provide improved management and structure of payment
arrangements for customers who, for whatever reascn, do not
or are unable to pay their bills

B CUSTOMER/SUPPLIER RELATIONSHIPS

No single customer accounts for more than 1 0% of revenue
No supplier (revenue) accounts for more than 2 8% of
tumaover and South West Water sources all its purchases from
competibive markets

South West Water’s procurement strategys focused on the
management of around 50 key and strateqic suppliers who account
for the large majonty of expenditure Regular meetings are held to

manage performance and to1dentify and deliver ‘continuous
wnprovement” opportumties for further reduang cost whle improving
performance and senvice levels

B EMPLOYEES

South West Water continues to take advantage of the introduction of
new technology, such as mobile computing to improve the efficent
operation of the workforce 1n the field In addibon the company has
been pressing ahead with upskilling programmes for its operational
employees and, following a senes of meetings with employee
representates, new working arrangements have been introduced to a
number of areas of the business Dunng 2006 the new Senice Centre
was opened at the company's headquarters 1n Exeter, designed to
mmprove the planmng of field staff actvity as well as prownde a much
more effechive interface with customers

All these measures will help to enhance the service to customers and
contnbute to meeting the company’s demanding efficency targets for
the K4 penod It1s anticipated that as a result of these and other
effiency improvements, a number of employees will be released on
early retirement or voluntary severance terms and ths will enable the
company to meetits target of a directly employed workforce of below
1300 by 2010

South West Water has a mghly skilled management team focused on
financial and operational targets It has invested sigmificant sums to
ensure thatits staff have the expenence and competencies to
undertake their roles. For example, NVQ traimng1s provided to
operators and craftsmen to ensure that basic skalls are n place and
health and safety requirements met. A range of traimng opportumbies
ncluding assistance to obtain prefessional quabficabens s offered to
office-based staff, and managers are encouraged to widen their
knowledge and skills through parbopation in company-wide
programmes as well as bespoke external courses All traiming actmity 1s
undertaken under the Investor in People’ (IIP) standard and1s closely
abgned with business requirements




DIRECTORS REPORT e BUSINESS REVIEW & SOUTH WEST WATER

Staff tumover s below the national average Job satisfachon s
supported by encouraqing role changes wherever possible around
the company to help employees gain a broad expenence of business
achwvities The company has introduced a number of ‘Family Friendly’
polioes to ensure that a proper balance 1s maintained between work
and home Ufe Regular benchmarking of salary levelsis carned out
to mawntain the company’s competitive position in the Job market
The latest of an ongoing senes of employee surveys was carned out
dunng 2006 and ITP re-accreditation was also confirmed

A similar business-focused approach 1s now under way to reduce work-
related l{ health Although the company acknowledges that much sbill
needs to be done to improve health at work, at a major health
conference hosted by the TUC dunng the year, South West Water was
the only private sector orgamsation to be oted by the Mimster with
responsibility for Health and Safety as effectively integrating ethical,
commercal and statutory objectives

Occupational health and safety are key elements of South West
Water’s nsk management and internal control processes Following
prnivatisation, the company set out to buwild an occupational health
and safety culture throughout its supply chan 1n partnersmp with
stakehc!ders including trade umons, regulators, other water
compames and construchon partners South West Water's reportable
acadent rate s an important KPL and 1s set out below for the five
year penod 2002 to 2006 It was 11 acadents per 1,000 employees
1n 2006 compared with 12 56 per 1,000 employees 1n 2005

Whilst the sgmficant reduchon achieved 1n recent years has largely
been maintained, the company continues to pursue imbatives to
improve the health and safety of its employees

Graph here

South West Water continues to play a major role wn “Clear Water 2010',
a 10 year occupational health programme for the water industry
Independently venfied data gathered across the industry has
rdentified the industry’s greatest work-related challenges as stress
and musculo-skeletal chsorders

An essenhal aspect of South West Water's achvihes with regard to
the safety, health, welfare and well-beng of its own workers 15 the
extensive provision of traimng n shalls acquisition and health and
safety, thus ensunng that employees have the knowledge and
expertise to undertake their jobs in a well-motvated, contented
and productive manner

|
B THE ENVIRONMENT ‘

In 2006/07, South West Water abstracted 177,000 Ml of raw water from

1ts 81 bicensed abstrachon locations which have a total hcensed volume ‘

of 384,000 ML The abstraction locations are erther reservoirs, nvers or

groundwater aquifers \
|
|

The ‘percentage population equivalent’ {see Glossary, page 29, for
descnphon) served by samtary comphant waste water treatment works
in 2006 )/mproved to 99 6% (99 4% n 2005)

This gh level of comphance 15 a major contnbutor to the region
having a sigmficant proporton of the finest bathing waters, beaches
and nivers in the UK In 2006, all the reqion’s 144 bathng waters
acheved the EU mandatory standard {99%n 2005) and 92%
achieved the even more stnngent gundeline standard (89% 10 2005)

South West Water’s region alse has the mghest percentage length of
hgh quality nversin England

I INCIDENTS AND PROSECUTIONS

The number of \nadents classified by the EA as ‘Category Two’
(sigmficant pollubon inaidents) in 2006/07 was five, but only four
were deemed non-comphant Tms compares with three 10 2005/06

During the year, the company was conwvicted on seven occasions for
environmental offences and fined a total of £30,000 compared with
two convichons and £6,000 1 fines in 2005/06 The company1s
takmng action to reduce inadents which lead to prosecubion

I RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Pnce controls over the revenue of the company's regulated
business could adversely affect profitabihty

The cutcome of Ofwat’s future Pnee Determinations may adversely
affect South West Water for 2 number of reasons including an
nadequate cost of capital allowance Thereis also a nsk that
regulatory assumptions concermng operating expenses, required
capital expenditure and revenue forecasts may prove to be
unreabstic However, South West Water has met Ofwat’s efficency
expectations in the last two Penodic Review penods (K2 and K3) and
15 on track to meet themin K4

Failure to deliver the capital investment programme could
adversely affect profitabnlity

South West Water requires sigmficant capital for addstions and
replacement of plant and equipment for 1ts operations The pnce bnits
set by Ofwat for the K4 penod take into account the level of expected
capital expenditure and assocated fundng costs In the event of
under-performance, the water regulator could intervene to lower

pnce himits.
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The company may be unable to raise sufficient funds to
finance 1ts functions

Histoncally, the Group has financed expenditure from cash flows
from operations and debt finanaing In sethng pnce kmits, the
water regulator has a duty to ensure that a company can finance
1ts functions There can be no assurance that cash flows from
operations will not dechne or that additional debt finanang or
other sources of capital would be available to meet these
requirements However, the Group's policy1s to ensure that it has
commtted faclities available for at least 12 months’ anbaipated
net cash requirement

If South West Water was unable te secure the anhapated capital
efficenaes assoqated with the capital programme, or the
programme falls behind schedule for other reascns, the profitabihty
of the Group may suffer The water regulator may factor such failure
to future pnce reviews

Failure to deliver operating cost savings imphatin the
requlatory review could adversely affect profitability

Operating cost savings to be achieved dunng the current K4 penod
areimphatn the regulatory review In hine with South West Water’s
track record, the Board remains confident of delivenng the assumed
operating cost savings However, should operational performance
detenorate, the Group's profitability could suffer and the water
regulator could seek to impose mgher effioency targets as part of
future pnce reviews

Environmental regulations and quality standards could
ncrease the company’s costs and adversely affect profitabnhty

Vanous environmental and consumer protection, health and safety
laws and regulations govern the company’s waste water and water
distnbution businesses These laws and regulations establish,
amongst other things, quality standards for dnnking water, effluent
treatment (1ncluding sewage sludge disposat) and discharges nto
the emvaronment All these affect South West Water's operations

In addibon, South West Water 1s required to obtain vanous
envircnmental permssions from regulatory agencies for

1ts operahons. South West Water endeavours to comply with
all regulatory standards but cannot guarantee that it will be in
total complance with them atall times

Environmental laws and regulations are complex and change
frequently These laws and their enforcement have tended to
become more stringent over ime South West Water budgets for
future capital and operating expenditures to achieve compliance
with current and known future changesin law and regulations
However, 1t1s possible that new or stncter standards could be
1mposed that will ra1se South West Water’s capital and operating
expenditures by requinng modifications toits assets Ttis also
possible that future legislation will impose constraints on existing
water abstractions requinng South West Water to source alternative
water supplies These costs are recoverable in part or in whole
through the regulatory process of sething appropnate future pnce
himits In the event of these being sigmficant, South West Water
could apply to Ofwat for a revision of 1ts pnce imits through an
Intenm Determinabion

In addition, the Group’s ablity to meet requlatory and
environmental performance standards could be adversely affected
This could result in the potenbal for fines or other sanchons
1mposed by erther the water regulator or the courts, including
ulbmately the loss of South West Water's Licence The company has
a track record of delivenng its capital programme n

accordance with regulatory requirements
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Contamnation of water supphies could adversely affact
profitability

Water supplies may be subject to contamination, which may
emanate from naturally occurnng compounds and pollution
resulting from man-made sources If one or mare of the
company’s water supplies becomes contamnated and the
company s unable to substitute a supply or to treat adequately
the contaminated water source, there may be an adverse effect
on1ts reputation, operating results and finanaal position
Some or all of the remedial costs may be recoverable through
future pnce reviews South West Water could also be held hable
for human exposure to hazardous substances in 1ts water
suppbies or other environmental damage

The Group maintains nsurance pobicies 1n relabion to these nsks,
although there can be no assurance that all or any of the costs
assocated with these nsks would be covered or that coverage
will conhinue to be available in the future

Non-recovery of customer debt could adversely affect
profitability

The company 1s responsible for the nlling, cash collection and
debt management activities for around 760,000 domestic and
business water and waste water customers The Water Industry
Act 1997 prolints the disconnecticn of a domestic water supply
for non-payment

Non-recovery of debt 1s therefore a nsk to the Group and may
cause the Group’s profitability to suffer Allowance 1s made by
Ofwat in the Determination for its estmate of debt deemed to be
wrrecoverable but there can be no assurance that the amount
allowed by the water requlator 1s adequate In additon to
existing strategies, South West Water1s implementing new
hatives to improve and secure cash collechion, including the
use of property charging orders Provision was made in the
last Penodic Review for compames to make an application

for an Intenm Determination in the event of bad debts being
sigmficantly above the amount allowed by the water regulator

Energy cost pressures

Energy costs are the second lighest component of South West

Water’s operating costs A proportion of recent increases was !
recogmsed and allowed for by Ofwatn the last pnce

Determnation However, any addihonal costs will adversely

affect the company's profitability

South West Water mgates nsing energy costs through
careful system operation, by maximising renewable energy
generation and by purchasing all forms of energy in the most
effinent way

Water resource adequacy

A water shortage due to a severe drought could reduce the water
supply available to customers, which could have a matenal
impact on the profitabi ity of South West Water The company
has a number of schemes in place to mantain water resources
{such as pumped storage for certain reservoirs) and promotes
conservation measures
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In parbeular, South West Water prepares a new Water Resources Plan
every five years and reviews 1t annually for a range of chmate change
and demand scenanos The Water Resource Pian indicates that no new
reservolrs are required before the planmng honzon of 2030 However,
investment s needed to develop the overall trunk mawninfrastructure,
to expand treatment capaaty and to enhance certain pumped

storage facbhtes

At the end of March 2007, reservoir storage levels were 92 0%
compared with 82 7% n March 2006

Operatronal farlures

A failure of the equipment operated by South West Water could tead
to the escape of water or waste water including sewage effluent and
result \n damage to third party property or personal imury Insuch
arcumstances, South West Water may incur habbty to those third
parties South West Water could also be prosecuted by the EA or DWI
and/or be required to undertake costly upgrades

Meter option take-up

Higher than national average water and sewerage charges exast
within the Scuth West Water area This has encouraged many
customers to change from an unmeasured rateable value based
charging system to a payment based on volume of water used as
measured by a meter Properhes constructed since 1989 do not have
a rateable vatue assessment and are therefore charged by the
volume of water used Most customers 1n properbes built pnor to
1989 can choose to opt for metered charges In doing so they have
an option to swatch back to rateable value payment within 12
months of meter installabon The rate at which customers elect to
swatch to metered charges 1s estimated at each Penodic Review

The current rate of customers opting to change 1s currently
higher than the esbmates made at the last Penodic Review

This could have an adverse impact on the company’s revenues
gong forward An Intenm Determination may be used to fully or
partially recover revenue losses if they exceed the prescnbed
matenality threshold
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VIRIDOR

Colin Drummond
Chief Executive
Vindor Limited

VIRIDOR CONTINUES TO DELIVER STRONG GROWTH

B OVERVIEW The me chart below provides a breakdown of Vindor's profit
contnbubion by segment {befere amortisation of intangibles and
central overhead costs) Landfill and power generation, the first two
legs of the strategy outhined above, currently account for 76% of the
profit contnbution

The continunng improvements 1n the UK's overall waste management
policies, dnven by cbmate change and envirenmental awareness,
create major opportumties for Vindor In 2006/07 Vindor delivered
ancther year of strong profit growth At the same time 1t progressed
vanous imhatives which are expected further to enhance 1ts business
n future years This reflects its focused strategy set out opposite

Finanoal performance 1n 2006,/07 was particularly strong Revenue at
£367 7 mlbon increased by 23% over the previcus year. Operating
profit (before amorhisation of intangibles) at £46 8 milhon increased
by 30% over the previous year This was dnven by good performance
from the underlysng business combined with the positive effect of this
year's acquisthons {Wyvern and Skipaway) and the full year effect of
last year's acquisition (Brett) Inthe s1x years since 2000/01,
operating profit before amortisation of intanqibles has grown by a
compound average of 24% per annum This year, around 12% has
been orgame with the remainder being from acquisibions

Profit before tax (PBT) at £27 6 million was 26% up on the

previous year This consistent strong finanaal performance

reflects the success of Vindor's focused strategy

In May 2006, as noted 1n last year's Annual Report, Vindor
completed the acquisition of Wyvern Waste Services Liimited from
Somerset County Counal for £25 mllion as part of a 25 year Public
Private Partnership (PPP} contract with the County This acquisition
1s now fully integrated and was earmings enhanang at PBT level
(after amorhsation of intangibles) 1n 1ts first 10 months - a
parbicularly strong result




Construction of the Lakeside energy from waste (EFW) plant (1n joint venture with Grundon Waste
Management Limited}, also reported last year, cortinues on schedule with the plant due to openn
the second half of calendar 2008

In February 2007, Vindor acquired Skipaway Holdings Limted for £14 7 rmllion This acquisthon
compnses three transfer stations with assocated waste collection and recycling wn Kent It fits well
with the actvities of Brett which Vindor acquired last year

Landfillinputs excluding cover were 9% mgher 1n 2006/07 compared with the previous year, at

4 7 mlhon tonnes Excluding the effect of acquisitions, underlying landfill volumes were unchanged
Average revenues per tonne increased by 7% and margins conbinued to ymprove (to over £6 per tonne)
Consented landfill vord grew from 87 milhon cubic metres last year end to 90 million cubic metres at 31
March 2007 This reflected acquisihons (5 million cubne metres) and planming gain at four sites {4 milbon
cubic metres), less usage 1n the year (6 mllion cubic metres)

Vindor's landfilt gas power generation output increased by 15% to 423 Gigawatt hours {GWh)
Reflecting the generalincrease 1n underlying energy prices and the renewable premium n the UK,
Vindor’s average revenues per Megawatt hourincreased by 4% to £62 (though current prces in 2007/08
are lower) At 31 March 2007, Vindor’s landfill gas power generation capaoty was 75MW compared with
61MW at the previous year end (both figures exclude a small amount of sub-contract capacity)

Vindor continues to explore suttable Private Finance Imbative (PFI)/Public Pnvate Partnership (PPP)
opportumties as part of its overall strategy In January 2007, Greater Manchester Waste Dhsposal
Authonty announced that the Vindor Waste Management Lirmted/John Laing Infrastructure Limnted
consortium had been selected as preferred hidder forits 1 4 million tonnes p a 25 year waste
management services contract Final negohatons are under way with the contract due to commence 1n
the current financial year At the same time Vindor1s one of Greater Manchester’s nominated landfill
contractors for five years from 2008

The Government's target of diverting mumapal waste from landfill up to 2020 may be expected over ime
to lead to a dechinen the landfill market. However, with only around six years’ consented capaaty in the
UK as a whole (Emaronment Agency estimate} and new consents dhfficult to achieve, Vindor’'s 90 mlhion
cubrc metres s likely to become an increasingly valuable resource Whilst open-market renewable energy
pnices 1n 2007/08 are below 2006/07 peaks, as the UK increasingly relies on imports of energy and seeks
to growits output of renewables, Vindor’s gas business s also expected to reman a valuable asset
Meanwhnle, the need for counails to acheve thew diversion targets creates attrachive opportunthies for
PFI/PPP contracts such as Vindor’s with West Sussex and Somerset and, subject to contract, with Greater
Manchester, and for faalities such as the Lakeside EfW plant.

Il BUSINESS AND STRATEGY

Vindor s a leading provider of essenbal waste treatment, recyching and disposal semices in the UK
It has core competencies in landfill disposal, recycling and generation of electnaty from landfill gas
The company has a waste collechon fleet focusing pnmanly on the industnal and commeraial market
and alsoc operates matenals recycling faclihes, waste transfer stahons, treatment plants, household
waste recyching (cvic amemity) sites and compasting faclbiies 1n a number of regions in the UK

Vindor's strategy 1s to add value by
- caprtabsing on its strong position in landfill waste disposal

- explobng opportumties 1n landfill gas power generation in line with the Government’s target of
ncreasing the proporhion of electnoity generated from renewable sources

- pursuing profitable opportumbes ansing from the Government's developing
waste strategy (including PFI/PPP contracts and integrated waste
management contracts)

15
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Map here

Vindor’s landfill market consists of mumapal, commercal and
ndustnal wastes along with certain other speoal types of waste
Landfill1s currently the major final disposal route for these wastes

The amount of biodegradable mumapat waste in the UK as a whole
going to landfitl1s expected to dectine. This1s a result of the measures
taken by the Government to encourage recyching and comply with the
reguirements of the EU Landfill irechve Mumiapal waste volumes
compnse around one third of Vindor’s landfill market, However,
according to the Environment Agency's (EA) most recent estmates,
there remains the equivatent of only around six years’ overall
consented landfill capaaity in the UK as a whole and new planmng
permissions are difficult to acmeve, parbcularly for greenfield sites
In view of the above, Vindor believes that consented landfill vord 1s
anncreasingly valuable asset.

Vandor 15 one of the largest landfill site aperators 1n the UK with a total
censented landfill capaaty of approximately 90 mlbion cubic metres at
31 March 2007 The company1s at present filling this at a rate of
approxsmately 6 mlhon cubic metres per annum which resultsin an
average remaimng life of 15 years at current rates of fill - sigmficantly
longer than the ndustry as a whole. This capaaity 1s located as shown
on the map above

Gas produced from decomposing waste on landfill sites 1s ncreasingly
used to generate electnaty Itis a form of renewable energy and now
represents around 25% of the UK’s totat renewable energy generation
The Government's strategy 1s to increase the percentage of electnaty
generated from renewable sources from the current figure of a hittle
over 4% to a target of 10%1n 2010 and 15%1n 2015, with an
aspiration of 20% 1w 2020 Histoncally, renewable energy projects were
supported by the Government through the non fossil fuel obligation
(NFFO) scheme Fixed pnce Retail Pnce Index {RPI} contracts with
terms of up to 15 years were awarded to the most competitive
renewable projects 1n five tranches of idding In Apnl 2002, the NFFD
reqime was replaced by the renewable obhgation cerbficates (ROCs)
reqime. The overall price for elednaty supphed under ROCs 1s currently
mgher than that achieved under the most recent NFFO scheme This has
faalitated the increasing of Vindor’s total generabon capacity toa
current 75 MW at 31 March 2007, compared with 28MW 1n March 2002
50% of this 1s under NFFO and 50% ROCs

To take advantage of opportumties presented by the Government's
developing waste strategy, Vindor 1s pursuing composbing, energy
from waste, mechamcal-bioloqcal treatment , avic amemty or
household waste recycling sites (HWRS) and other recyching
opporturities These may be combined 1nintegrated waste
management contracts

In pursuing its strategy, Vindor seeks to grow its waste management
business, both orgamcally and through acquisihon It has continued to
be an active parhopantin the consolidation of the UK waste market to
date and, since October 2001, has made 11 acquisihons in the waste
sector for an aggregate considerahon of approxamately £190 mllion
They have been integrated into the Vindor group

Il REGULATORY AND COMPETITIVE ENVIRONMENT

The UK 1s required under the EU Landfill Directive to reduce the amount
of biodegradable mumapal waste gowng to landfill sites as follows

- to75% of 1995 level by 2010
-~  to50%cf 1995 level by 2013
- 1o 35% of 1995 level by 2020

Mumapal waste accounts for around one third of Vindor’s
landfiil market

The alternatbives to landfill sites for final waste disposal in the UK are
currently hrmted In order to meet the requnrements of the Landfill
Directive, local authonties have been set statutory targets by the
Government for the recycling of household waste and must also
implement strategies for the diversion of biedegradable mumapal
waste from landfill.




Each waste disposal authonty has been allocated an allowance of the
amount of biodegradable waste it may dispose of to landfill for the
years 2005 to 2020 These allowances are designed to ensure that the
UK as a whole achieves the requirements of the EU Landfill Chrective
Subject to some constraints, local authonties can carry forward or
trade allowances under the Landfill Allowance Trading Scheme (LATS)
Any authonty exceeding its allocation without such an allowance faces
a penalty of £150 per tonne i1 addvbion to the cost of disposing of the
waste This is expected to result in the introduchion of atternative
dhsposal processes at igher cost than current routes

The Government introduced landfill tax as a further incentive to divert
waste from landfill sites Landfill tax apples to all waste disposed of at
a bicensed landfill site, unless the waste 1s specifically exempt, such as
soil from mstoncally contaminated sites  Landfill tax 15 chargeable by
weght Forinert waste, landfill tax1s chargeable at £2 per tonne
increasing to £2 50 from 1 Apnl 2008 A standard rate of £24 per tonne
apphes to all other taxable waste which 1s due to nse by £8 per tonne
per annum to reach a level of £48 per tonne in 2010/11

Planming for landfill sites and waste and recycling 1nfrastructure

All waste management faclities, including the development of new
tandfill sites and expansion of exasting landfill sites, are

subject to planmng permission from the relevant

tocal authonty Landfill sites (and hazardous waste

faalibes) also require a Pollubion Prevention and

Control {PPC) pernit from the EA

Vindor beheves that good environmental management
15 important in winmng future planmng consents It has
achieved ISO 14001 {Environmental Management
Systems) accreditation at all of 1ts key sites

Planmng applbications are subject to ngorous assessment
by local authonties who will consider them against the
backdrop of pohicies contained within waste local plans
that have been compiled for their areas Apphcations
have to address a wide range of 1ssues and the EA1s a
statutory consultee 1n this process

Integrated mumapal waste management contracts and
the role of Private Finance Imtratives (PFIs) or Public
Prwvate Partnerships (PPPs)

To assist 1n meeting therr landfill diversion
targets, local authonties are seeking to let
ntegrated waste management contracts
covenng a range of actvities often
ncluchng HWRS, composting, recycling
and recovery, waste transfer and bulk
transport and final disposal {both
incneration and landfill)
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In a number of instances, these will be financed under PFI
arrangements where local authenties apply to the Government for
funding of capital projects which fall within the ehqibibty cntena
Successful apphicants recerve cash funds {(known as PFI credits) which
do not have to be repaid and can be used by the local authonty to fund
a proportion of the capital and operating expenditures needed for

the project.

Counals may also choose to let long-term contracts using PPP

arrangements Under this, they forego the complexibes of secunng
PFI credhts From the waste management contractor’s point of view,
the nature of the contract s very simlar whether 1t1s a PFI or a PPP

Considerable 1nvestment (potenbally as high as £30 billion by 2020 as
estimated by the Insbtution of Cwil Engineers) will be required by the
UK to meet mumicipal waste landfill diversion targets

Vindor has been operating a PFI contract with West Sussex County
Counal since Apnl 2005

In May 2006, Vindor signed a 25 year PPP with Somerset County
Council, at the same time acguinng Somerset’s Local Authonty Waste
Msposal Company (LAWDC), Wyvern Waste Services

In February 2007, ajoint venture between Vindor and
John Laing Infrastructure Linited was chosen as
preferved lidder for the Greater Manchester Waste
Dsposal Authonty PFI and, subject to contract,
operations are expected to commence later this year

Vandor recogmses that there s a range of nsks assooated
with entering 1nto such contracts, which are often fora
25-year term However, subject to a careful assessment of
the nsks on a contract by contract basis, the company wall
continue seeking to secure such contracts

Waste Regulation Emaronment

EU directives and related UK Legislation, as well as
planmng and heensing, are referred to above

The EA and the Scothsh Environment Protechon Agency

(SEPA) momtor performance against permit conditions

and general environmental law Breaches are subject
to prosecutron The EA and SEPA can also require the

operator to undertake upgrades to ensure future
compliance and, where a pollution inadent has

oceurred, clean-up achon to
be undertaken

Waste facibties are also subject to the
same regulattons as other industnes,
ncluding health and safety, control of
goods hazardous to health and the
Working Time Drective In addition,
the transport of waste s subject to

speafic controls
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I KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

The Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) used by the Directors to assess the performance of Vindar aganst stated objectives are as follows ‘

Profit before 1nterest, tax and amortisation of intangibles (PBITA)
and profit before taxation (PBT)

PBITA and PBT are key measures of Vindor's performance and are

set outn the table below for the seven year penod 2001 to 2007

The table also sets out the Compound Annual Growth Rate (CAGR) for
these measures, being the rate of growth between 2001 and 2007
expressed as a single average figure over the penod

Return on equityinvestment

Return en equity investment 1s calculated as PBT expressed as a
percentage of Pennon Group’s equity investment in Vindor
(£207 milbon at 31 March 2007)

Year ended 31 March 2001° 2002 2003* 2004 2005 2006 2007 CAGR
im £m im £m £m £m m 2001-07
Operating profit before intangibles amortisabon 131 152 191 227 300 359 46 8 24%
Profit before taxation 117 135 142 147 201 219 276 15%
Return on equity investment after corperate overheads 6 1% 7 1% 7 4% 75% 10 3% 10 6% 13 3% -
“UK GAAP
Consented landfill voud Landfill gas electrioty generation capacity

As at 31 March 2007, Vindor had a consented void capacity of 90
milbon cubic metres This can be reconaled with the disclosed
consented void capaaity wn last year's Annual Report, as follows

milhon cubic metres
As at 31 March 2006. . - - 87
Planmng gains {net) 4
Acquisttion 5
Used in the penod - - . (6)
As at 31 March 2007 e . 50

Graph here
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Electnaty generated 1s sold to electnoty supplers, usually under

NFFQ contracts or under short-term contracts with ROCs As at 31 March
2007, Vindor had 75MW of generating capaaty, an increase of 14MW
over the year (These figures exclude 3MW of sub-contract capacity

n Suffolk)

Graph here

B CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY/RELATIONSHIPS

8 EMPLOYEES

The company employs a comprehensive range of techmeal and
professional managenal personnel and supervisory, admimstrative,
clencal, semi-skilled and unskilled staff Many are vocationally trained
and have extensive operatonal expenence Membership of relevant
trade and professional bodies 15 widespread and 1s encouraged

Vindor1s pursuing a number of occupational health and safety imbatives.

It currently has six sites accredited to the OHSAS18001 internahional

health and safety standard and is planming to extend this across further

sites All other sites are covered by the company’s Environmental ,
Management System (EMS} (most accredited to [5014001), which1s

the vehicle for delivening health and safety standards and procedure




Vindor's reportable acodent rate per 1,000 employees 1s an
important KPI and 15 set out below for the five year penod 2002

to 2006 Itwas 18 18 1n 2006 compared with 18 101n 2005

Despite comparing favourably with industry averages, Vindor's focus
on health and safety 1mprovement and performance remains strong
The company has recrinted addihonal health and safety professionals
dunng the year and continues to raise the level of tramng and
support available to 1ts staff

Graph here

Regrettably the company suffered 1ts first health and safety
prosecutions dunng 2006 An acodent at Beddington Landfill near
Croydon led to a prosecution under the Management of Health and
Safety at Work Regulations 1999, for the fatlure to conduct an
adequate nsk assessment The company was fined £2,500 plus costs
Following an acadentin 2004 where two employees were struck by a
wheel loading shovel, the company was fined £100,000 for breaches
of the Health and Safety at Work Act 1974, 1n that 1t did not
adequately have in place systems and procedures to protect the health
and safety of its employees at Bargeddie in Glasgow The company has
learnt key lessons from these ynadents and continues to stnve to raise
health and safety awareness and 1mprove its performance

Il ENVIRONMENT

The most sigmficant postve environmental impacts of Vindor's
operabons anse from the safe and efficient disposal of society’s waste
matenals, increased resource and energy efficency from1its recyching
and recovery operations, the generation of renewable energy from
nan-fossil fuels and the restoration of despoiled landscapes such as
disused mineral workangs through the controlled deposit of waste
matenals Sigmficant negative impacts mclude transportation and
associated emissions, methane production (where not harnessed for
energy generation or flared), leachate production and potenbal local
impacts such as dust, noise, litter and odour

Vindor developed 1ts own EMS 1n the early 1990s recogmsing the
growing importance of measunng and momtonng the environmental
1mpact of 1its operations This has allowed targets to be set and met to
maximse positive environmental impacts and reduce negative impacts,
resulting 1n continuous improvement 1N environmental performance
Vindor was the first UK waste company to achheve IS0 14001
accreditation across all major operational sites and has 50 accredited
centres covening 138 operational facilibes as at 31 March 2007 It has
also played a leading role in developing and reporhing against the
environmental performance indicators for the waste industry as
promoted by the Green Alhance

The amount of waste recycled by the company increased over the year
to 11 million tonnes (0 9 million tonnes n 2005/06)
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Il SOCIAL AND COMMUNITY [SSUES

Landfill (and many other faclities) require waste management hicences
or PPC permits, 1ssued and mormtored by the EA Vindor maintains a
posttive working relatronship with the EA, proactively haising on, and
manaqingssues at, both a site-speafic and strategic level

A ’good neighbour’ policy 1s implemented at all facilibes managed by
Vindor with local hason groups at most major sites consisting of
locally elected representatives of the commumty meeting reqularly to
be consulted about the company's plans and operating procedures
Lia1son groups alscinclude representatives of the EA, the

relevant planning authonty and other key local stakeholders

B KEY CONTRACTUAL AND OTHER ARRANGEMENTS

Local authonhes are the largest single customer group accounting in
total for 30% of revenue Noindwidual authonty accounts for more
than 4% Vindor's ROC contracts account for 5% of revenue

No supplier accounts for more than 1% of Vindor's revenue
The company sources from compebtive markets

B RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Increases in landfill costs may not be recovered through price increases

The rarsing of emaronmental standards 1s leading to a gradual ncrease n
{andfill costs 1n general. Parbicular areas of cost increases include site
engineenng (which results 1n increased depreciabon), restoration and
aftercare costs (see below), leachate management, landfill gas
management and general site management. Compames such as Vindor
with landfills engineered to modem standards and which have good
emaronmental control systems, should incur lower than average increases
n costs However, there remans a nsk that nsing standards may generate
higher treatment and disposal costs than currently assumed

Landfill sites are fitled and restored on a cell by cell basis Final restoration,
n accordance with the planmng permssion, and aftercare of the site,
takes place after site closure The costs related to aftercare are expected
to continue for around 30 years post closure These costs are best
estimates based on Vindor's own extensive expenence and they are
updated at each stage of the capital expenditure programme
Nevertheless, as with any estmate of future costs, there1s a nsk that
arcumstances may change which may affect the level of those costs
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The costs are charged on a landfill usage basis, 1 e per tonnenput.
Ths 1s calculated by dnading the total expected cost by the number of
tonnes expected to be nputinto the site up toits closure This number
1s denved from the remaimng vord space, as estimated by external
consultants, and eshmated compachon rates (tonnes per cubic metre)
These are best eshmates, based on current information, which are
reviewed everyyear However, to the extent that tonnages are over or
underestmated, there 15 a nisk that the amount provided may be too
gh or low

Murmcipal waste contracts typically last for a number of years They
usually have price increases under formulae related to inflabon as
measured by the RPT i the UK and 1n some cases take into account
speafic legislative or techmcal changes Pnces for other types of waste
depend more on local markets and competitive condittons Vindor's
expenence over several years 15 that pnces 1n general have nsen fast
enough at least to cover cost increases 1n the areas where 1t operates
There 15 a nsk that landfill pnces may not nse sufficently in all
locations to recover recent and projected costincreases

The UK Government's Waste Strategy, stemming from the Landfill
Drective, may lead to a reduction 1n volumes of waste being
dhsposed to landfill. The Government’s Waste Strateqy 1s currently
under review and wncludes targets for diversion of muniapal waste
from landfill and increases in landfill tax as previously announced

Vindor focuses on the landfill disposal of mumapal, industnal and
commeraal, construction and demolition waste Of this, around 30%
{or 20 mlbion tonnes} of the UK total for these waste streams 1s
mumapal (of which approximately two thirds 1s bhodegradable
mumapal waste (BMW) These figures are based on estimates from
DEFRA, the EA, SEPA and HM Revenue & Customs

Bxisting Governmentmbatives are having an 1mpact and the amount
of mumapal waste being disposed to landfill1s now dectinming
Assuming the EU Landfill Directive targets are met, the total amount of
mumapal sobid waste (MSW) which will be landfilled from 2020 will be
around 10 mlhon tonnes per annum (depending on the precise
interpretabion of the Directive) If thereis no change in other waste
streams, this would sbill leave a substanbial landfill market 1n 2020

This should be seen 1n the context of an EA eshmate of a current
consented landfill capaaty UK-wide of around six years

Vindor has seen its underlying landfill volumes holding steady, perhaps
reflecting an increase 1nits share of the landfillmarket However, the
combined effect of the vanous Government measures1s hkely to reduce
the total amount of waste being landfilled in the UK 1n the future

Not all landfills may meet the standards of the Integrated Pollution
Prevention and Control Dhrechve and the Landfill Directive, or
requirements may be 1mposed which would impact on the
economcs of landfill

Landfills (and other 1ndustnal processes) 1n the UK are subject to a
permitbing regime pursuant to the Pollubon Prevention and Control
(England and Wales) Regulations 2000 (PPC Regulations) Existing
landfills opened before July 2001 operated under waste management
licences but now require a PPC permit granted under the PPC
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Regulations PPC permits oftenimpose higher standards and costs
ngeneral Any landfills that fail to obtain a PPC permit woultd need to
be subject to a closure plan with the EA or SEPA

The net result of this 1s that 1t1s expected that after a transitional penod,
the average techmical and operational standards of landfillin the UX wall
mprove and it 1s possible that the number of landfills may decrease

All but one of Vindor's operational landfills have achweved PP permits,
though in some cases we are appeabng against certan of the
conditions proposed, which rmght have cost or other implications for
the landfills The operational landfill whach has not yet received a PPC
permit1s currently due to close in two years’ ttme Vindor1sn the
process of applying for a PPC perrmit for one new landfill and whilstts
expected that this application will be successful, the company cannot
preyudge the regulator's conclusions

Under both waste management hcences and PPC permits, landfills
require expenditure on restoration when the site 1s closed and
subsequently on aftercare (maintenance, supenasion, momtonng and
management of gas and leachate levels) long after the landfiling
actwvibes have ceased The EA or SEPA will only grant a full or parbal
PPC permit or waste management hicence surrender once 1t1s satisfied
that the landfillis inert and no lenger poses any environmental

nsk There may still be a nsk of habiity ansing from any residual
contamination following the surrender of the PPC permit. Landfill
licences or permits cannot be surrendered dunng the aftercare penod

Pnang and other risks relating to renewable energy

Renewabte energy pnces under the current ROCs scheme are pnmanly a
funchon of the underlying ‘brown’ energy pnce and the prermum
achieved from the sale of ROCs

Underlying ‘brown’ energy pnces rose ssgmficantly in 2006/07
reflecting the general energy supply/demand positionin the UK and
worldwide Brown energy pnces have fallen back sigmficantly to date
m 2007/08 and will affect Vaindor's performance 1 the current year as,
n ine with 1ts current policy, it has sold energy one year ahead
‘Brown’ energy pnces witl continue to be deternined by the world and
UK energy market and may go down as wellas up Any changes in
underlying energy pnces will directly affect Vindor’s revenues whenits
sales contracts come up for renewal

Without a pnang mechamsm such as ROCs, further investment in
renewables enerqy generation would naot generally be econormc The
Government has made a strong commitment to renewables which are
key to meeting the long-term carbon reducton strategy set out 1nthe
energy white paper and the UK's targets for carbon dioxide reducbons
under the Kyoto Protocol Renewables are also important in mimmising
the UK’s increasing reliance onmported energy Nevertheless, there
remains a nsk that the Government may change the pnang mechamsm

Inats recent consuttation on the ROCs reqime, the Government
concluded that new landfill gas schemes starting from 2009 onwards
wll have reduced ehigqinlity for ROCs It1s now consulting further on
the details of this proposal However, this1s not expected to affect
Vindor’s existing schemes which are ikely to form the bulk of

1ts output.




The value of ROCs 1s 1ncreased by the shanng of the buy-out pnice momes
among holders of ROCs The value of a ROC depends on the supply of
renewable electnoty relatrve to the UK's annualincreasing targets If
large amounts of renewable energy generating capaaity gained planmng
permission and commenced operations there1s a sk that the value of a
ROC would dectine The value of ROCs1s also dependent on the finangial
strength of those suppbers who opt to pay the buy-out pnce Theretsa
nisk that the insolvency of a icensed electnaty suppher could lead to a
dropn the value of the ROCs which Vindor sells to lcensed suppbers

A landfill gas project must be able to collect and burn sufficient gas to
produce electnaty Ulbmately, the volume of gas generated will depend
on the amount and composition of the waste landfilled For example, as
the amount of BMW diverted away from landfill 1s increased in the future
n accordance with the EU Landfill Directive obhgations, the total
biodegradable component of the waste going to landfill will reduce,
affecting the volumes of landfill gas produced It1s therefore possible
that the gas obtained will not be available etther in the amounts or of the
calonfic value required to make a project cost effective

Lakeside EfW construchion and techmcal nsks

The Lakeside joint venture involves building a 400kt waste to energy
plant at a cost of arca £160 nulbion and operating 1t for 25 years 86% of
the project 1s funded by non-recourse bank debt which hmits the nsk to
Pennon Group The remainders funded by the joint venture, of which
Vindor has 50% of the equnty

The plant1s a modem conventional waste to energy fanility As a result
of a competibve procurement procedure it1s being suppbed by the
Japanese consortium Itochu/Takuma Theres a sigmficant number of
similar plants operating successfully worldwide

It1s being supphed 1n accordance with a fixed pnce contract winch
was drawn up with the assistance of speqalist external consultants
Nevertheless, as with any major infrastructure project, unforeseen
arcumstances may anse which may affect the construchon process

Efficencies and output of the plant will be affected by the precse
calonfic value of the waste throughput. The plant1s well proven and 1t
15 a robust conventional technolegy designed to take the currently
projected waste mx Nevertheless, if the mix of the waste changes
sigmficantly over the next 25 years, there may be some 1mpact on
efficenaes and output.

The current planming reqime may restnct the availabbty of future
waste treatment faobhes

Achievement of the Government’s targets for waste management 1s
cntically dependent on the planming system debvenng sufficient waste
treatment facbities Obtaimng planmng permission for any type of waste
treatment facility s difficult and will represent a major challenge for the
waste management industry

Vindor may be unable to recrnt/retain adequate numbers of staff
with the necessary skills

Good quality staff with the required techmeal skills and certification
are essenbaln the waste industry ‘Vhindor recogmses that there s
a nsk of losing staff to competitors and seeks to address this byits
employment pohces
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Risks assoqated with long-term ntegrated contracts

Any long-term integrated contract has a range of nsks assocated
withat Indeed, nsk transfer1s a key part of Government PFI
procurement guidelines The nsks include waste velumes and mix,
planmng technology, input costs and recyclate prnces A careful
assessment of the nsks and apporbonment of them between chient,
main contractor, technology and equipment supplers, and sub
contractors 1s a key part of the process of lidding and finabising

a contract

As noted above the Vindor/Laing joint venture 1s preferred bidder for
the Greater Manchester PFI. Final contractual negohations are not
yat complete

Vindor seeks to protect itself against the nsks 1n such contracts 1n the
firstinstance by doing extensive due dibigence, tymcalty using a
combination of external adwisers and in-house experts, so that nsks
are correctly 1dentfied

Vindor will then seek to protect itself aganst the nsks dentfied
through contractual documentaton with 1ts chent, subcontractors

and sub-supphers The degree 1t does so depends of course on the other
parties’ athtude to nsk transfer and on the speafic commeraal situabion

To the degree that Vindor 1s not able to (or chooses not to) cover off all
the nsks idenbified 1n the contractual documentation, then itincludes in
1ts pnce an assessment of a reasonable return for accepting such nsks
Vindor takes a robust approach on thisissue Ifit cannot cover off the
nsks satisfactorily or cannot get a reasonable commeraal return for
taking such nsks, 1ts policy 1s to accept the loss of such a contract rather
than wan it on unsatisfactory terms

Whilst Vindor's policy on such nsks s careful and robust, there
remains a nsk that Vindor's commeraal

assessment will not be satisfactory and

the results from such contracts

will be adverse
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PENNON GROUP

Dawid Dupont
Group Directer of Finance
Pernon Group Plc

THE GROUP’S FINANCIAL RESULTS SHOWED GROWTH IN BOTH REVENUE

AND PROFIT BEFORE TAX FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS

Bl ANALYSIS OF THE GROUP'S FINANCIAL
PERFORMANCE

Revenue and operating profit
Revenue rose by 15 9% to £748 3 milhon

Group operating profit before intangibles amortsabon increased by
£25 1 mlhon {before exceptional items of £14 5 million 1n 2005/06
relating to finanoal restructunng)

Group earmngs before 1nterest, taxation, deprecation and intangibtes
amorhisation (EBITDA) increased to £315 5 milbon (2005/06

£279 2 milhon) inclucing South West Water £234 5 milhon (2005,/06
£213 4 mlbon) and Vindor £82 8 million (2005/06 £66 7 mihon)

Total Group operating costs were £548 3 mlhon (2005/06 £470 6
milhon) and mcluded the following major categones of expenditure
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£m
Deprecation and intangibles amortisabion 1155
Landfill tax 98 2
Manpower 810
Transport 287
Power 210
Property 205
Raw matenals and consumables 199
Abstraction and discharge consents 75
Lease rentals — plant and machinery 72
Statutery operating hicences and royalties 57

Revenue from power generabion of £27 2 milhon sigmficantly exceeded
power costs




Rnance costs

Netinterest payable was £69 2 milhon (2005/06 £64 3 mlbon before net excepbonal costs of
£42 3 mlhon} and was 2 9 times covered by Group operating profits (2005/06 2 7 times)

2005,/06 exceptional nterest costs were

—  costs of £50 2 mthion relating to the financal restructunng which
nvolved the capital return to shareholders and the retirement of
the £150 mill:on 10 625% Bond (due 2012}

- £7 9 million proceeds ansing from a consent fee receved upon the

sale of finance leases between finanaal institutions

Gross interest payable was £98 3 milhon Gross interest recewvable of £29 1 mibon included £7 0 mlbon
from the investment of temporanly surplus funds

Net interest payable represents a rate of 4 6% when measured against average net debt (2005/06 5 1%)
and demonstrates the Group's effechive management of interest rates

Profit before tax

Profit before tax was £131 1 mllion, £20 2 milhon up on 2005/06 (before net exceptonal costs 1n 2005/06
of £56 8 mithon), an increase of 18 2%

Taxation

The corporahon tax charge for the year was £23 9 mlhon (2005/06 £14 8 mlhon before tax relief on
the exceptional items of £18 7 milbon) The deferred tax charge for the year was £13 3 mlhon (2005/06
£20 2 mlbon)

Earmngs per share*

Eamings per share before deferred tax and excephonal items 1ncreased by 20 2% to 30 3p Basic earmings
per share increased from 9 9p to 26 S5p Of the totalncrease of 16 6p, 10 Op was attnbutable to the
exceptionalitems in 2005/06

Dwidends and retained earmngs*

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dvidend of 12 7p per share for the year ended 31 March
2007 Together with the ntenm dmdend of 5 85p per share paid on 11 Apnl 2007, this gives a total
dwidend for the year of 18 55p per share, anncrease of 7 8% compared with 2005/06

Proposed dwadends of £66 0 milhon (2005/06 £61 0 million) are covered 1 6 times (2005,/06 1.6 times)
by profit after tax (before deferred tax) Dwidends are recogmised 1n retained earmngs i the yearin which
they are paid

The profit of £93 9 mlhon has been transferred to reserves

Dividend policy and shareholder returns

The Group 1s committed to a progressive diwadend policy of 3% per annum ncrease in real terms
until 2009/10

In December 2005, Pennon announced 1ts decision to meve South West Water to a more lighly-geared
structure to enhance the Group's capital efficency As a consequence of thns, a capital return was made to
shareholders by way of a B Share with an assocated share consohdation The Company completed the
redemption of the outstanding B Shares for a total of £5 7 millien in Apn! 2006 Accordingly arca

£145 mlhon has now been returned to shareholders through a B Share1ssue

*Amounts per share for 2006 are restated to reflect the three for one share split 1n July 2006
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Bl SUBSIDIARY COMPANY FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
Details of the finanaal performance of South West Water and Vindor
are set outin the Business Review on pages 4 to 21

B GROUP INVESTMENT

Capital expenditure by the Group on property, plant and equipment
was £245 1 mllon (2005/06 £249 7 milhon) The major categones of
expenditure compnsed

South West Water £m
Water mains 45
Water treatment works 25
Waste water treatment works and sludge 42
Sewerage 26
Viridor £m
Landfill 33
Power generahion

Collechon

Contracts 11
Other g

In addrtion, the capital expenditure in the Lakeside joint venture
was £26 milhion

In the opimon of the Directors, the current market value of land and
buwildings 1s not sigmficantly different from the holding cost shown in
the financal statements

Share capital

The Company completed the redemption of the outstanding B shares
for a total of £5 7 mmlbion i Apnl 2006 Accordingly circa £145 mithon
has now been returned to shareholders through a B share 1ssue

Perrmssion was obtained from shareholders at the Annual General
Meeting 1n July 2006 to effect a sub-division of the Company's ordinary
shares by way of a three-for-one split.

The werghted average number of shares 1n1ssue dunng the year
was 353 9 milhon {2005/06 381 9 mlbon after adjusting for the
share spht)

The value of net assets per share at book value at 31 March 2007
was 176p

Permission was obtained from shareholders at the Annual General
Meeting 1n July 2006 to purchase up to 10% of the Company’s ordinary
share capital Dunng the year £3 5 mlhion of shares were repurchased
Renewal of the authonty will be sought at the July 2007 Annual
General Meeting

I CAPITAL STRUCTURE
Overall position

With year end net debt of £1,557 million, the Group year end debt to
equity plus debt ratio was 71% {2005/06 71%)

The borrowing powers of the Directors are bmited to two and a half
times adjusted capital and reserves, as defined 1 the Company’s
Articles of Association At 31 March 2007, the bt was £2 3 bilhon
The Directors confirm that the Group can meetits short-term
requirements from the exasting borrowing faclibes without breaching
covenants or other borrowang restnchions

South West Water

South West Water’s debt to Regulatory Capital Value (RCV) was 62% at
31 March 2007 (2005/06 62%;), within Ofwat’s ‘optimum range’ of 55%
~65% The scale of the remayming K4 investment programme means
that this rabio1s expected to remain relatively stable up to 2010

Varidor

Vindor s funded by a combination of Pennon Group equity and debt
{ra1sed by Pennon Group) and direct borrowing by Vindor At the
year end, Vindor’s net debt stood at £257 milbon {March 2006

£201 milhon), equivalent to 3 1 mes EBITDA (2005/06 3 0 bmes)

l TREASURY POLICIES AND OBJECTIVES

The Group's treasury funchon seeks to ensure that sufficent funding 1s
available to meet foreseeable needs, maintains reasanable headroom
for contingencies and manages interest rate nsk It operates within
policies approved by the Board and does not undertake any speculative
trading actmity

Debt profile

At 31 March 2007, loans and finance lease obbigations were £1,685
milhon and the Group held cash and deposits of £128 milbon

Dunng 2006/07 the followang finance imtiabives were implemented

- £180 mihon finance lease extended by 20 years

- £100 mllion 4 13% prvate placement 1ssued

- £85 mlbhonfinance lease drawdown for water
mains rehabibtation

In addition, the Group secured £10 mithon adchbional term loans and
£45 mlbon additional revolving credit facities

Pennon Group debt has a matunty of 0 - 35 years
with average matunty increasing dunng

the year from 12 to 16 years as a result

of the imhatives above
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The major componerits of debt finance are

- finance leasing - £1,082 mlbon, of which £135 milbon
15 index-linked

- bank bilateral debt - £258 mlbon
—  European Investment Bank loans — £232 milhon
- pnvate placement -~ £100 mllion

Interest rate management

Netnterest costs of £69 millon equated to an average interest rate of
4 6% for the Group South West Water's average 1nterest rate equated
to4 3%

The Group’s exposure to interest rate movements 1s managed by the
use of interest rate denvatives The Board policy1s thatin any one year
at least 50% of net debt1s fixed Interest rate swaps are used to
manage the mix of fixed and floating rates The Group has taken
advantage of relatively low interest rates to fix 60% of exasting net
debt up to 31 March 2008, and 70% up to 31 March 2010 In addibion
South West Water has index-linked 10% of 1ts current net debt up to
2041. The netional prncipal amounts of the interest rate swaps are
used to determine settlement under those swaps and are not,
therefore, an exposure for the Group These instruments are analysed
n more detail in note 22 to the finanaal statements

Refinanaing risk management

Refinanaing nsk 1s managed under the Group Pohcy that no more than
20% of Group net debt1s permitted to maturein any financial year

Counterparty risk management

Surplus funds of the Group are usually placed n short-term fixed
nterest deposits or the overmght money markets

Counterparty nsk anses from the investment of surplus funds and from
the use of denvative instruments The Board has agreed a pohcy for
managing such nsk, which1s controlled through credit bnmts,
counterparty approvals, and ngerous monitonng procedures

All deposits are with counterparbes that have a credit rating

approved by the Board

Bl CASHFLOWS

The net cash inflow from operating activities was £305 mlbon
{2005/06 £232 milhion) Capital expenditure cash outflow 1n 2006/07
was £251 mlbon, anincrease of £32 milhon from £219 milbon n
2005/06. The net cash outflow for acquisitions was £37 mlbon
(2005/06 £41 milhon) Equity dwidends pard of £61 milion and net
nterest pavd of £51 million totalled a cash outflow of £112 mlhion
(2005/06 £140 milton)

Group net debtincreased from £1,427 milhon at 31 March 2006 to
£1,557 mlbon at 31 March 2007

Cash and cash equivalents increased by £32 milbon to £112 mllion
compared with a £40 milbon decrease 1 2005/06

B LauiDiTy

It1s Group policy to ensure that the Group has committed loan facbhes
equivalent to at least one year’s forecast requirements at alt times This
1s achieved through the use of credit facilibies which are utibised as
required and re-financed using drawdowns for longer-term faailrhes

Payment commitments are expected to be met on the loan refinanang
as required dunng the coming penod.
B INTERNAL TRANSFERS

For regulatory purpeses, South West Water funding 1s treated as
effectively nng-fenced Funds raised by or for South West Water are
used 1n the appointed business {provision of water and sewerage
services) and are not available as long-term fundng for the rest of
the Group

B COVENANTS

Pennen Group and South West Water have entered into covenants with
lenders Whilst terms vary, these typically prowide for irmits on geanng
andd interest cover

I KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

The Directors assess the financial performance of the Group through

Profit before tax (PBT)
PBT before excepignalitems has grown by 15 3% CAGR over the five year penod

Graph here

farmings per share (EFS)
EPS hefore exceptionalitems and deferred tax has grown by 13 4% CAGR over
the five year penod

Graph here
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I CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY

Pennon Group endeavours to achieve the appropniate balance between
allits stakeholders, the environment and the needs of the Group Ithas
a sonal and ethcal pohicy which covers the key areas of finance,
employees, customers and supplers, commumty, management
responsibibity and commumcations

A key objective of the Groups to uphold its reputation for integnty and
fair dealing, which 1t considers 15 essential to the long-term well-being
of the Group and 1ts key stakeholders

The Group also has a ‘Whistleblowing” pohicy which supports 1ts
approach to etmeal employment practices by encouraqing employees
to raise, 1 accordance with a formabised procedure, concerns which
relate to potential unlawful conduct, finanaal malprachice, dangers
to the public or damage to the environment This peheyis

reviewed regularly

B THE ENVIRONMENT
Significant mghbghts of the year for the Group were

- asamajor generator of renewable energy, 11 2006/07 Group
companies produced 460GWh (4376Wh n 2005/06) the
equivalent of 154% of energy consumed The Group was a net
exporter of energy for the eighth successive year This supports
the Government's objective to reduce greenhouse gas emssions

—  listed as a conshtuent of the FTSE4Good Index

- nthe Business in the Commumty Emvironmental Index 2006, the
Group’s overall score \mproved from 92 97% to 97 13%, and the
Group was the only FTSE 250 company ncluded in the ghest
sconng ‘plabnum’ rank of 25 compames
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=~ the Group passed the stnngent critena in the Orange SeNSe
Fund, which observes business conduct and soqio-environmental
practice, and demonstrates good Socially Responsible
Investment {SRI) practice

Sound environmental performance 1s cntical to the success of both
South West Water and Vindor The Group has a long establhished
environmental policy, as set outinits annual Corporate Responsibility
Report which will avarlable on the Group's website — www pennon-
group co uk/CR by the end of July 2007

Both businesses must comply with the lgh standards set by the EA to
mmmse their impact on the emaronment and are responsible for the
treatment and disposal of society’s waste 1n a carefully controlled and
hghly enqineered manner The businesses acknowledge the
importance of environmental sustainabibity and have taken measures
to ensure that their operations enhance the environment whenever
possible and mmmse any adverse impact

B EMPLOYEES

The success of the Group depends to a sigmficant extent on the
businesses’ ahty to attract and retain appropnately qualified and
motwvated employees The Company seeks to provide them wath a
safe working environment and give them the necessary traiming and
development to fulfil their roles

I SOCIAL AND COMMUNITY ISSUES

The Group1s commtted to supporting the commumbesin which 1t
operates It does this by carefully targeted sponsorship and chantable
donatiens to secal and community groups, further details of which
can be found in the Group’s Corporate Responsility Report (available
end of July 2007)

I KEY CONTRACTUAL AND OTHER ARRANGEMENTS
The majonty of the Group’s debtis raised by

- finance leasing

—~  European Investment Bank loans
- bank hlateral facilites

- pnvate placements
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Pennon Greup Ple and South West Water Lirmited each have their own
standard covenant packages which are included n the majonty of the
debt faclibes The standard finanoal covenant package 1s based on
geanng and interest cover covenants

Redemption penaltes included 1n the facibty documentation can be
wnvoked if debt facilities are redeemed early The redemption penalties
vary 1n each faabty.

[ RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

It may not be possible to continue to sustain the same level of
earmngs and growth of the Group as in the past

There 15 2 nsk to shareholder value1f the Group 1s not able to conbnue
to grow1ts key businesses and produce sustainable earmings growth
This1s dependent upon the correct strategies being pursued by strong
and able management within the Group as well as on external factors
The Group has maintained earmings and has successfully grown both
South West Water and Vindor and intends to continue to create
shareholder value through its strategic focus on water and waste water
services and waste management

Pension costs may increase due to factors outside the
Group’s control

The Group has defined benefit pension schemes for existing staff of
Pennon and South West Water, and for certain employees of Vindor
Pennon Group set up a defined contnbution scheme in July 2003
for new entrants to Vandor and employees from certain acquired
waste compames Employer costs were reduced from 1 Apnl 2006
through the closure of the existing defined benefit scheme to new
entrants (replaced by a new scheme with reduced benefits) and an
ncrease 1n employee contnbutions

The last actuanal valuation of the Group defined benefit schemes
was undertaken at 1 Apnl 2004 The Group pension schemes had

net habihibies at 31 March 2007 of £41 mithon {2006 £42 mllion)
Sound wnvestment performance, an increase 1n the market interest
rate used to discount halahtes, plus a further £9 mlhon prepayment
of employer contnbutions in September 2006 have been offset by an
ncrease 1n hambties of which £16 milbon anses from the use of an
updated longewity assumption for pensioners A full actuanal valuation
1s being undertaken as at 1 Apnl 2007 The net habhbes (after
deferred tax) represent arca 1 3% of the Group’s total market
capitalisation as at 31 March 2607
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The future costs of defined benefit schemes are subject to a number of
factors including

- thereturns actueved on pension fund investments
—  movements 1n mterest rates and inflabon

—  pensioner longewity

Insurance

The Group manages property and third party nsks by the purchase

of insurance pohcies Mainmsurance policies cover property,

business interruption, publc bability, emaronmentat pollution and
employers’ hability There are three bers of insurance for most pobiaies
The first tier 15 self-insurance 1n the form of a moderate deduchible The
second tier 1s covered by the Group’s subsichary, Pemnsula Insurance
Limited, whnch 1nsures the layer of nsk between the deductible and the
cover provided by external insurers The third tier of nsk s placed with
the externalinsurance market The Group’s nsurance brokers assistin
sourcing appropnate surance cover from insurance companes that
have good credit ratings

Finanoal covenants

The finanaoal covenantsincluded 1n the Group's debt faclibes are
momtored on a reqular basis The finanaal covenants offered by the
Group include a provision to re-test the covenants applying to Frozen
GAAP accounting standards Thisis to protect the Group from changes
n accounting standards that may have a detnmental impact on the
finanaial covenant testing methodology
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[ INTERPRETATION

Il LANDFILL VOID SPACE AND POWER GENERATION
CALCULATIONS

The landfill void space figures quoted 1n this review in relation to
Vindor are in respect of consented vend only {void with ptanmng
permission for landfillng)

The void space figures are based upon Yindor's most recent
assessment of vord available to the company for waste and daily
cover matenals The voud figures have been assessed using pre-
settlement levels (based upon the extent of the planmng consent),
propesed base levels (based upon the terms of the site hcence/
permit} and exasting waste surfaces (determined by survey) These
calcutabons necessanly involve an element of management
judgement and are based on certain other assumphions {such as the
waste mix profile of a site) However, Vindor s of the opimon that
1ts calculation methodologies are 1n ine wath convention typical in
the landfillindustry The vord actually available at any one time may
be different from the figures quoted

Gas/electnaty generating capaaty of Vindor 1s defined by the
Megawatt capacity of the engines installed on landfill sites through
which the gas passes to generate electnoty
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Modelling future power generation requires consideration of a
number of factors including the waste mass and composition already
1 place and volumes of gas currently being extracted In addrbon,
the model requires an assessment of how the current position 15
expected to change throughout each site’s remaimng life as an
operational landfill and beyond into the aftercare penod Any such
assessment requires certain assumptions to be made includingin
relation to the amount of waste 1 the site, 1its biodegradable
content, the age of the waste and the hkebhhoed of obtaiming a gnd
connechon at an economc cost

Il FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Business Review contains forward looking statements regarding
the finangal position, results of operations, cash flows, dwdends,
finanaing plans, business strateqies, operating efficiencies, capital
and other expenditures, competitive posihons, growth
oppartunities, plans and objectives of management and ather
matters These forward looking statements, including, without
limitation, those relating to the future business prospects,
revenues, warking capital, hquidhty, capital needs, interest costs
and income 1n relation to the Pennon Graup and s subsidianes,
wherever they occur 1n this Business Review, are necessanly based
on assumptions reflecting the views of Pennon Group and its
subsidiary compames, as appropniate They involve a number of nsks
and uncertainbes that could cause actual results to differ matenally
from those suggested by the forward looking statements Such
forward looking statements should, therefore, be considered in hght
of relevant factors, including those set cut in the sechons entitled
‘Risks and uncertainties’ on pages 10 to 13, 19 to 21 and 27
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The following are descnptions of some of the terms used 1 this Business Review

BMW
CAGR
DEFRA
Determination
DWT
EA
Efw
EMS
GWh
HWRS
IFRS

Intenm Determination or IDoK

IS0 14001
June Return
KPLs

K3

K4

LATS

LAWDC

Ml

Mid

MSW

Mw

MWh

NFFQ

Ofwat or water regulator

‘percentage population
equivalent’

Penodic Review

PH

PPC

PPP

RCV
RIDDOR
RPI
ROCs
SEPA

UK GAAP
Vindor

Biodegradable mumctpal waste

Compound Average Growth Rate, being the rate of growth over a penod, expressed as a single average figure
Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs

The pnce hmits and expendrture plans determined by Ofwat for South West Water for a five year penod
Dnnkang Water Inspectorate

Emargnment Agency

Energy from Waste

Emaronmental Management System developed by Vindor

Gigawatt hours

Household waste recycling sites

Internationat Finanaial Reporting Standards

Intenm Determnation of K

International environmental accreditation standard

The annual return to Ofwat made by South West Water of ts performance dunng the tast finanaal year
Key Perfarmance Indicators

Penodchc Review penad 2000 - 2005 for South West Water

Perodhc Review penod 2005 — 2010 for South West Water

Landfill Allowance Trading Scheme

Local Authonty Waste Disposal Company

Megalitres

Megalitres per day

Mumapal sohd waste

Megawatts

Megawatt hours

Non Fossil Fuel Obligabon

Water Services Regulatory Authonty

Waste water treatment works loadings from domestic, industnal and diffuse sources, averaged and
stated as a populahon equivalent load, expressed as percentage

The process of deterriming the water industry’s pnce imits and expenditure plans for five-year
regulatory penods

Private Finance Imhatve

Poltution, Prevention and Control

Public Private Partnershp

Regulatory Capitat Value

Reporting of Injunes, seases and Dangerous Occurrences Regulabons (1995)
The UK Government’s Retail Pnce Index

Renewable Obligation Certificates

Scottish Emarenment Protection Agency

Umted Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Prinaiples

Vindor Lumted (subsidiary of Pennon Group Plc) or, depending on the nature of the actwity referred to,
Vinder imited’s operating subsidiary, Vindor Waste Management Limted
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Il OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION

I PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The prinapal actwities of the Company and 1ts subsichanes

{"the Group’) continue to be the provision of water and waste water
services and waste management Information regarding the Group,
ncluding 1mportant events and its progress duning the year, events
since the year end and bikely future developments 1s contained in the
Business Review set out on pages 2 to 21 of this Directors’ Report.
In addinion, the Business Review contains a fair review of the
business of the Group, key performance indicators and a descnption
of the pnnapal nsks and uncertainties facing the Group 1n
accordance with the requirements of Sechion 234ZZB of the
Compames Act 1985 as well as further information on employee,
environmental, sooal and community matters, reflecbng the
requirements of Section 417 of the Compantes Act 2006 (due to
come 1nto force on 1 Octeber 2007)

The pnnapal subsidianes of the Company are bsted in note 38 to the
financial statements on page 90

B FINANCIAL RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

Group profit on ordinary acbwvities after taxation was £93 @ million
The Directors recommend a final dmidend of 12 7p per ordinary share
to shareholders on the register on 10 August 2007, making a total for
the year of 18 55p, the cost of which will be £66 0 mithon, leaving a
retaned surplus of £27 9 mlbhon The Business Review on pages

2 to 29 analyses the results in more detail and sets out other finanaal
nformation, 1ncluding the Directors’ opmon on asset values

{page 24)

Bl DIRECTORS

Bob Baty retired as Chief Executive of South West Water Limited and
from the Board on 31 July 2006 Chns Loughlin was appointed as Bob
Baty's successor and as a Director on 1 August 2006

Followang his appointment by the Board, Chns Loughlinis due to

retire and offers imself for elecbon at the Annual General Meeting
Gerard Connellis also due to retire at the Annual Generat Meeting and
offers mmself for re-election In addhtion, as Ken Harvey has now been
a Drector for over nine years, 1n accordance with the Combined Code
he now offers mmself for re-elechion annually Resolubions for the
above Directors’ election or re-election {as appropnate)} will be
proposed at the Annual General Meeting No Dhrector has, or has had, a
materral interest, directly or indirectly, at any time dunng the year
under review 1n any contract sigmficant to the Company’s business

A hist of all the Directors duning the year1s set out n the emoluments
table on page 36 Further details relating to the Drectors and their
service contracts or contracts for services are set out on pages 33 to 39
and details of the Directors’ snterests 1n shares of the Company are
given on pages 38 and 39
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I STATEMENT AS TO DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION
TO AUDITORS

(a) So far as each of the Directors n office at the date of
the sigming of the report are aware, there s no relevant
audit informaton of winch the Company's auditors are
unaware, and

(b} each of the Drectors has taken all the steps each Director
ought to have taken mdmdually as a director in order to
make themselves aware of any relevant audit information
and to establish that the Company's auditors are aware
of that infermation

I FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Details of the finanoal nsk management objechves and pobcies of the
Group and the exposure of the Group to price, credit, hquidity and cash
flow nsks are set out in the Business Review on pages 24 and 25

Il EMPLOYMENT POLICIES AND EMPLOYEE INVOLVEMENT

The Group has a culture of continuous 1mprovement through
nvestmentn pecple at all levels withmn the Group The Group1s
committed to pursuing equality and diversity in all its employment
actwities including recruitment, traiming, career development and
promohon and ensuring there 1s no as or discnmination in the
treatment of people In particular, applications for employment are
welcomed from disabled persons and speqal arrangements and
adjustments as necessary are made to ensure that disabled apphcants
are treated fairly when attending for interview or for pre-employment
aptitude tests Wherever possible, the opportumty s taken to retrain
people who become disabled dunng their employmentin order to
maintain their employment wathin the Group

Employees are consulted regularly about changes which may affect
them exther through their Trade Union appointed representatives or by
means of the elected Staff Counal which operates 1n South West Water
for staff employees These forums, together with regular meetings with
particular groups of employees, are used to ensure that employees are
kept up to date with the operating and financia! performance of their
employer The Group also uses a monthly information cascade process
to provide employees with important and up to date information about
key events

The Group encourages share ownership amongst its employees by
operating both an Inland Revenue approved sharesave scheme and a
Share Incentive Plan

Further information relating to employee matters 15 set outin the
Business Review on pages 9, 10, 18, 19 and 26

B RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

Research and development actvibes within the Group involving water
and waste treatment processes amounted to £0 1 milion dunng the
year (2005/06 £0 1 mlbon)
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B ODONATIONS

Dunng the year, denabons amounting to £49,600 were made

Details relabing to chantable and other donahons will be set out in the
Corporate Responsibility Report which will be available at the end of
July 2007 No pobical donahons were made

M TAXSTATUS

The Company s not a close company witmn the meamng of the Income
and Corporation Taxes Act 1988

I PAYMENTS TO SUPPLIERS

It1s the Group's payment policy for the year ending 31 March 2008 to
follow the Code of The Better Payment Practice Group on supplier
payments Information about the Code can be obtained from

www payontime co uk

The Company will agree payment terms with indvidual suppliers in
advance and abide by such terms The ratio, expressed 1n days,
between the amount invoiced to the Company by its suppliers dunng
2006/07 and the amount owed tots trade crediters at 31 March 2007,
was 17 days

Il PURCHASE OF OWN ORDINARY SHARES

The Company completed the redemption of the outstanding B Shares
for a total of £5 7 million 1n Apnl 2006 Accordingly arca £145 milhon
has now been returned through a B Share1ssue Details of the

B Share Scheme were set outn the Gircular to Shareholders

dated 23 January 2006

The Company has authonty from shareholders to purchase up to
10% of 1ts own ordinary shares (as renewed at the Annual General
Meeting in 2006} which was valid as at 31 March 2007 and remains
currently vabid In connection with the return of cash to shareholders
as set out1n the Qircular to shareholders dated 23 January 2006, the
Company dunng 2006/07 purchased from the market for cancellabon
785,000 {part adjusted for three for one share splt) ordinary shares
(40 7p) at a cost of £3 5 milhon amounting to approximately ¢ 22%
of 1ts1ssued ordinary shares Since the year end the Company has
purchased from the market up to and including 13 June 2007 a
further 376,800 ordinary shares at a cost of £2 35 rmlbon amgunting
to approximately 0 11% of its 1ssued ordinary shares (40 7p)

These shares are held 1n Treasury for the purposes of employee share
schemes In total, as at 13 June 2007, the Company has purchased
1,161,800 (part adjusted for the three for one share split) ordinary
shares (40 7p) at a total cost of £5 82 milhon amounting to
approximately 0 33% of its 1ssued ordinary shares (40 7p)

A total of 459,386 (part adjusted for the three for one share split)
ordwnary shares (40 7p) were also purchased dunng the year by the
Pennon Emptoyee Share Trust, Pennon Share Plans Guemsey Limited,
for the Group Long-Term Incentive Plans The total purchase pnce
was £2 3 mlhon and the shares amounted to approxamately

0 13% cof the Company’s 1ssued ordinary shares (40 7p)

Il SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDINGS

Detanls are set out 1n the Shareholder information section on page 95
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B AUDITORS

PncewaterhouseCoopers LLP were appointed auditors until the
conclusion of the exghteenth Annual General Meeting A resolution
for their re-appointment upon the recommendation of the Audit
Committee of the Board will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting

Il APPOINTED BUSINESS

South West Water Limited s required to publish addhonal finanaal
informabion relating to the ‘appointed business’ as water and sewerage
undertaker1n accordance with the Instrument of Appowntment from the
Secretary of State for the Environment A copy of this infoermation wall
be avaitable from 13 July 2007 upon application to the Company
Secretary at Peminsula House, Rydon Lane, Exeter EX2 7HR

Il ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The exghteenth Annual General Meeting will be held at the Plymouth
Pavilons, Millbay Road, Plymouth, Devon PL1 3LF on 26 July 2007
at 11 00am

In addition to routine business, resolutions wall be proposed at the

Annual General Meeting to

- renew the exasting authonbies to 1ssue a hited number of '
shares and to purchase up to 10% of the 1ssued share capital of .
the Company

- seek authonty to make political donabions under the Political
Parbes, Elechons and Referendums Act 2000

- approve a new long-term incentive plan - the Pennon Group
Performance and Co-ownersmp Plan

- elect Mr C Loughhin as a Director of the Company

- re-elect Messrs K G Harvey and G D Connell as Directors of
the Company

- amend the Articles of Assonabon to prowide further for electromc
commumcations with shareholders and to clanfy the provisions
relating to the retirement and the re-appointment of (irectors.

Details of the resolutions are set out 1n the separate Notice of Annual
General Meeting arculated to shareholders with this Annual Report

By Order of the Boam

KEN WOODIER, Group General Coursel & Company Secretary
22 June 2007




BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Kenneth George Harvey BSc, CEng, 66

Charrman

Was appointed on 1 March 1997 Ken was formerly
chairman and chief executive of Norweb Plc He was
chairman of National Gnd Holdings 1n 1995 and was
previously deputy charman of London Electnaty and
earber its engineenng director He has also been chairman
of a number of himited and pnvate equity funded compames
Currently he s the semor independent non-executive
director of National Gnd Ple

Colin Irwin John Hamilton Drummond

MA, MBA, LTCL, CCMI, 54

Chief Executive, Vindor Limited

Was appointed on 1 Apnl 1992 Pnor tojoimng the
Company Cohn was a divisional chief executive of Coats
Viyella, having previously been corporate development
director of Renold ple, a strategy consultant with the Baston
Consulting Group and an official of the Bank of England
He 15 charman of the Government’s Environmentat Sector
Adwisory Group and chairman of the Sector's Knowledge
Transfer Network and he s also Master of the Worshipful
Company of Water Conservators

David Jeremy Dupont MA, MBA, 53

Group Director of Finance

Was appointed on 2 March 2002 Dawid was formerly
regulatory and finance director of South West Water
Limited, having joined Pennon Group Plc (then South
West Water Plc) 1n 1992 as strategic planmng manager
Previcusly he held business planming and development
roles with Gateway Corporation He1s a member of the CBI
Environmental Affairs Committee and the CBI South West
Regional Counail

Chnistopher Loughlun BSc Hons, MICE, CEng, MBA, 54
Chief Executive, South West Water Limited

Was appointed on 1 August 2006 Chns was most recently
chef operating officer with Lloyd's Register and previously
was an execubve director of British Nuclear Fuels Plc and
executve chairman of Magnox Electric Ple Chns started

s career as a chartered engineer and subsequently held a
number of semor positions with Bntish Nuclear Fuels He
has been appointed vice chairman of Water UK from May 2007

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

Gerard Dorminic Connell MA, 49

Semor Independent Non-executive Director

Was appomnted on 1 October 2003 Gerard 1s currently group
finance director of Wincanton Plc Previously he was a
director of Hill Samuel and a manaqing director of Bankers
Trust and has held other corporate finance and business
development posihons in the Gity and 1 industry

Katharine Mary Hope Mortimer MA, BPhil, 61
Non-executive Director

Was appointed on 1 May 2000 Kate1s currently a

freelance finanoal consultant, a member of the Crown
Agents Foundation Council and a director of Crown Agents
Bank Lirmted She was formerly a director of N M Rothschild
& Sons Limited, director of pohicy at the Secuntes and
Investments Board, chief exacutive of Walker Books and
was a member of the Competition Commission between
1995 and 2001

Dinah Alison Nichols CE, BA Hons, 43

Non-executive Director

Was appointed on 12 June 2003 Dinah was formerly
director general environment at the Department for
Environment, Food and Rural Affairs and previously held
vanous semor appontments within Government
departments including being head of the water directorate
during the penod of water pnvabisabon Shes also a crown
estate commssioner, a non-executive director of Shires
Smaller Compames Plc, chair of the National Forest
Company, a chair of Groundwork North London and a
director of several Trusts

Audnt

Gerard Connell {Chawrman)
Kate Mortimer

Dinah Nichols

Corporate Responsibility [Replaced
Environment 1n November 2005)
Dnah Nichols (Charman)

Gerard Connell

Colin Drummond

Chns Loughlin

Kate Morbmer

Nomination Group General Counsel

Ken Harvey (Chairman) & Company Secretary

Gerard Connell Ken Woodier, Sobator

Kate Morsmer

Dinah Michols Registered office
Pemnsula House,

Remuneration Rydon Lane,

Kate Mortimer {Chanrmany Exeter

Gerard Connell EX2 7HR

Ken Harvey (from 1 June 2007) Registered i England No 2366640

Dwnah Nichols
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Il THE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee compnses three Non-executive
Directors Kate Mortimer, who chairs the Commttee, Gerard Connell
and tnah Nichols They are all regarded by the Company as
mdependent. In addition, with effect from 1 June 2007 the Chasrman
of the Company, Ken Harvey, was apponted a member of the
Commttee This1sn accordance with the latest editon (June 2006)
of the Combined Code, which acknowledges that a company
chairman may alse be a member of a remuneration committee if

he was considered independent upon appointment as chairman

The Committee’s terms of reference includes advising the Board
on the framework of executive remuneration for the Group and
responsibility for deterrmming the remuneration and terms of
engagement of the Chairman, the Executive Directors and semor
management of the Group No Director or any other attendee
parbapates in any discussion on, or deterrination of,

his or her own remuneration

Dunng the year the Committee met on mine occasions and

receved adwvice, or services, that matenally assisted the Commttee
n the consideration of remuneration matters fram Ken Harvey
(Chawrman of the Company) and Ken Woodier {Group General
Counsel & Company Secretary) In addition, the Committee
receved adwice from the following adwisers, who were appointed
directly by the Committee

— independent remuneration adwisors, Delortte & Touche LLP,
on long-term 1ncentive arrangements and remuneration
structure generally,

- Allen and Overy LLP, sohators, n providing legal advice on
pensions They also prowvide corporate legal advice to the Group,
and

- pensions and remuneration consultants, Hewatt Bacon &
Woodrow Limited, on executive pensions and calculating Total
Shareholder Retum for the Company’s Restncted Share Plan
They also provide actuanal and investment pensions advice to
the Group's Pension Trustee

Il GROUP REMUNERATION POLICY

The pobcy of the Group, which will be applied by the Remunerabon
Commttee in 2007 /08 and 15 also currently intended to be apphed
n each subsequent year, continues to be to provide for Executive
Drectors a remuneration package which 1s adequate to attract,
retain and mobivate good quality executives and which1s
commensurate with the remunerabon packages prownded by
compames of simlar size and complexaty The pobicy 1n respect of
Non-executive Directors 15 set out on page 36 1n the Non-executive
Dhrectors’ remuneration sechon

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The remuneration package of the Executive Diractors 1s summansed
below It compnses salary, annual bonus, long-term incentives,
pensions (or benefit in beu), car benefit and health cover

In 2007/08 (subject to fluctuations i the Company's share pnce)

DIRECTORS REMUNERATION REPORT

1t1s expected that around two thirds of Directors’ potental direct
remuneration (1 ¢ excluding pensions, car benefit and heaith
cover) will be performance related (three fifths 1n 2006/07) Its
ntended that this balance between performance related and that
which 15 not related to performance will continue

Bob Baty (who retired on 31 July 2006) was, with the Board’s
consent, a non-executive director of the Royal Devon & Exeter
NHS Trust dunng the year For thms appointment he receved 1n
2006/07 up to the date of s rebrement a fee of £4,000 from
the Trust winch the Board determined he could retain

With effect from 2007/08, 1t 1s the intention of the Commttee

to introduce a shareholding guideline that Executive Directors
and semor management shalt held a substantial personal
shareholding tn the Company Executive Directors and senior
management will be encouraged to build up their shareholding
over a five year penod to a value of at least one times basic salary

(i) Basic salary and benefits — These are set out on page 36

for each Executive Director and are not related to performance
The Comrmttee determines revised salanes, usually on an annual
basis, for Executive Directors based upon surveys generally
available conducted by \ndependent remuneration consultants
and the performance of the indwidual Executive Directors which
the Commttee assesses with the advice of Ken Harvey, Chairman
of the Company In 2006/07 a ngher than usual increase was
made in basic salanes to seek to ensure the retenbion of key
management because 1t was evident to the Committee from the
analysis of independent remuneration consultants’ salary surveys
that, having regard to the size and complexity of the businesses
of the Group compared to other compames within the same or
similar sectors, remuneration of the Executive Directors had fallen
to a significant extent below market practice Gther benefits, not
mentioned below, include contnbutory pension provision {with
four times salary bfe assurance cover) or a cash alternative,

a fully-expensed car (or a cash equivalent alternative) and
health cover

{1i) Performance related bonus - Annual performance related
bonuses are awarded 1n accordance with an Incentive Bonus
Plan for Executive Directors and based on the aclmevement of
overall corporate and indwvidual objectives established by the
Committee The maximum bonus achievable under the Plan for
Executve Directors for 2006/07 was 80% of basic salary with
half of any bonus awarded beingn the form of shares 1n the
Company which must usually be held for a penod of three years
before release Dunng this penod, the Directors, 1n respect of
these shares, are entitled to receive any dvidends declared by
the Company No additonal performance condibons applicable
to the release of these shares, apart from maintaiming
continuous service with the Company, are considered
appropnate by the Committee 1n view of the performance
condibions applicable to achieve the wmtal award of the shares

The maximum bonus achmeveable has been increased to 100%
for 2007 /08 following a review of remuneration by the
Committee, based upon an executive director benchmarking
review undertaken by Delottte & Touche More stretching
performance targets have been introduced in respect of the
ncreased bonus opportumity
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The following corperate and indwrdual objechives of the Executive
Directors apphcable to the performance related bonus award for
2007/08 were determined by the Committee as appropnate having
regard to the achvities of the Group that each indvidual Director
could most influence and also to the overall performance of the
Group, all of which seek to abgn the interests of the Directors wath
those of shareholders (the references to a percentage bonus relate
to a percentage of the annual basic salary of each Executve
Director in 2007/08)

Colin Drummond

— A bonus of up to a maximum of 40% for outperformance of
Group earnings per share aganst budget, up to 40% calculated
by reference to outperformance of the profit before tax and net
debt budgets of Vindor, and up to 20% for personal objectives
relating to key business targets for Vindor

David Bupont

— A bonus of up to a maxamum of 40% for outperformance of
Group earmngs per share against budget, up to 40% for
outperformance against budget relating to net debt and net
nterest of the Group and profit before tax of South West Water
and Vindor, and up to 20% for personal objectives relating to
Group financing and Group imbatives

Chris Loughlin

- A bonus of up to a maximum of 40% for outperformance of
Group earmngs per share against budget, up to 20% for
personal ohjectives relating to implementing South West Water’s
new strateqies, and up to 40% calculated by reference to the
average benus earned by the other Executive Directors of South
West Water (which relate to outperformance aganst the
operating costs, profit before tax and net debt budgets of the
company, the position the company achieves 1n the ‘Overall
Performance Assessment’ of water and sewerage compames
established by the Water Services Requlatory Authonty (WSRA),
and the achevement of a range of service standards set for the
company by the WSRA)

The achevemnents of the Executive Directors against their
indmadual performance objectives are assessed by the Commttee
following the financiat year end when the audited results of the
Company and performance against parameters set are known
This enables the Committee to apply largely objectve entenam
determiming the level of bonus (if any) that should be awarded,
with the advice of the Chairman of the Company, Ken Harvey

(in) Long-Term Incentive Plan - A Restncted Share Plan for
Executive Dhrectors and semor management, as approved by
shareholders at the Annual General Meehing on 29 July 1997,
was operated by the Company dunng the year The Executive
Directors recerved a conditional award of ordinary shares in the
Company up to a value of 75% of their basic salary on the basis
that they provided a matching investment in shares of the
Company (by way of shares they already hold or which they
purchase) 1n the ratio of one investment share for every four
shares awarded The eventual number of shares (:f any) winch the
Directers may recewe, 15 dependent upon the achievement of the
perfarmance condition of the Plan over the restncted penod,
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being not less than three years Dunng the restncted penod the
Directors are entitled to receiwe, 1n respect of the awarded shares,
any dindends declared by the Company Dunng 2006/07 no
awards vested under the Plan for Executive Directors because they
dd not receive any awards 1n 2003 due to the existence of
unpubbished pnce-sensiove informaton at the tme of the
operation of the Plan For each of the years 2004 to 2006 the
performance condibon to be satisfied for at least 50% of the
award to vest was

The total shareholder return (TSR) acheved by the Company in the
performance penod must be greater than that of the company at or
nearest to (but not above) the 50th percentle position of the
comparator group

If the TSR performance condibion s met then 50% of an

award for the yearn quesbon will vest, with 100% of an

award vesting if the Company achieves the posihon equal or
closest to, but not above, the 75th percentile posibon, or a
position above the 75th percentile position of the comparator
group The achevement of a posihon between the 50th and the
75th percentile positions will result in vesting 1n steps reflecting
the number of compames within that third quartile of the
comparator group

The comparator group apphcable for awards made dunng the
year to 31 March 2007 was as follows, with the comparator group
applicable to the award years for 2004/05 and 2005/06 being
simlar in content and s1ze’

awg Plc (now de-listed)

Bnistol Water Holdings Plc (now de-bisted}

Bntish Energy Ple

Centnca Plc

Dee Valley Group Plc

International Power Group Plc

Kelda Pic

National Gnd Plc

Northumbnan Water Group Pic

Pennon Group Plc

Scottish & Southern Energy Plc

Scottish Power Plc (now de-hsted)

Severn Trent Plc

Umted Unhlbihes Plc

Vindian Plc (now de-bsted)

The TSR performance condibon was applied by the Committee
because, based upon adwice recerved previously from remuneration
consultants, Mes, it bebeves that this1s an appropnate measure
to ahgn the interests of the Executive Dhrectors with those of
shareholders In addition, the Committee believes that companng
the TSR of the Company to the other compames i the comparator
group 15 appropnate because the other compames operate in
sectors similar to that of the Company and therefore it 1s possible
to demenstrate supenor performance by the Company 1f 1ts TSR

15 at least gher than 50% of the other companies in the
comparator group




The TSR of each company n the comparator group1s measured
by Hewatt Bacon & Woodrow assuming that all dwdends are
renvested and 15 calculated by taking the average market value
of each company’s shares for the whole of March before the
beginmng of the three year performance penod and companng
this to the average market value of the same shares for the
whole of March at the end of the three year penod The share
pnce1s averaged for the whole of the month of March to avod
any distorbion of the TSR values from any sigmficant daily share
pnce movements dunng the month No retesting of performance
15 permitted for any shares that do not vest after the three year
performance penod and any such shares lapse

As mentioned 1n last year's Annual Report, wath the Plan having
now been operated for 10 years, new long-term incentive
arrangements for Executive Directors and semor management
have been considered by the Remuneration Commttee with
adwice from independent remuneration consultants, Deloitte &
Touche Accordingly, a new Performance and Co-investment Plan
18 bewng proposed to shareholders at this year’s AGM, details of
which are set out in the Notice of Meeting

{1} Other Share Schemes - Executive Directors are entitled to
parbcipate in the Sharesave Scheme Itis an all-employee plan
to which performance conditions do not apply In addition,
Executive Directors are entitled to participate in the Company's
Share Incentive Plan (SIP}, which s also an all-employee plan to
which performance conditions do not apply

(v} Service Agreements — In accordance with Company pobcy,
all Executve Directors have service agreements subject to one
year's notice and which are due to expire when Directors reach
their normal retirement age No provision 1s made for
terrmnation payments under the service agreements Inthe
event of termination by the Company of any Executive Director’s
service agreement, the Board would deterrine what payments
(if any) should be made to the Director depending on the
arcumstances of the termnation The dates of the

agreements are

Bob Baty (retired 31 July 2006)
Colin Drummond

26 February 1996
5 March 1992

2 January 2003
16 May 2006

Dawvid Dupont
Chns Loughlin {apponted 1 August 2006)

(v1) Provision for Pension — With the exception of Chns
Loughbin, Executive Directors partscipate 1n the Pennon

Group Pension Scheme and the Pennon Group Executive
Pension Scheme These are funded defined benefit schemes
Through membership of these schemes, the Executive Directors
were provided with a pension which, dependent on length of
service at normal retirement date, would normally amount to
two thirds of final pensionable pay

For senice to 5 Apnl 2006 an Earmngs Cap apphed in these Schemes
to Cobn Drummond and Dawvid Dupont Both were provided with
additional pension benefits under the unapproved funded
Supplementary Pension Scheme of the Company n order to bring
their pension benefits up to a level which would have been
provided under the other schemes 1f the Earmngs Cap had not
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apphed Execubve Dwrectors included in the unapproved pension
arrangements received payments equivalent to the tax hability
which anses 1n respect of Company contnbutions to the
Supplementary Pension Scheme

Whth effect from 6 Apnl 2006 the Earmings Cap no longer
applied to penston schemes as part of the simpbfication of
taxation of pensions legislation The Remuneration Committee
accordingly decided to provide all of the Directors’ future service
pension benefit above the Earmngs Cap level from the Pennon
Group Executive Pension Scheme The Supplementary Pension
Scheme was therefore closed and the accrued benefits were paid
out to its members tn Apnl 2006

The pensionable pay for Executive Directors consists of the
highest basic salary i any consecutve twelve month penod of
service within five years of retirement Bonuses are notincluded
1n pensionable pay

In lieu of the prowvision of pension benefits, Chns Loughlin
recetves an annual payment equivalent to 30% of his annual
basic salary

In determming remuneration arrangements for Executive
Directors, the Remuneration Commttee gives full consideration
to thewr impact on the pension schemes funds and costs of
providhing indwidual pension arrangements or payments 1n bieu
of pension provision

TOTAL SHAREHOLDER RETURN (TSR] GRAPH

The graph shows the value, over the five year pernod ending 1n
March 2007, of £1001nvested 1n Pennon Group on 31 March
2002 compared with the value of £100 1nvested n the FTSE 250
Index. The other points plotted are the values atntervemng
financial year ends This Index1s considered appropnate as
1115 a broad equity market index of which the Company s

a constituent

Graph here

This graph has been produced wn accordance with Schedule 7A of
the Compames Act 1985
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS AND THE CHAIRMAN

Non-executive Directors’ remuneration (exciuding that of the
Chairman, Ken Harvey) consisting of fees only as set out below, 15
determined by the Board of Directors, including the Chairman, but
1n the absence of the other Non-executive Drectors Itis usually
reviewed bienmally, although since 2003/04 1t has been reviewed
each year to take account of market changes 1n non-executive
directors’ fees ansing from the impact of the Higgs Review on non-
executive directors” dubies and obligations The level of fees was
last reviewed 1n September 2006 In reviewing the fees, the Board
takes into account market information on non-executive directors’
fees, most recently from the Monks Partnership Non-executive
Directors receive a base fee of £30,000 per annum, the Audit,
Remuneration and Corporate Responsibility Committee chairs are
paid fees of £8,500, £6,000 and £6,000 per annum respectively
and Committee members recerve £3,500 each The pobcy to be
appledin 2007/08 (which 1s also currently intended to be applied
1n each subsequent year) continues to be to set fees around the

The dates of the Non-executive Directors’ contracts are

Director Date of contract

Gerard Connell 30 September 2003
Kate Mortimer 19 March 2005
Mnah Nichols 10 June 2003

mechan level compared to the market, which the Board bebeves 1s
appropnate to attract and retain suitably expenenced non-
executive directors

The Chairman’s remuneration 1s set by the Remuneration
Committee and was reviewed after two years in Apnl 2007

The policy of the Committee to be applied 1n 2007/08 (which 15
also currently intended to be appbied 1n each subseguent year)1s
the same as that of the Executve Directors 1n reviewing the fees of
the Non-executive Directors In addition to a fee (determined with
the advice of and market information from Deloitte & Touche) the
Chairman recewves a fully-expensed car benefit and health cover
No other benefits or remuneration are recerved by the Chairman

The Non-executive Directors (excluding the Chairman) have
contracts for services setting out thewr terms and condihons of
appowntment which are subject to the Arbcles of Association of the
Company and which may be extended by agreement between the
Company and the Non-executive Dnrectors No prowvision 1s made
for any termination payment under these contracts

Expiry of contract

30 September 2009
30 Apnl 2009
11 June 2009

The Chawrman, Ken Harvey, has a contract for services dated 1 Apnl 2005, which 1s subject to 12 menths’ notice to provide the Company
with reasonable secunty with regard to tns ongoing serice No provision 1s made for any terrmination payments under this contract

The contracts for services of the Chairman and the Non-executive Directors reflect corporate governance best practice and,
together with the Executive Directors” service contracts, are available for inspection at the Company’s registered office dunng normal

business hours

The information set out below and on the remaimng pages of ths Remuneration Report (pages 37 to39) has been audrted by

PncewaterhouseCoopers LLP

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS

The Emoluments of indmidual Directors are shown in the table below

Parformance related

Payments related to
supplementary

bonhus Other pension

Director Salary/fees payablet emoluments*  (orin heu of pensiontt) Total 2007 Total 2006

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Charrman
Ken Harvey 175 - 21 - 196 195
Executive Directors
Bob Baty (Retrred 31 July 2006) 93 24 5 - 122 289
Cobin Drummond 275 107 22 57 461 397
Dawtd Dupont 275 102 19 43 439 368
Chns Loughlin (Apponted 1 August 2006} 160 53 66 4t 327 -
Non-executwe Directors
Gerard Connell 43 - - - 43 38
Kate Mortimer 41 - - - 41 36
Dinah Nichals 39 - - - 39 34
Total 1,101 286 133 148 1,668 1,358
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EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS (continued)

L3

Other emoluments are car benefit and health cover and £55,000 of relocabon costs and expenses paid to Chns Loughlin consequent on
s appointment

t Inaddibon to the performance related cash bonus, Executive Directors are due to receive a conditionat award of shares as referred to
n a note to {c) ‘Incentive Bonus Plan — Deferred Shares {long-term incentve element)’ on page 39

tt In lbeu of any pension provision by the Company, Chns Loughlin receives a cash payment equivalent to 30% of s annual basic salary

No expense allowances chargeable to tax or terminabon or compensahon payments were made durng the year

DIRECTORS® PENSIONS

Defined benefit pensions accrued and payable on retirement for Directors holding office dunng 2006/07 are shown 1n the table below

Increase n Increasen increase in Transfer value

accrued pension accrued Accrued Transfer Transfer transfer value of Column a

dunng 2006/07 pension penson at value at valeat  (net of Dwrectors (et of Directors

{net of 1nflation) dunng 2006/07 31 March 2007 31 March 2007 31 March 2006 contnbetions) contnbubons)

hrector £000 £000 £000 £000 100G £000 £000
8 b ¢ d 4 f [

Bob Baty (Retired 31 July 2006) * -29 -22 136 2,467 3,016 -554 -523
Colin Drummond 6 10 50 1,967 1,488 453 115
Dawid Dupont 10 13 80 1,511 1,076 419 167

Column a above 15 the increase 1n accrued pension dunng 2006/07 (net of inflation) It recogmses
1 the accrual rate for the addibonal penod’s senice based upon the pensienable pay at the end of the penod, and
1 the effect of pay changes in real terms (net of inflabion) upon the accrued pension at the start of the year
Cotumn b1s the actual increase i accrued pension dunng 2006/07
Column ¢s the accrued pension at 31 March 2007 payable at normal reirement age.
Column d15 the transfer value of the accrued pension set outin column ¢ as at 31 March 2007
Column e 15 the transfer value of the accrued penston at the end of the previous finanaal year on 31 March 2006
Column f 1s the increase tn the transfer value dunng the year (column 4 mnus column e} after deducting Directors’ contnbutions
Column g 1s the transfer value of cotlumn a, less Directors’ contnbutions
Columns d, e, fand g have been calculated 1n accordance with Actuanal Guidance Note GN11

*Bob Baty retired on 31 July 2006 To comply with Compames Act requiremants, the change in accrued benefit over the whole yearis
shown A decrease in the value of is pension 1s shown because, 1n accordance with the provisions of the pension scheme, Bob Baty
took a lump sum and his pension 1 payment was commuted accordingly

Under the Company’s pension salary deduction arrangements, the Company pays all pension scheme members’ contnbutiens to the
Group pension schemes and salanes are reduced by the same amount The figures quoted above have not been adjusted to reflect
this arrangement

The Supplementary Pension Scheme, which mainly funded pension provision above the Earmngs Cap, provided benefits in tax-pard lump
sum form at rebrement Appropnate figures have been included mn the accrued pension totals shown above At the beginming of the
year, the Supplementary Pension Scheme was closed by the Company and the accrued pension provision in the Scheme was paid out to
the two remaiming members of the Scheme Future pension service benefit above the Earmings Cap level s bewng provided in the Pennon
Group Execubive Pension Scheme as descriibed 1n () ‘Provisson for Pension” on page 35

Directors have the option to pay addihonal voluntary contnbubons, neither the contnbutions nor the resulting benefits are included 1n
the table shown above
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DIRECTORS’ SHARE INTERESTS

(a) Shareholdings

The number of ardinary shares of the Company in which Directors held benefical interests at 31 March 2007 (or date of retirement
where earlier) and 31 March 2006 were

2007 2006 2006 2006 2007 2006 2006 2006

Ordinary shares! B Shares Deferred shares*  Crdinary shares Ordinary shares! B Shares*  Deferred shares*  Ordwary shares

hrecter (40 Tpeach)  (110p each) {110peach) {1221/ qp each) Drector (40 Tpeich)  (110peach) (110p each} (1221/4p each)

Bob Baty 175,905 111,785 - 55,145 Ken Harvey 7,209 - - 2,403

(Retired 31 July 2006} Kate Mortymer 1,951 - - 250

Gerard Connell - - - - Dnah Nichols - - - -

Colin Drummond 125,043 7,900 24,562 35,541 Chns Loughlin 9,734 - - -
Dawid Dupont 99,655 26,330 33,644 29,882 (Apponited 1 August 2006)

1 On 31 July 2006 the Company's share capital was spht such that each then exasting 122 Yiop ordinary share was dmaded wnto three new ordinary
shares of 40 7p each

* On 6 Apnl 2006 all the Deferred shares were redeemed for mlvalue and all the B Shares were redeemed for 110p each, all pursuant to the

B Share Scheme approved by shareholders at the Extraordinary General Meetang on 15 February 2006 as part of a return of cash to shareholders

Additronal ordinary shares (40 7p each) have been acquired by the Directors since 31 March 2007 as follows as a result of participation 1n the
Company’s Dividend Re-1nvestment Plan, Personal Equnty Plans, Indmdual Savings Accounts or the Company’s Share Incentve Plan

Colin Drummond 110 Dawvid Dupont 35 Chns Loughlin 132 Kate Mortimer 7

There have been no other changes in the benefioal interests or the non-beneficial interests of the Directors in the ordinary shares of
the Company between 1 Apnl 2007 and 30 May 2007

(b] Restricted Share Plan [Long-Term Incentive Plan)

In addibon to the above benefinial interests, the following Directors have or had a contingent nterest in the number of 40 7p ordinary
shares shown below, representing the maximum number of shares to which they would become entitled under the Group’s Long-Term
Incentive Plan with the relevant cntenon (as descnbed i (m) ‘Long-Term Incentive Plan’ on page 34) being met 1n full

Condiiomal Condional Value of shares Conditionat Date of end of
awards awards Market pne upon vesting awards  penad for quabifying

Dhrector and date held at made 1n upon award Vesting in (before tax) held at condition to be
of award 1 Apnil 2006 year n year year £ 31 March 2007 futfilled
Bob Baty (Ret:red 31 Jt.tfy 2006)
16/9/04 t 101,070 - 269 83p - - 64,573* 15/9/07
27/9/05t 40,140 - 356 67p - - 12,266* 26/9/08
Cobin Drummend
16/9/04 | 101,070 - 269 83p - - 101,070 15/9/07
27/9/05 t 40,140 - 356 67p - - 40,140 26/9/08
18/9/06 - 41,363 498 62p - - 41,075 17/9/09
David Qupont
16/9/04' 96,015 - 269 83p - - 96,015 15/9/07
27/9/051 40,140 - 356 67p - - 40,140 26/9/08
18/9/06 - 41,363 498 62p - - 41,075 17/9/09
Chns Loughbin
18/9/06 - 36,099 498 62p - - 35,847 17/9/09

* The outstanding awards made to Bob Baty were reduced upon his retirement an 31 July 2006 pro-rata te s penod of employment
with the Company dunng the restncted penod of each award

t The amount of the awards (and the market pnce upon award) for the awards made on 16/9/04 and 27/9/05 have been adjusted n the
ratio three for one consequent upon the Company’s share capital sphit on 31 July 2006.

Because of the existence of unpublished pnce sensitive information, no award was made dunng 2003 to the Executive directors
Accordingly, with shareholders” approval, the usual award was made in 2004 together with a further award of shares equivalent to 75%
of basic salary Itis anhapated that some {but not all} of this award will vest 1n September 2007 as the performance cntenon has been
parbally met

Dunng the year, the Directors recewved divadends on the above shares 1n accordance with the conditions of the Restncted Share Plan,
as follows Bob Baty £24,289, Colin Drummond £24,289, Dawvid Dupont £23,419
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DIRECTORS’ SHARE INTERESTS (continued)

(c) Incentive Bonus Plan - Deferred Shares (long-term incentive element]

In addition to the above share interests, the following Directors have or had a contingent interest in the number of ordinary shares
shown below, representing the total number of shares to which they have (or would) become entitled under the Group element of the
Incentive Bonus Plan (the Plan) at the end of the relevant quabfying penod

Conditional Conditienal Value of shares Conditional Date of end of
awards awards Market pnce cpon veshng awards penod for qualifyng

Director and date held at made 1n upon award Vesting in {before tax) held at condition to be
of award 1 Apnl 2006 year m year year £ 31 March 2007 fulfilled
Bob Baty (Retred 31 July 2006)
25/7/03 5,850 - 652 00p 5,850* 84,883 - -
28/6/04 H 17,076 - 259 50p 17,076t 80,940 - -
10/8/05 14 20,397 - 328 00p 20,3971 96,682 - -
26/1/06 Tt - 13,395 486 00p 13,3951 63,492 - -
Cobin Drummond
25/7/03 7,263 - 652 00p 7,263* 105,386 - -
28/6/04 11 20,670 - 259 50p - - 20,670 21/6/07 !
10/8/05 n 18,843 - 328 00p - - 18,843 9/8/08
26/7/06 H 16,527 486 00p - - 16,527 25/1709
Dawid Dupont
25/7/03 5,587 - 652 00p 5,587 81,067 - -
28/6/04 ft 15,909 - 259 50p - - 15,909 27/6/07
10/8/05 tt 18,606 - 328 0Cp - - 18,606 9/8/08
26/7/06 tt 16,095 486 Q0p - - 16,095 25/7/09

* The July 2003 award vested on 24 July 2006 at a pnce of 1,451p

1 Upon the retirement of Bob Baty from the Company on 31 July 2006, the Remuneration Committee agreed that it was appropnate to
release all the outstanding Deferred Bonus shares to him early as perrtted by the terms of the Plan These shares were accordingly
released as at 14 August 2006 at a pnce of 474p per share

t1 The amount of the awards made on 28/6/04, 10/8/05 and 26/7/06 have been adjusted 1n the ratio three for one cansequent upon
the Company’s share camital spbit on 31 July 2006 and are each of nominal vaiue 40 7p The 25/7/03 award vested pnor to the share
capital split and consequently the shares were each of nominal value 1221/10p-

A further condibional award of shares will be made in 2007/08 to the value of the amount of the performance related cash honus shown
1n the Emoluments of Directors table on page 36 (Paragraph (1) on page 33 sets out the provisions relabing to the condibonal award of
shares pursuant to the Plan) |

Dunng the year, the Directors recerved divadends on the above shares in accordance with the conditions of the long term incentve
element of the Plan as follows* Bob Baty £3,026, Colin Drummond £9,929, David Dupont £8,741

Itis anhopated that all of the shares will vest under the 28/6/04 award \n 2007/08 as the cntenon s expected to be met
[d) Sharesave Scheme
Details of options to subscnbe for shares of the Company under the all-employee Sharesave Scheme were

Director and Cptrons held Granted Exercised Exerase Market price Options held Exertise penod/
date of grant at 1 Apnl 2006* 0 year n year pnee* onexercsing  at 31 March 2007 matunty date
Bob Baty (Retired 31 July 2006)

8/7/03 3,141 - 3,141 176 66p 471 30p - -
Cohn Drummond

8/7/03 5,235 ~ 5,235 176 66p 47130p - -
4/7/06 - 2,613 - 357 667 - 2,613 1/9/09 - 28/2/10
Dawvid Dupont

9/7/02 8,772 - - 188 67p - 8,772 1/9/07 -29/2/08

*The options held and the exercise pnce have been adjusted for the three for one share split on 31 July 2006

(f) Share price
The market pnce of the Company’s shares at 31 March 2007 was 584 50p (2006 447 00p*) and the range duning the year was 408 33p
to 584 50p* (2006 315 67p to 476 33p*)

* Adjusted for the three for one share split on 31 July 2006

By Order of the Board%ﬁ N -~

KEN WOODIER, Group General Counsel & Lompany Secretary

22 June 2007
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL

B COMPLIANCE

The Board 1s commtted to the mghest standards of corporate
governance with the aim of contnuing to enhance its effectiveness
The Annual Report 1s the pnnapal means of reporting to
shareholders on the Board’'s governance pohicies This section

sets out how the main and supporting pninaiples of good corporate
governance contaned in Section 1 of the Combined Code {pre-June
2006 version) have been apphed by the Company in practice

The Company considers that 1t has complied with the provisions
of the Code throughout the year

I THE BOARD AND ITS COMMITTEES

The Board of Directors at the end of the year compnsed the
Chairman, three Executive Directors and three Non-executive
Directors  All of the Non-executive Directors are considered to be
wdependent and Gerard Connellis the Semor independent Non-
executive Dhrector The biographies on page 32 demonstrate a
broad range of business and financal expenence There1s a clear
dwvision of responsitnlities between the roles of Chairman and the
Chief Executives of South West Water and Vindor as recorded n the
descnptions of the roles approved by the Board All Directors are
subject to re-elechion when they have held office for three years

Dunng the year, the Board met in accordance with 1ts schedule of
meetings on ten occasions At each meehing, all Directors were
present with the exception of Colin Drummond on one occasion

In accordance with Group Policy, the Board has a schedule of matters
reserved for its deaision and delegates more detailed consideration
of certain matters to Board Committees, to the subsichary boards of
South West Water and Vindor, to the Executive Directors, and to the
Group General Counsel & Company Secretary, as appropnate
Recogmising this policy, the matters reserved to the Board mclude
the approval of financal statements, acquisitions and disposals,
major items of capital expenditure, authonty levels for other
expenditure, nsk management and approval of the Strateqic Plan
and annual operating budgets The Board operates by receming
wnitten reports arculated 1 advance from the Executive Directors
and the Group General Counsel & Company Secretary on matters
within their respechve business areas i the Group Under the
gurdance of the Chairman, all matters before the Board are dhscussed
openly and presentations and adwvice are receved on occasions from
other semor executives within the Group or from external advisers

Directors have access to the advice and services of the Group
General Counsel & Company Secretary and the Board has
established a procedure whereby hrectors, 1n order to fulfil
their dubes, may seek independent professional adwice at the
Company's expense The traimng needs of Drectors are reviewed
on a reqular basis

The Board has an internal procedure to evaluate the performance
of the whole Board, each Committee, the Chairman, each indwidual
Director and the Group General Counsel & Company Secretary

This evaluation procedure was adminstered for the year by the
Group General Counsel & Company Secretary seelang all parhicipants’
views on a range of prescnbed questions designed to ensure
objectve evaluation of performance The partiaipants’
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responses were then summansed and evaluated by the Group
General Counsel & Company Secretary for the Board to consider
and determine whether any changes were necessary for the Board
to be more effechve Overall performance was considered to be
satisfactory but a number of minor 13sues were 1dentified where
changes could be made to improve performance including, for
example, more visits by the Board to strateqic business tocations
of the Group wathin the UK to gamn addihonal understanding of
new developments The Chairman’s performance was evaluated
separately by the Non-execubive Directors, led by the Semor
Independent Non-executive Director The Chairman’s other
sigmficant commitments outside the Group have not changed
dunng the year and the Board 1s sabisfied that such commitments
do not prejudice the Chawrman’s performance 1n relation to s
Group role

All Directors are equally accountable for the proper stewardship
of the Group’s affairs with the Non-executive Directors having a
particular responsibility for ensunng that strateqies proposed for
the development of the business are cnbically reviewed The Non-
executive Directors also crntically examine the operational and
finanoial performance of the Group and fulfil 2 key rolen
corporate accountablity through their membership of the
Commuttees of the Board. In addition, the Charman dunng the
year holds meetings with the Non-executive Directors without
the Executve Directors present, to discuss performance and
strateqic i1ssues

Group Policy allocates the tasks of giving detailed consideration
to speaified matters, to momtorning executive actions and to
assessing reward, to the Board Committees as set out below

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was chaired by Gerard Connell, who has
current and relevant finanaal expenence, and the other
members of the Commttee were Kate Mortimer and Dinah Nichols
Dunng the year, the Committee met on five occasions and all
members were present at each meeting In discharging its Terms
of Reference, the Commttee recewves reports and meets regularly
m particular to

- monmitor the integnty of the finanaal statements of the Group,
mcludhng a review of sigmficant reporting judgements, pror
to approval by the Board,

- keep under review the effechiveness of the Group’s nternal
controls, including all matenal finanoal, operabonal and
comphance controls and nsk management systems,

~ momtor and review the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
audit function and approve the annual internal audit plan,

- review the findings of the internal audit function and review
and momtor management’s responsiveness to such findings,

- oversee the relabonship with the external auditors including
their remuneration, appointment, re-appointment and
removal and in addibon momitor their independence and
objectivity including the supply of hon-audit services, and

- recewenternal control reports from the external auditors and
meet with them in the absence of management at least once a
year to discuss thewr remit and any 1ssues ansing from the audit.

In addition, the Cemmittee penodically reviews the arrangements
for, and the effectiveness of, the Group’s “Whistleblowing
Policies” (details of which are set out on page 26 of the

Business Review)



The Committee pays parbicular attention to the independence
and objechwity of the auditors and has estabbshed a pohicy for
the engagement of the audtors for non-audit work by the
Group Thisnvolves the Group Director of Finance setting outin
a report to the Committee reasons for apponbing the auditors
for any matenal work and obtaiming the approval of the
Commttee to such appointment which the Commttee will only
grantafitis satisfied that the auditors” independence and
objectivity are safequarded This s achieved by reviewang the
appomntment with the auditors as considered appropnate and
recewing from the auditors at the year end a letter sethng out
how the auditors believe their independence and objectivity
have been maintawned In addihon, the Company’s current
auditors ensure that the semor partner responsible for the
external audit of the Group remains responsible for such audit
for no more than five years and that there 1s an independent
partner who s wvolved 1n planmng and in the reviewing of the
final accounts of the Company and also any cntical matters that
may be rdentified 1n the audit Details of audit and nen-audit
fees are contained n note 6 to the financial statements on
page 61 The Executive Directors, the audhtors, the Group
Finanaal Controller and the Company's internal auditor attend
meetings of the Committee by invitation In addition, both the
external and internal auditors have the nght of direct access to
the Commttee without the presence of any Executive Director

At the beginming of the year a review of the provision of external
audit sennces was completed following the consideration of
submissions and presentations from a number of audit firms on
their proposals for audit services Following this review, as
recommended by the Committee, PncewaterhouseCoopers LLP
was appointed at the Annual General Meeting last year to
continue as the auditors of the Group

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was chaired by Kate Morbmer
Gerard Connell and Dinah Nichols were the other members of the
Commttee The Commttee met on mne occasions dunng the
year at which all members were present with the exception of
Dinah Michols on one occasion The Committee 1s responsible for
determming the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
Chairman and the remuneration and terms of employment of the
Executive Directors and semor management of the Group
Members of the Remuneration Committee do not participate 1n
deasions concerming thew own remuneration The Directors’
report on remunerabion, which also provides more wnformation
on the activiies of the Remuneration Committee, appears on
pages 33 to 39

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Normination Commuttee was chaired by Ken Harvey and

also compnsed Kate Mortimer, Dnah Nichols and Gerard
Connell It meets as and when required to select and recommend
to the Board suitable candidates for appointment as Executve
and Non-executive Directors, deternine the nomination process
and review succession plans Dunng the year it met on three
occastons {at which all members were present with the
excephon of Kate Morbimer and Dwnah Nichols each on one
occasion) to consider the annual performance evaluation
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results for the Committee, to finabise the appointment of an
Executive Director, to consider the appointment of a semor
execubve, and to consider the appointment for a third three
year term of two Non-executve Directors

CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY/
ENVIRONMENT COMMITTEE

The Enwironment Committee was chaired by Bruce Hewett

(a co-opted member and former Non-executive Director of the
Company) and also compnsed the Cef Executives of South West
Water and Vindor The Committee met three times dunng the
year with all members present. In November 2006, the Committee
was formally disbanded and 1ts functions were subsumed nta the
newly formed Corporate Responsibility Committee

This new Committee was chaired by Dinah Nichols and also
compnses Gerard Connell and Kate Mortimer and the Chief
Executives of South West Water and Vindor It met on two
occasions towards the end of 2006/07 at which all members
were present The Committee's duties, 1n the context of the
requirement for compames to conduct their businessn a
responsible manner (including in relation to environmental,
social and governance (ESG) matters), are to review the
strateqes, pohcies, management, imtiatives, targets and
performance of the Pennon Group of compamies 1n the areas of
occupational health and safety and secunty, environment,
workplace pobaies, corporate pohaes, non-financal regulatory
comphance and the role of the Group 1n society

In reporhing on corporate responsibibity, the Company has
sought to comply with the Assocation of British Insurers’
Gundebines on Responsible Investment Disclosure The Bustness
Review on page 26 contains details of ESG matters and
addibonal information 1s contained 1n the Group’s annual report
on corporate responsimbity for emvironmental and soaal issues
The 2007 report will be availabie from the Company Secretary
from the end of July 2007 and will also be set out on the
Company's website at www pennon-group co uk

COMMITTEES' TERMS OF REFERENCE

The Terms of Reference of the Audit, Remuneration, Norminahon
and Corporate Responsibihty Committees are available upon
request to the Company Secretary and are also set out on the
Company's website at www pennon-group co uk

B INTERNAL CONTROL

Wider aspects of internal control

The Board 15 responsible for the Group's system of internal
control and for reviewing 1ts effectiveness The system 15 designed
to manage rather than ehminate the nsk of failure to acheve
business objectives and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against matenal msstatement or loss

There 1 an ongoing process for denbfinng, evaluating and
managing the sigmficant nsks faced by the Group that has been
n place throughout the year 2006/07 and up to the date of

the approval of th1s Annual Report and Accounts The Board
confirms that it continues to apply procedures 1n accordance
with the Comned Code and the *Gurdance on Internal Control’
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(The Tumbull Guidance) whnch suggests means of applying the nternal
control part of the Code As part of these procedures, the Board hasa
formabised nsk management pobicy which provides for the identificabon
of key nsks 1n relation to the achievement of the business objectives of
the Group This policy 1s applied by all business units within the Group in
accordance with an annual timetable

Risk identification

A full nsk and control assessment 1s undertaken annually by the
management of each business to idenbfy finanoal and non-finanaal
nsks and 1s continuously updated Each business compiles (as part

of1ts regular management reports) an enhanced and focused assessment
of key nsks aganst corporate objectives The Board at each meeting
recewes from Execute Directors details of any new mgh-level nsks
dentfied and how they are to be managed, together with details of any
changes to existing nsks and their management The subsidiary Boards
of South West Water and Vindor also receve at each meeting similar
reports 1n respect of thewr own areas of responsibility All semor
managers are required to cerbfy on an annual basis that they have
established effective controls to manage nsks and to operate in
comphance with leqislation and Group procedures Ali of these processes
serve to ensure that a culture of effective control and nsk management
15 embedded wittin the orgamsation and that the Group 15 1n a postion
to react appropnately to new nsks as they anse Details of key nsks
affecting the Group are set out in the Business Review on pages 10 to 13,
19to 21and 27

Internal centrol framework
As well as the nsk management policy of the Group there1s an
estabbshed internal control framewark which compnses

(2) aclearly defined structure which delegates an appropnate level of
authonty, responsibnlity and accountabnbity, including responsibility
for internal finanoal control, to management of operating units,

(b) acomprehensive budgeting and reporting function with an annual
budget approved by the Board of Dwectors, which also momtors monthly
achmeved results and updated forecasts for the year against budget,

(¢) documented financial control procedures Managers of operating
units are required to confirm annually that they have adequate
finanaal controls 1 operation and to report all matenal areas of
financal nsk Complance with procedures 1s reviewed by the
Company's internal audit function, and

(d) annvestment appraisal process for evaluating propoesals for all
major capital expenditure and acquisiions, with defined levels of
approvaland a system for momtonng the progress of capital projects

Internal control review

An evaluation of the effectiveness of overail intemal control
comphance by the Group 1s undertaken 1n respect of each calendar
year to asgist the Audit Commuttee 1n considenng the Group internal
audst plan for the forthcoming finanoal year and also the Business
Rewview for the Annual Report. The Group General Counsel & Company
Secretary ymtally carnes out the review with Dhrectors and semor
management, for considerabon by the Audit Commttee and
subseguentty for final evaluabion by the Board

In addibien, the Audit Commttee regularly reviews the operation

and effectiveness of the internal control framework and also annually
reviews the scope of work, authonty and resources of the Company’s
internal audit function and reports to the Board on such reviews

For 2006 and up to the date of the approval of the Annual Report

and Accounts, both the Audit Commttee and the Board were satisfied
with the effechiveness of the nsk management policy and the

nternal control framework and their operation wathin the Group
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B GOING CONCERN

The Drectors consider, after making appropnate enguines, that the
Company and the Group have adequate resources to continue 1n operational
existence for the foreseeable future Forthis reason they conbinue to
adopt the gong concern basis in prepanng the financial statements

M DIRECTORS’ RESPONS!BILITIES STATEMENT

The Mrectors are responsible for prepanng the Annual Report, the
Mrectors” remuneration report and the financial statements in accordance
with applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare finanoal statements for
each financial year Under that law the Directors have prepared the Group
and Company financal statements 1n accordance wath International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the European Umon
The finanoal statements are required by law to give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group and the Company and of the profit or loss
of the Group for the year

In prepanng these finanoal statements the Directors are required to

- select suttable accounting polices and then apply them consistently

- makejudgements and esbmates that are reasenable and prudent

- state that the financal statements comply with IFRS as adopted by
the European Umon

The Drrectors confirm that they have comphed with the above
reguirements i prepanng the finanaal statements

The Drectors are respensible for keeping proper accounting records that
dhsclose with reasonable accuragy at any time the finanoal positton of the
Group and the Company and to enable them te ensure that the financal
statements and the Directors’ remuneration report comply with the
Compames Act 1985 and, as regards the Group financal statements,
article 4 of the IAS Regulabon They are also responsible for safeguarding
the assets of the Group and the Company and hence for taking reasonable
steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and otherimegulanties

I RELATIONS WiTH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company maintains a reqular dialogue with its institubional
shareholders and has a comprehensive investor relations programme
Dunng the year, meetings with institutional shareholders were held and
attended by the Group Director of Finance and the Company's Investor
Relahons Manager On certawn occasions the Chairman, the Chief
Executive of South West Water and the Chief Executive of Vindor also
attended The Board encourages the parhapation of shareholders at the
Annual General Meeting and comples with the provisions of the
Combined Code 1n respect of relabions with shareholders In parhicular,
Non-executive Directors are invited to attend meetings with institutional
shareholders and analysts’ and brokers’ bnefings The Group Director of
Finance reports to the Board reqularly on major shareholders’ views
about the Company Further, surveys of shareholder opimon conducted,
usually on an annual basis, are evaluated and reported on to the Board

The Group was awarded Overall Winner (man market) for its
commumecation skalls in the South West Financal and Corporate
Commumications Awards 2006

By Order of the BOGW%
KEN WOODIER, Group General Coun ompany Secretary
22 June 2007



I 'NDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT TO THE
MEMBERS OF PENNON GROUP PLC

We have audited the Group and Company finanaal statements
(the “financial statements”) of Pennon Group Pl¢ for the year
ended 31 March 2007 which compnse the Group income
statement, the Group statement of recogmsed income

and expense, the Company statement of recogmsed income and
expense, the Group balance sheet, the Company balance sheet,
the Group cash flow statement, the Company cash flow statement
and the related notes These financial statements have been
prepared under the accounting pohoes set out therein We have
also audited the information 1n the Directors’ remuneration report
that1s described as having been audited

I RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF
DIRECTORS AND AUDITORS

The Directors’ responsinlities for prepanng the Annual Report,
the Drectors’ remuneration report and the finanoal statements
1n accordance with applicable law and Internabonal Finanoal
Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the European Union are
set outin the Directors’ responsiilities statement

Our responsibility 15 to audit the finanoal statements and the part
of the Directors’ remuneration report to be audited 1n accordance
with relevant legal and requlatory requirements and International
Standards on Audihng {UK and Ireland) This report, including
the opimon, has been prepared for and only for the Company's
members as a body 1n accordance with Section 235 of the
Compames Act 1985 and for no other purpose We do not, 1n
gming this opymion, accept or assume responsimbity for any other
purpose or to any other person te whom this report 15 shown
orinto whose hands 1t may come save where expressly agreed

by our pnor consent in wnting

We report to you our opimion as to whether the financial
statements qive a true and fair view and whether the finanaal
statements and the part of the Directors” remuneration report

to be audited have been properly prepared sn accordance with
the Compames Act 1985 and, as regards the Group financial
statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulabion We also report to you
whether in our opinion the information gven in the Directors’
report 15 consistent with the financial statements

In addrhon we report to youf, in our opimion, the Company has
not kept proper accounting records, if we have not recewed all
the nformation and explanations we require for our audit, orf
wformation speaified by law regarding Directors’ remuneration
and other transactions 1s not disclosed

We review whether the Corporate governance statement reflects
the Company’s comphance with the mne provisiens of the
Combined Code (2003) speafied for our review by the Listing
Rules of the Finanaial Services Authonty, and we repart 1f 1t does
not We are not required to consider whether the Board's
statements on internal control cover all nsks and controls,

or form an opimion on the effectiveness of the Group's corporate
governance procedures orits nsk and control procedures
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We read other information contained in the Annual Report
and consider whether it 15 consistent with the audited
financial statements The other information compnses only
the Chairman’s statement, the Chief Executives’ overviews, the
Business review, the Directors’ report, the audited part of the
Directors’ remuneration report and the Corporate governance
statement We consider the imphications for our report 1f

we become aware of any apparent misstatements or

matenal nconsistenaes with the financial statements

Our responsimbities do not extend to any other information

B BASIS OF AUDIT OPINION

We conducted our audit 1n accordance with International
Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) issued by the Audibng
Prachces Board An auditincludes examination, on a test basis, of
evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures 1n the finanoal
statements and the part of the Directors’ remuneration report to
be audited Italscincludes an assessment of the sigmficant
estimates and judgments made by the Directors 1n the preparation
of the financal statements, and of whether the accounting pohaes
are appropnate to the Group's and Company's arcumstances,
consistently apphied and adequately disclosed

We planned and performed our audit 5o as to obtan all the
nformation and explanations which we considered necessary

n order to provide us with sufficient evidence to qive reasonable
assurance that the finanoal statements and the part of the
Directors” remuneration report to be audited are free from matenal
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregulanty or
error In forming our opimon we also evaluated the overall
adequacy of the presentation of information n the finanoal
statements and the part of the Directors’ remuneration report

to be audited

H oPINION

In our opimon

~ the Group finanaal statements give a true and fair view, 1n
accordance with IFRS as adopted by the European Umon, of the
state of the Group's affairs as at 31 March 2007 and of 1ts profit
and cash flows for the year then ended,

~ the Company finanoal statements give a true and fair view, 1n
accordance with IFRS as adopted by the European Union as
appled 1n accordance with the provisions of the Compames Act
1985, of the state of the Company's affairs as at 31 March 2007
and cash flows for the year then ended,

- thefinancal statements and the part of the Directors’
remuneration report to be audited have been properly prepared
n accordance with the Compames Act 1985 and, as regards the
Group financial statements, Arhicle 4 of the IAS Regulation, and

— thewformation gven in the Directors’ report 1s consistent with
the finanoal statements

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Chartered Accountants,arq Registered Auditors
Bristol L p
22 June 2007 ”J é C Z
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GROUP INCOME STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2007

Before Exceptional

exceptional items.

tems (note 9) Total

2007 2006 2006 2006

Notes £m £m £m £m

Revenue 5 748 3 6457 - 6457

Operating costs 6
Manpower costs (91 0) (799) - (799)
Raw matenals and consumables used (47 2) (40 7) - (40 7)
Other operating expenses (294.6) (245 9) (14 5) {260 4)
Depreciabion {113 7) (102 5) - {102 5)
Amorbsation of intangibles (18) {16} - (16)
Cperating profit 5 200.0 1751 (14 5) 160 6
Interest payable and simlar charges 7 (98 3) (96 8) (50 2) (147 0)
Interest recevable 7 29,1 325 79 40 4
Share of post-tax profit from jont ventures 0.3 01 - 01
Profit before tax 5 1311 110 9 (56 8) 541
Tax on ordwnary activibes 8 {37.2} (350) 187 (16 3)
Profit for the year 939 759 (38 1) 378
Profit attnbutable to equity shareholders 93.9 759 (38 1) 78
Earmngs per share {pence per share}* 11

- Basic 265 99

- Dluted 26.3 98
Proposed diidend per share (pence per share)* 12 18 55 172
Proposed dividend for the year (£m) 12 66.0 610

All operating achivities are continuing operations

* The earmings per share and dwidend per share for March 2006 have been restated to reflect the sub-division of the Company's
ordinary shares by way of a three for one split on 31 July 2006 {note 31}

The notes on pages 48 to 93 form part of these finanmal statements
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Group Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
Notes im fm £m o
Profit for the year 93.9 378 93 8 214 9
Actuanal losses on defined benefit schemes 28 {12) (2 8) {0.4) 07
Cash flow hedges
Net fair value gains 157 10 11 06
Tax onitems taken directly to equity 0.4 08 0.1 (02)
Net gans/ (losses) not recognised directlyin
income statement 34 14.9 (10) 0.8 11
Total recogmsed 1ncome for the year 108.8 368 94.6 2160
Adjustments on adophon of [AS 32/39
1 Apnl 2005 {net of tax} - 36 - _
108.8 45 4 946 216 0
Attnbutable to equity shareholders 108.8 45 4 4.6 216 0

The notes on pages 48 to 93 form part of these financal statements
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BALANCE SHEETS AT 31 MARCH 2007

Group Compamy
2007 2006 2007 2006
Nates £m £m £m £m
Assets
Non-current assets
Goodwll 15 1343 986 - -
Other intanqible assets 16 7.8 57 - -
Property, plant and equpment 17 2,559.4 24159 0.2 01
Trade and other recewvables 18 6.9 60 171 2 128 4
Deferred tax asset 29 - - 1.8 18
Investment 1n subsichary undertalongs 19 - - 943.8 943 8
Investments accounted for using equity method 19 1.4 13 - -
2,709.8 2,527 5 1,117.0 1,074 1
Current assets
Inventones 20 51 50 - -
Trade and other receivables 21 1225 945 56 0 4517
Denvative finanial instruments 22 16 0 31 1.7 06
Current tax recoverable 25 - - 1.2 -
Cash and cash equivalents 23 127 9 99 4 24.1 608
271.5 2020 83.0 107 1
Labhities
Current liabilities
Borrowings 26 (85.8) {54 7) (303 3) (283 1)
Denvative financial instruments 22 - (30 - -
Trade and other payables 24 {175.9) (1701) (19 0) (25 2)
Current tax hatbhes 25 (36 5) (24 0) - -
Provisions for hatnhties and charges 30 (13 2) (11 4} - -
(311 4) (263 2} (322 3) {308 3}
Net curvent liabilities (399) {612} (239.3) {201 2)
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 26 {1,599.4) (1,4718) {130 0) (157 4)
Other non-current habhhhes 27 {2.1) (22) (8.7) (87)
Retirement benefit obhigations 28 (41.2) {41 7) (34) (3 3)
Deferred tax halbhes 29 (313 7) (302 8) - -
Prowisions for babibties and charges 30 (86.3) (66 6) - -

(2042.7) (18851}  {1421) {159 4)

Net assets 627.2 5812 7356 703 5
Shareholders’ equity

Share camtal 31 144.9 184 2 144.9 184 2
Share premium account 32 11.7 102 117 102
Camital redemphon reserve 33 143.8 98 4 143.8 98 4
Retained earmings and other reserves 34 326.8 288 4 4352 410 7
Total shareholders’ equity 627 2 5812 7356 7035

The notes on pages 48 to 93 form part of these financial statements
The financial'statements on pages 44 to 93 were approved by the Board of Directors on 22 June 2007 and were signed on 1ts behalf by

K G Harvey
Chairman

46




CASH FLOW STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR £ENDED 231 MARCH 2007

Group Company
2007 2006 2007 2006

Notes £m £m £m £m
Cash flows from operating actinties
Cash generated/{outflow) from operabons 35 3051 2321 (54.5) 104 5
Interest pard* (58 1) (128 9) (8 6) (24 7)
Tax {pard)/Group relief recewved {12.0) (2 2) {2.3) 17
Net cash generated/(outflow) from operating activibes 235.0 1010 (65.4) 815
Cash flows from investing activities
Interest receved™ 67 225 14.3 227
Dmadends received - - 90.1 2123
Acguisition of substchary undertakings (net of cash acquired) 37 (37 0) (44 7) - -
Investmentin subsidiary undertaking - - - (12 0)
Investmentin joint venture 19 - {(11) - -
Return of loan from joint venture 0.1 - - -
Proceeds from business disposal - 50 - -
Proceeds from wnvestment disposal 0.6 - - -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (251 4) {218 6) (0.2) -
Proceeds from sale of property, plantand equipment 5.0 48 - -
Net cash {used 1n)/from investing actwvities {276.0) (2321) 104.2 2230
Cash flows from financing achvities
Net proceeds from issue of ardinary share capital 1.9 16 19 16
Purchase of ordinary shares subsequently cancelled (3.5) - (3.5) -
Purchase of ordinary shares by the Pennon Employee Share Trust {23) - - -
{Deposit)/release of restncted funds (4.1) 177 1 - -
Net proceeds from new borrowing 1100 1825 243.2 75
Repayment of borrowings {71.1) (224 3) (250.4) {136 8}
Finance lease drawdowns 1302 1416 - -
Finance lease prinapal repayments (21.4) (15 8) - -
Drwdends pard (61 0) (341) (61.0) (34 1)
B Share payments 31 (5.7) {137 8) {5.7) (137 8)
Net cash recewed/(outflow) from financing actwities 730 90 8 (75 5) (299 6)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash eguivalents 320 (40 3) (36.7) 49
Cash and cash equivalents at beqinming of the year 803 120 6 60.8 559
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 112.3 803 241 608

*Interest payd and recewved 1n 2006 included exceptional items, note 9

The notes on pages 48 to 93 form part of these finanaal statements
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Pennon Group Ple 15 a company incorporated 1n the Umted Kingdom under the Compames Act 1985 The address of the reqistered office
15 gwven on page 32 The nature of the Group's operations and its pnnoipal actvities are set cut 1n the Diractors’ report on pages 2 to 31

These finanoal statements were approved by the Board of Drectors on 22 June 2007

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The pnncipal accounting pobcies adopted 1n the preparation of these financial statements are set out below These policies have been
consistently applbed to all the years presented

[a) Basis of preparation

These finanaal statements have been prepared under the histoncal cost convention, except for denvative financial nstruments, and 1n
accordance with International Finanoat Reporting Standards (IFRS) and International Finanaal Reporting Interpretations Committee
(IFRIC) interpretations as adopted by the European Union, with those parts of the Compames Act 1985 applicable to compames
reporting under IFRS and the requirements of the Finanoal Senaces Authonty A summary of the main accounbing pobaies s set out
below, together with an explanation where changes have been made to previous policies on the adoption of new accounting standards
n the year

At the date of approval of these finantal statements the following standards and 1nterpretations which have not been apphied 1n these
financal statements were 1n 1ssue, but not yet effective

IFRS 7 “Finanaalnstruments disclosures” and the related amendment to [AS 1 “Presentation of Ainanoal Statements”
on capital dsclosures

IFRS 8 “Operating segments ”

IFRIC 8 “Scope of IFRS 2 7

IFRICY “Reassessment of embedded dervatives ”
IFRIC10  “Intenm financial reporting and 1mparment ”
IFRIC11  “IFRS 2 Group and treasury share transactions ”
IFRIC12  “Senace concession arrangements ”

The Directors expect that the adoption of these standards and interpretations 1n future penods will have no matenalimpact on the
financial statements of the Group Additronal disclosures on capital and financialinstruments wall be made when the relevant standards
come nto effect for penods commencoing on or after 1 Apnl 2007 The presentahional impact of IFRIC 1215 being assessed

The preparation of financal statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting prinaiples requires the use of estimates and
assumphons that affect the reported amounts of assets and habwbibes at the date of the finanoal statements and the reported amounts
of revenues and expenses dunng the reporting penod Although these esbmates are based on management’s best assessment of the
amounts, events or actons, actual results ultimately may differ from those eshmates

(b) Adoption of IFRS

The Group’s date of transition to IFRS was 1 Apnl 2004 The Company’s date of transition to IFRS was 1 Apnl 2005 and all comparative
infarmation for the Company 1n these finanoal statements has been restated to reflect the adoption of IFRS, except where otherwise
required or permitted by IFRS 1 “First Time Adoption of International Finanqal Reporting Standards”
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(c] Basis of consolidation
The Group finanaal statements include the results of Pennon Group Plc and 1ts subsidiary and joint venture undertalangs

The results of subsidiary and joint venture undertakings are in¢cluded from the date of acquisition orincorporation, and excluded
from the date of disposal The results of subsidianes are consohdated where the Group has the power to control a subsidiary

The results of joint venture undertakings are accounted for on an equity basis where the company exeraised joint control under
a contractual arrangement

On acquisition, the assets and habilibes and contingent Labilities of a subsidhary or joint venture acquired are measured at their fair
values and any excess of the cost of acquisihon over the fair values of the 1dentifiable net assets acquired 1s recogmsed as goodwill
Any deficiency of the cost of acquisition below the fair values of the identiffable net assets acquired 15 crechted to profit and loss 1n the
year of acquisition

(d) Revenue recognition

Revenue represents the fair value of consideration receivable, excluding value added tax, trade discounts and 1nter-company sales, in
the ordinary course of business for goods and senaces provided

Revenue)s not recogmsed unbil the service has been prowided to the customer, or the goods which the sale relates to have been
despatched to the customer

Income from mains water and waste water charges includes an esbmation of the amount of unbslled charges at the penod end based
upon a defined methodology reflecbng mstoncal consumptron and current tanffs

(el Landfill tax

Landfill tax 1s included within both revenue and operating costs

(f) Segmental reporting

Each of the Group’s business segments provides senaces which are subject to nsks and returns winch are different from those of the
other business segments The Group’s mternal orgamsation and management structure and its system of internal finanoal reporting 1s
based pnmanly on business segments The business segments compnse the regulated water and sewerage sennces undertaken by South
West Water Limited and the waste management business of Vindor Limited Segmental revenue, expense and results, include
transachons between businesses Inter-segmental transactions are ebminated on consohidation

(g] Goodwill

Goodwll ansing on consolidation from the acquisihon of subsidiary and Joint venture undertakings represents the excess of the
purchase considerahon over the fair value of net assets acquired

Goodwll 1s recogmsed as an asset and reviewed for impairment at least annually Any impairment 1s recogmsed immediately in the
ncome statement and 1s not subsequently reversed Further details are contained 1n accounting policy (1)

When a subsidhary or joint venture undertakang 15 sold, the profit or loss on disposalis deterrmned after including the attnbutable
amount of unamortised goodwill

Goodwill ansing on acquisthons before 1 Apnil 2004, the Group's date of transibon to IFRS, has been retained at the previous UK GAAP
amounts subject to being tested for imparment at that date and annually thereafter Goodwill wntten off to reserves under UK GAAP
pnor to 1998 was not reinstated on transition to IFRS and will not be included in determining any subseguent profit or loss on disposal
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(h) Other intangible assets

Otherintangible assets acquired 1n a business combination are capitabised at fawr value at the date of acquisihion Following imtial
recogmhon, fimte life intangible assets are amorhsed on a straight-line basis over their eshmated useful economic bives, with the
expense taken to the income statement through operating expenses

(1} Property, plant and equipment

1) Infrastructure assets (being water mains and sewers, impounding and pumped raw water storage reservoirs, dams, pipelines
and sea outfalls)

Infrastructure assets were included at fair value on transition to IFRS and subsequent additions are recorded at cost less accumulated
depreciation Expenditure to increase capaoty or enhance infrastructure assets 1s capitabised where 1t can be rehably measured and 115
prabable that incremental future economic benefits wall flow to the antity The cost of day-te-day senviawng of mfrastructure
components 1s recogmsed 1n the income statement as it anses

Infrastructure assets are deprectated over their useful economic lives, which are pnnaipally

Dams and impounding reservoirs 200 years
Water mains 40 - 100 years
Sewers 40 — 100 years

Assets 10 the course of construction are not depreciated until commssioned
1) Landfill sites

Landfill sites are included wathin land and buildings at cost less accumulated depreaation Costincludes acquisition and development
expenses The cost of a landfill 1s deprecated toits residual value (which 1s lnked to gas produchon at the site post-closure) overits
eshmated operational bfe taking account of the usage of vord space

Where the obligation to restore a landfill site 15 an integral part of its future econormic benefits, a non-current asset wmithin property,
plant and equipment 1s recogmsed The asset recogmsed is depreciated based on the usage of void space

m) Other assets (including properties, over-ground plant and equipment)
Other assets are included at cost less accumulated depreciabion

Freehold land 1s not depreciated Other assets are depreciated evenly over their estimated economic Lives to their residual value, which
are pancipally

Freehold buildings 30 - 60 years

Leasehold buildings Over the penod of the lease
Operational structures 40 - 80 years

Fixed plant 20 - 40 years

Vehicles, mobile plant and computers 3 - 10 years

Assets 1n the course of construction are not depreoated until commissioned

The cost of assets includes directly attnbutable labour and overhead costs which are incremental to the Group Borrowing costs that are
directly attnbutable to the construction of a quabfying asset (an asset which necessanly takes a substantial penod of bme to be
prepared for its intended use) are caprtabised as part of the asset

Asset lives and residual values are reviewed annually
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)
(j)) Grants and contributions

Grants and contnbutions recervable in respect of property, plant and equipment are deducted from the cost of those assets

Grants and contnbutions recewvable n respect of expenditure charged against profits 1n the year have been included n the
ncome statement

(k) Leased assets

Assets held under finance leases are included in the balance sheet as property, plant and equipment at their equivalent capital value
and are depreaated over their estmated economic lives or the finance lease penod, whichever 1s the shorter The corresponding
bablbity 1s recorded as borrowings The 1nterest element of the rental costs 1s charged aganst profits using the actuanal method over
the penod of the lease

Rental costs ansing under operating leases are charged agawnst profits in the year they are incurred

() Impairment of assets

Assets which have an indefimte useful bfe are not subject to amorhisation and are tested annually for impairment, or whenever events
or changes 1n arcumstance 1ndicate that the carnnng amount may not be recoverable

Assets which are subject to amorhisation are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in aircumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable

Anmpairment loss 1s recogmsed for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds 1ts recoverable amount The recoverable
amount1s the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value \n use For the purposes of assessing imparment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately 1dentfiable cash flows {cash-generating umts} Valuen use represents the
present value of projected future cash flows expected to be derived from a cash-generating umt, discounted using a pre-tax discount
rate which reflects an assessment of the cost of capital of the cash-generabing umt

Impairments are charged to the income statement in the year in which they anse
[m) Investment in subsidiary undertakings

Investments 1n subsichary undertakings are 1mtially recorded at cost, being the fair value of the consideration paid, including
assoaated acquisihon costs Subsequently, investments are reviewed for impairment on an indmdual basis annually, orf events or
changes in arcumstances 1ndicate that the carrying value may not be fully recoverable

(n] Joint ventures

Jont ventures are entities over which the Group has joint control Investments 1n joint ventures are accounted for using the equity
method of accounting Any excess of the cost of acgusition over the Group’s share of the fair values of the 1denbfiable net assets

of the Joint venture at the date of acquisibon 1s recogmised as goadwill and 15 1ncluded 1n the carnning value of the investment 1n the
Jont venture

The carrying value of the Group’s investment 1s adjusted for the Group's share of past-acquisition profits or losses recogmsed in the
ncome statement Losses of a Joint venture 1n excess of the Group's interest are not recogmsed unless the Group has a legal or
construchive obligation to fund those losses

(o] Inventories

Inventones and work 1n progress is stated at the lower of cost and net reabisable value Costincludes labour, matenals and
attnbutable overheads

(p) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents compnise cash n hand, short-term deposits held at banks and other short-term highly iguid deposits subject
to insignificant nsk of changes 1n value Bank overdrafts are shown within current borrowings
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
{(q) Derivatives and other financial instruments

The Group classifies 1ts financial instruments 1n the following categones

1} Loans and recewables

All loans and borrowings are ymtally recogmsed at cost, being the net fair value of the consideration received Following imtial
recogmbion, interest-beanng loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost

Gans and losses are recogmsed n the income statement when the instruments are derecogmsed or /mpawed Premia, discounts and
other costs and fees are recogmsed 1n the 1ncome statement through the amortisation process

Borrowings are classified as current halnlibes unless the Group has an unconditional nght to defer settlement of the babibty for at least
12 months after the balance sheet date

n) Denvative financial mstruments

The Group uses denvatwe finanaal instruments, pnnapally interest rate swaps, to hedge 1ts nsks assocated with interest rate
fluctuations Such denvative instruments are imtally recorded at cost and subsegquently remeasured at fair value for the reported
balance sheet

The gain or loss on remeasurement s taken to the income statement except for cash flow hedges that meet the conditions for hedge
accounting, when the portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument which 15 determined to be an effective hedge 1s recogmsed
directly 1n equity, and the ineffective portion in theincome statement The gains or losses deferred 1n equnty 1n this way are
subsequently recogmsed 1n the income statement in the same penod in which the hedged underlying transaction or firm

commtment s recogmsed in the income statement

In order to qualify for hedge accounting, the Group1s required to document 1n advance the relationship between the item being hedged
and the hedging instrument The Groups also requited to document and demonstrate an assessment of the relationship between the
hedged 1tem and the hedging instrument, which shows that the hedge will be mghly effective on an on-going basis This effectiveness
testing 15 reperformed at the end of each reporting period to ensure that the hedge remains lmghly effective

m) Trade recewvables

Trade recewables do not carry any interest and are stated at their nominal value as reduced by appropnate allowances for estimated
rrecoverable amounts and the impact of discounting

w} Trade payables
Trade payables are not interest beanng and are stated at their nomnal value
(r] Taxation including deferred tax

Tax payable for the year1s provided at current rates that are substantively enacted Deferred taxabhon 1s provided n full, using the
liabibhty method, on temporary differences between the tax basis of assets and habibhes and their carnying amounts in the finanaal
statements A deferred tax asset1s only recogmsed to the extent it 1s probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available n the
future for 1t to be utibsed
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Is) Provistons for babilities and charges

Provisions are made where there 1s a present legal or constructive chligabion as a result of a past event and st1s probable that there will
be an outflow of economic benefits to settle this obligation and a rehable estimate of this amount can be made The Group’s policy on
provisions for spenific areas 1s

1} Landfill restoration costs

Provisions for the cost of restonng landfill sites are made when the obligation anses Where the obligation recogmsed as a provision
gives access to future economic benefits, a non-current assetin property, plant and equipment1s recogmsed Provisions are otherwise
charged aganst profits

n) Environmental control and aftercare costs

Emnronmental control and aftercare costs are incurred over the operational life of each Landfill site and may be incurred for a
considerable penod thereafter Prowision for alt such costs 1s made over the operational bife of the site and charged to the income
statement on the basis of the usage of void space

Prowvisions for restructuning costs are recogmsed when a detailed formal plan for the restructuning has been commumcated to
affected parbes

Where the effect of the bme value of money 1s matenal, the current amount of a prowision 15 the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle obligatrons The unwinding of the discount to present value 15 included as a financial item within
nterest payable and siilar charges

(t] Share capital and treasury shares
Ordinary shares are clasoified as equity

The Group balance sheet incorperates the shares held by the Pennon Employee Share Trust and which have not vested by the
balance sheet date These are shown as a deduchon from shareholders’ equity until such time as they vest

(u) Dividend distributions

Dividend distnbutions are recogmsed as a habbty in the finanaal statements 1n the penod 1n which the dividends are
approved by the Company’s shareholders Intenm dwidends are recogmsed when paid, final dwdends when authonsed 1n
general meeting by shareholders
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

{v) Employee benefits

1) Pension obligations

The Group operates defined benefit and defined contnbubon pension schemes

Defined benefit schemes

Defined benefit pension scheme assets are measured using bid pnce Defined benefit pension scheme babibties are measured by an
independent actuary using the projected umit credit method and discounted at the current rate of returm on tigh quality corporate
bonds of equivatent term to the bability The increase in the present value of the hablities of the Group’s defined benefit pension
schemes expected to anse from employee sermace 1n the penod 1s charged to aperating profit The expected return on scheme assets and
the increase dunng the penod 1 the present value of scheme babilities, ansing from the passage of time, are included 1n other finance
income or cost Changes 1n past service costs ansing from changes 1n benefits are recogmsed immediately 1n income

Actuanal gans and losses ansing from expenence adjustments and changes 1n actuanal assumphions are charged or credited to equity
and recorded n the statement of recogmsed income and expense

Defined contnbution schemes
Costs of the defined contnbution pension scheme are charged to the income statement in the penod n which they anse

n) Share-based payment

The Group operates a number of equity settled, share-based payment plans for employees The fair value of the employee semices
requnred in exchange for the grant 1s recogmsed as an expense over the vesting penod of the grant

Fair values are calculated using an appropnate pnaing model Non-market based vesting conditions are adjusted for in assumphons as
to the number of awards which are expected to vest

(w) Pre-contract costs

Pre-contract costs are expensed as incurred, except where it 15 virtually certawn that the contract will be awarded, 1n which case they are
recogmsed as an asset which 1s amortised to the \ncome statement over the bife of the contract

(x] Fair values

The fair value of the interest rate swaps 1s based on the market price of comparable instruments at the balance sheet date if they are
publicly traded

The far values of short-term deposits, loans and overdrafts with a matunty of less than one year are assumed to approximate to their
book values In the case of bank loans and other loans due in more than one year the fair value of financial hablibes for disclosure
purposes 15 estimated by discounting the future contractual cash flows at the current market interest rate available to the Group for
simlar finanoalnstruments
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s treasury funchon seeks to ensure that sufficent funding s available to meet foreseeable needs, mawntans reasonable
headroom for contingencies and manages interest rate nsk

Treasury operations are managed 1n accordance with policies estabhshed by the Board Major transactions are individually approved by
the Board Treasury achwvities are reported to the Board and are subject to review by intemnal audit

Financial instruments are used to raise finance and to manage nsk The Group does not engage n speculative actmity
The pnnopal finanaial nisks faced by the Group relate to interest rate and counterparty nsk
1) Interest rate nsk

The Group has both interest beanng assets and nterest beanng liabibties The Group has a policy of maintaiming at least 50% of
interest beanng habilihies at fixed rates The Group uses a combination of fixed rate and index-hinked borrowings and fixed rate interest
swaps as cash flow hedges of future vanable interest payments to achieve this policy At the year end 66% of net borrowings were at
fixed rates and 9% index-linked The notional pnnapal amounts of the interest rate swaps are used to deterrmne settlement under
those swaps and are not, therefore, an exposure for the Group These instruments are analysed 1n more detaal 1n note 26

1) Counterparty nsk management

Counterparty nsk anses from the investment of surplus funds and from the use of denvative instruments The Board has agreed a
pobcy for managing such nsk, which 1s controlled through credit hmits, counterparty approvals, and ngorous momtonng procedures
The Group has no other sigmificant concentration of credit nsk Surplus funds of the Group are usually placed n short-term

fixed interest deposits or the overmght money markets All deposits are wath counterparties that have a credit rating threshold
approved by the Board

m) Ligundity risk

The Group actively maintains a mixture of long-term and short-term committed faclities that are designed to ensure the Group has
sigmficant available funds for operations and planned expansions and facilities equivalent to at least one year's forecast requirements
are maintained at all tmes Details of undrawn committed faclibies and short-term uncommitted facilities are provided i note 26

) Refinancing nsk management

Refinancing nsks managed under the Group policy se that no more than 20% of Group net borrowings 1s permitted to mature 1n any
financial year
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

The Group’s pninaipal accounting policies are set out 1n note 2 to these financal statements Management 1s required to exeraise
sigmificant Judgement and make use of estimates and assumptions 1n the application of these polices

Areas which management beheves require the most cntical accounting Judgements are

Exceptronalitems

The Directors consider that items of income or expense which are matenal and non-recurnng by wirtue of their nature and amount
should be disclosed separately if the finanaal statements are to fasrly present the finangial position and financial performance of the
Group The Directors label these items collechvely as “exceptionalitems”

Landfill restoration and aftercare

Restorahon and aftercare provisions are recegmsed in the finanaal statements at the net present value of the future expenditure
required to settle the Group’s restorabion and aftercare obhigabons The discount imphotin recogmsing the restoration and
aftercare hability 1s unwound over the bife of the provision and s included 1n the income statement as a finanaal item within
1nterest payable

Where a provision gives access to future economic benefits, an asset1s recogmsed and depreciated 1n accordance with the Group’s
depreciabion pobicy

Joint ventures
The results, assets and habibihes of jownt ventures are accounted for using the equity method of accounting as this reflects the
contractual and control arrangements with the joint venture partners

Borrowing costs

The Group capitalises borrowing costs which are matenal and directly attributable to the construction of quaifying assets, which are
assets that necessanly take a substanbal penod of time to be prepared for their intended use Currently only the assets under
construction in the Lakeside Energy from Waste joint venture meet the cntena for capitalisation

Retirement benefit oblhigations
The Group operates defined benefit schemes plus a defined contnbution sechion Actuanal valuahons of the defined benefit schemes
are carned out as determined by the trustees at intervals of not more than three years

The pension cost under IAS 19 15 assessed 1n accordance with the advice of an independent qualified actuary based on the latest
actuanal valuation and assumptions deternined by the actuary The assumptions are based on informaton supplied to the actuary
by the Company, supplemented by discussions between the actuary and management The prnaipal assumptions used to measure
schemes’ habibies, sensitvinies to changes in these assumptions and future funding obhgations are disclosed 1n note 28 of the
finanaial statements

Cash-generating umits

For the purposes of assessing impanrment, assets are grouped at the lowest Levels for which there are separately dentfiable
cash flows (cash-generating units) The waste management segment 1s considered to be a single cash-generating umit as 1t1s an
integrated business
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS (continued)}

Areas which management belbieves requires the most cnhical accounting estimations are

Landfill costs

The esbmation of landfill reserves 1s of particular importance in assessing landfill costs, since the cost of a landfill site 1s depreciated
overits eshmated operational ife taking into account the usage of vord space and gas production at the site post closure The Group’s
estimates of landfill reserves are regularly reviewed and updated dunng the financral year for usage and other events (for example site
extensions) Estimates are also subject to physical review by external advisors A number of factors impact on the value of landfill
reserves, mcluding the available landfill space, future capital expenditure and operating costs. The valuation 15 subject to revision as
these factors chahge

Carrying value of long-tife assets

The Group's accounting policy for property, plant and equipment 1s set out in note 2 to these finanoal statements The carnying value of
property, plant and equipment as at 31 March 2007 was £2,559 4 milbon In the year ended 31 March 2007 addrtions to tangible fixed
assets totalled £245 1 milbhon and the deprecation charge was £115 2 milhon Estimated useful economic hives are based on
management’s judgement and expenence When management identifies that actual useful lives differ matenally from the estimates
used to calculate depreciabion, that charge 1s adjusted prospectively Due to the sigmficance of capital investment to the Group,
vanations between actual and estmated useful lives could impact operating results both positively and negatively Histoncally, onty
minor changes to estmated useful hives have been required

Revenue recognition
The Group recognises revenue generally at the time of delivery Payments recewved 1n advance of revenue recogmiion are recorded as
deferred revenue

In South West Water’s case, the Group raises bills and recogmses revenue 1n accordance with 1ts entitlement to receive revenue in

line with the bimits established by the Penodic Review pnce setting process For water and waste water customers with water meters,
ncome recogmsed 1s dependent upon the volume supphied including an estimate of the sales value of units supplied between the
date of the last meter reading and the year end Eshmated usage 1s based on histonc data, jJudgement and assumphons, actuat results
could differ from these estimates which would result 1n operating revenue being adjusted 1n the penod that the rewision to the
estimates 15 deterrmned

Prowvision for doubtful debts

At each balance sheet date, each subsichary evaluates the collectablity of trade recewables and records provisions for doubtful debts
hased on expenence ncluding, for example, compansons of the relative age of accounts and consideration of actual wnte-off istory
The actual level of debt collected may differ from the estimated levels of recovery, which could 1mpact operating results positively or
negatively As at 31 March 2007 current trade recevables were £118 0 million

Impairment of intangible assets
The Group records all assets and habilites acquired 1n business acquisitions, including goodwll, at fair value Intangible assets which
have an indefimte useful bfe, pnnaipally goodwill, are assessed annually for impairment

The ymbal goodwill recorded and subsequent impairment analysis require management to make eshmations of future cash flows,
terminal values and an assessment of the long-term pre-tax discount rate to be applied to those cash flows to reflect an assessment
of the cost of capital of the cash-generating umt
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5 SEGMENTAL REPORTING

2007 2006
£m £m
Revenue
Water and sewerage 381.5 3485
Waste management 367.7 2989
Dther 76 73
Less intra-segment trading * (8.5) (9 0)
748.3 645 7
Segment resutt
Operating profit before deprecation, amortisation and exceptional 1tems (EBITDA)
Water and sewerage 234.,5 213 4
Waste management 828 66 7
Other {18) (0 9)
3155 27912
Operating profit before amortisation and exceptional 1tems
Water and sewerage 156.8 1415
Waste management 468 359
Other (1.8) o7
2018 176 7
Operating profit before exceptional items
Water and sewerage 156.8 1415
Waste management 45.0 343
Other (18) (on
2000 1751
Operating profit
Water and sewerage 156 8 1270
Waste management 45.0 343
Other (1.8) {07
200.0 160 6
Profit before tax and exceptional 1tems
Water and sewerage 989 87 4
Waste management 27.6 219
Other 46 16
1311 110 9

The exceptional items are detailed 1n note 9
All operating achwities are continuing operations

*Intra-segment trading between and to other segments by the water and sewerage and waste management segments 15 under normal commercial terms
and condihions that would also be available to unvetated tinrd parhes Intra-segment revenue of the Other segment 15 at cost
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5 SEGMENTAL REPORTING (continued)

Water and Waste
sewerage management Other Eliminations Group
£m m £m im £m

Balance sheet
31 March 2007
Assets (excluding investment 1n Jont ventures) 2,429 2 5907 5531 (593 1) 2,979 19
Investments 1n jont ventures - 14 - - 14
Total assets 2,429 2 592 1 5531 (593 1) 2,9813
Liabibiies (1,659 9) (477 2 (810 1) 503 1 (2,354 1)
Net assets/(liabilhites) 769.3 1149 {257.0) - 627 2
31 March 2006
Assets {excluding 1nvestment in joint ventures) 2,229 3 4727 534 0 (507 8) 2,728 2
Investments 1n Joint ventures - 13 - - 13
Total assets 2.2293 474 0 534 0 (507 8) 2,729 5
Liabihies (1,493 2) (360 2) {802 7) 507 8 (2,148 3}
Net assets/ {hambbes) 7361 1138 (268 7} - 5812

Segment iabbties of the water and sewerage and waste management segments compnse operating liabibbes The other segment
liabilities include the Company’s financing of business acquisihons and Group taxation habihties

Water and Waste
sewerage management Other Group
£m £im £m £m
Other nformation
31 March 2007
Amortsation of intangible assets (note 16) - 18 - 18
Capital expenditure (wnctuding acquisitions) 184 0 97 9 02 2821
Depreciation 777 360 - 113 7
31 March 2006
Amortisation of intangible assets {note 16) - 16 - 16
Camital expendsture {including acquisitions) 1910 104 5 - 295 5
Deprecation 719 308 (0 2) 102 5
2007 2006
Employees (average number)
The average monthly number of employees
(including executive directors) was
Water and sewerage 1,301 1,299
Waste management 1,686 1,388
Other 38 35
Group totals 3,025 2,122
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5 SEGMENTAL REPORTING (continued)
The total number of employees at 31 March 2007 was 3,204 (2006 2,775)

The water and sewerage business compnses the regulated water and sewerage services undertaken by South West Water Limited

The waste management business 1s the waste treatment, recycling and dhsposal senices provided by Vindor Limted Other includes
parent company finanang of business acquisibons made before 1999 Segment assets include goodwill and other intangible assets,
property, plant and equrpment, inventones, trade and other recewables and cash and cash equivalents Segment habilities compnse
operahing habilities and exclude taxation Capital expenditure compnses additions to property, plant and egupment, inctuding
additions resulting from acquisitions through business combinations

Geographical segments
Separate disclosure by geograptncal segment s not shown since the operations of the Group are all located 1n the Umited Kingdom
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6. OPERATING COSTS

2007 2006
£m £m
Manpower costs {note 13} 910 799
Raw matenals and consumables 47.2 407
Other operating expenses include
Profit on disposal of fixed assets (2 6) (11)
Operating lease rentals payable
- Plant and machnery 72 69
- Property 1.5 13
Research and development expenditure 0.1 01
Trade recevables impairment 5.6 56
Depreaabon of property, plant and equipment
~ Owned assets 907 177
- Under finance leases 230 248
Amortisation of intangible assets (note 16) 18 16
Fees payable to the Group’s auditors 1n the year were as follows
2007 2006
£000 £000
Fees payable to the Company's auditors for the audit of the Company's accounts 37 3
Fees payable to the Company’s auditors for other services to the Group
Audit of the Company’s subsidianes pursuant to legislation 243 279
Other senaces pursuant to legislation 17 15
Tax services 162 158
Senices relating to corporate finance transactions 188 75
All other services 97 297
T44 855
Fees payable to the Company’s auditors n respect of Pennon Group pensign schemes
Audit 22 18

Other services 1n 2006 include costs relating to the transihon to IFRS and the financial restructuring n the Company

A descnphon of the work of the Audit Commttee 1s set out in 1ts report on pages 40 and 41 which includes an explanation of how
auditor objectmity and independence are safequarded when nen-audit senices are provided by the auditors
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7 NET FINANCE CO5TS

2007 2006
£m £m
Interest payable
Bank borrowings and overdrafts (33.3) (25 7)
Interest element of finance lease rentals (41.9) (39 4)
Other finance costs (0.6) (117)
Interest cost on retirement benefit ocbligations (18.4) (16 6)
Unwinding of discounts in provisions (4.1) (3 4)
Interest payable and similar charges (98.3) {96 8)
Interest recewable 70 14 7
Expected return on pension scheme assets 221 17 8
Interest recewvable and ssiilar income 29.1 325
Net finance costs (69 2) (64 3)
The above exclude the 2006 exceptionalitems, totalling a net £42 3 milbon interest payable, which are detarled 1n note 9
8 TAXATION
Before exceptional Exceptional items
tems {ncte §) Total
2007 2006 2006 2006
£m £m £m £m
Analysis of charge in year
Current tax 23.9 14 8 (187) (39
Deferred tax (note 29) 13.3 202 - 202
372 350 (18 7) 163

UK Corporation tax 1s calculated at 30% (2006 30%) of the eshmated assessable profit for the year The tax for the year differs from the
theoretical amount that would anse using the standard rate of corporation taxn the UK {30%) The dvfferences are

2007 2006
£m £m

Profit before tax 1311 54 1
Profit before tax multiphied by standard rate of
corporaton taxin the UK of 30% (2006 30%) 393 16 2
Effects of
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 07 19
Sale of assets and finance leasing {3.8) (0 5)
Other 0.6 (14)
Adjustments to tax charge 1n respect of pnor year 0.4 01
Tax charge for year 72 163

The average apphcable tax rate for the year was 28% (2006 30%)

In additien to the amount charged to the income statement, a deferred tax credit relabing to actuanal losses on defined benefit schemes
of £0 4 mlhion (2006 £0 8 million) has been credited directly to equity In 2006 a deferred tax credit relating to share-based payment of

£1 2 mlhon was also credited directly to equity

£2
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8 TAXATION (contrnued)

The Finance Bill 2007 contains provisions relating to the reduchon n the rate of corporation tax from 30% to 28% with effect from
1 Apnl 2008 It was also announced that industnal building allowances will be phased out over three years commencing 1 Apnl 2008

At 31 March 2007, the above changes were not substantively enacted If the change in corporation tax rate s fully enacted then the
deferred tax hability would reduce by £21 milhon The provisions to abolish industnal bunlding allowances are expected to be contained
n the Finance Bill 2008 and 1f fully enacted, are bikely to increase the deferred tax liability by an estimated £37 million The combined
wmpact would therefore be toincrease the deferred tax habiity by £16 milhon

9 EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS

2007 2006
£m £m
The excephonal items are
Customer payment - {14 5)
Operating profit - (14 5) :
|
Bond retirement - {50 2)
Receipt on transfer of lease - 70
Net finance costs - (42 3)
Profit before tax - (56 8)
Tax ansing on exceptionalitems - 187
Profit after tax - (38 1)

The customer payment and bond retirement related to financial restructunng wn the Company and South West Water Limited.

The recept on transfer of lease related to a consent fee paid to South West Water Limited ansing from the sale of finance leases
between financal inshtutions

10 PROFIT OF PARENT COMPANY

\
|
2007 2006 i
\

£m £m
Profit attnbutable to equity shareholders dealt with 1n the accounts of the parent cempany 93.8 214 9

As permitted by Section 230 of the Compames act 1985 no income statement 1s presented for the Company
11. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earmings per share are calculated by dmding the earmings attnbutable to ordinary shareholders by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding dunng the year, excluding those held in the employee share trust {note 31), which are treated
as cancelled

For dituted earmings per share, the weighted average number of ordinary shares 1n 1ssue 15 adjusted to include all dilutwe potential
ordinary shares The Group has two types of dilubive potential ordinary shares - thase share options granted to employees where the
exercoise pnce 15 less than the average market pnce of the Company’s ordinary shares dunng the year and the contingently 1ssuable
shares under the Group's Restricted Share Plan and the deferred shares element of the Performance Related Bonus Plan to the extent
that the performance cntena for vesting of the awards are expected to be met

LX]
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11 EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)

The reconaibation of the weighted average number of shares and earmings used 1n the calculations 1s

2007 2006
(Restated)
Number of shares {millions)
For basic earnings per share 3539 3819
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares
Share options 3.2 33
For chluted earnings per share 357.1 3852

The weighted average number of ordinary shares at March 2006 has bean restated to reflect the sub-dwision of the Company’s ordinary
shares by way of a three for one spht on 31 July 2006 (note 31)

Adjusted basic and diluted earmings per share
Adjusted earmngs per share have been calculated to exclude the impact of the excephonal items and deferred tax on the results, as

these items can have a distorhng effect on earmings from year to year and therefore warrant separate consideration Adjusted earmngs
have been catculated

2007 2006
Earmngs per share
Profit Earnings per share Profit {Restated)
after tax Baslc Diluted after tax Basic Dnluted
£m P p £m p P
Earmings per share 939 26.5 263 378 %9 938
Excephonalitems (net of tax) - - - 381 100 99
Deferred tax 13.3 3.8 37 202 53 52
Adjusted earnings per share 107.2 30.3 30.0 96 1 252 249
All operating actnihies are conbnuing operations
12. DIVIDENDS
2007 2006
£m £m
Amounts recogmsed as distnbutions to equity holdersn the year
Intenm dividend pard for the year ended 31 March 2006 5 5p (2005 4 6p) per share 19 4 177
Final dwidend paid for the year ended 31 March 2006 11 7p (2005 9 7p) per share 416 374
61.0 551
Propased dwidends
Proposed intenm diwidend for the year ended 31 March 2007 5 85p {2006 5 5p) per share 20.8 194
Proposed final chwidend for the year ended 31 March 2007 12 7p (2006 11 7p) per share 45.2 416
66.0 610

Dwadends per share for 2006 have been restated to reflect the sub-dwision of the Company’s ordinary shares by way of a three for one
split on 31 July 2006 (note 31)

The proposed intenm and final dwidends have not been included as babilities in these finanaal statements The proposed intenm
dwadend for 2007 was pa1d on 11 Apnl 2007 and the proposed final dwidend 15 subject to approval by shareholders at the Annual
Generzl Meeting.
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13. EMPLOYMENT COSTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2007 2006
£m £m
Wages and salanes 77.9 725
Sonal secunty costs 6.7 65
Pension costs 14.2 98
Share-based payments 2.1 17
Total employment costs 100.9 90 5
Charged
Manpowaer costs 91.0 9%
Capital schemes 99 100
Restructunng provision - 06
Total employment costs 1009 90 5

Details of Directors’ emoluments are set out in note 14 There are no persorinel, other than Directors, who as key management exercise
authonty and responsibibity for pianming, directing and controlbing the achwibes of the Group

14. DIRECTORS" EMOLUMENTS

2007 2006
£000 £000

Executive Directors
Salary 803 630
Performance related bonus payable 286 223
Veshing of Restncted Share Plan awards - 276
Vesting of Performance Related Bonus Plan awards 512 199
Other emoluments 112 54
Payment in lieu of pension provision 48 -
Payments related to supplementary pension 100 148
Non-executve Directors 319 303
Total emoluments 2,180 1,833

The performance related bonus payable represents the cash element In addihion Directors receive a conditional award of shares for a

matching amount which s subject to a future service cnitenon

Total gains made by Directors on the exeraise of share ophons were £15,000 (2006 nil)

Total emoluments include £1,074,000 {2006 £828,000) payable to Directors for senices as directors of subsichary undertakings

At 31 March 2007 rebrement benefits were accnuing to two Directors under defined benefit pension schemes (2006 three)
The accrued pension entitlement at 31 March 2007 under defined benefit schemes of the highest paid Director was £90,000
(2006 £81,000) No pension contnbutions were payable to defined contnbution schemes in 2007 or 2006 but 1n 2007 one Director

recewved payment in bieu of pension provision by the Company

More detailed information concerming Directors” emoluments {including pensions} and share interests 1s shown in the audited part of

the Directors’ remuneration report
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15. GOODWILL

£m
Cost
At 1 Apni 2005 b4 4
Recogmised on acquisibon of subsidianes 34 2
At 1 Apnl 2006 98 6
Recogmsed on acquisition of subsidianes (note 37} 357
At 31 March 2007 134 3
Carnang amount
At 31 March 2006 98 6
At 31 March 2007 134.3

Goodwll acquired 1n a business combnation 15 allocated at acquisition to the cash-generating umit {CGU) expected te benefit from that
business combination All of the carrying amount of goodwill 1s allocated to the waste management segment which1s considered to be a
single CGU, as 1t1s an integrated business

Goodwill1s reviewed annually or when other events ar changes in arcumstance indicate that the carrying amount may not be
fully recoverable

The recoverable amount of the waste management segment 1s determined from value n use catculations The key assumptions in those
calculations relate to discount rates, cash flows, pnce increases and for landfill, the compacton rate Cash flow projections are based
on approved budgets and plans for the next five years and beyond tins penod on long-term growth rates for the waste sector based on
GDP The cash flows have been discounted using a pre-tax discount rate of 11 4% which reflects the overall business nsks assooated
with the waste management segment activities

16 OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Customer
contracts Patents Total
im £m £m

Acqurred intangible assets
Cost
At 1 Apnl 2005 72 02 74
Acquisitions 13 - 13
At 31 March 2006 85 02 87
Acquisitions 39 - 39
At 31 March 2007 124 02 126
Amorhsation
At 1 Apnl 2005 14 - 14
Charge for year 16 - 16
At 31 March 2006 30 - 30
Charge for year 18 - 18
At 31 March 2007 48 - 48
Carnnng amount
At 31 March 2006 55 02 57
At 31 March 2007 76 0.2 7.8
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Customer contracts are amorhsed over the useful economic hfe of each contract which at acquisihon ranged between 2 and 15 years
The average remaimng bfe 1s 6 years

Patents are amortised over their estimated useful economic lives which at acquisitton was 13 years The average remaimng hife1s 10 years

The carnying value of other intangible assets are reviewed annually or when events or changes 1n arcumstance yndicate that the carrying
amount may not be fully recoverable

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Fixed and
mobile plant
Land and Infrastructure {perational vehdes and Landfil{ Construction
buildings assets properties computers restoration n progress Total
£m m im £m £m £m £m

Cost
At 1 Apnl2005 2327 1,0291 h47 3 9391 - 70 4 28186
Ansing on acquisitons 18 4 - - 51 31 - 266
Additions 267 56 4 35 66 8 - 96 3 2497
Other - - - - 323 - 323
Grants and contnbutions - {11) - (2 5) - - (3 6}
sposals (13 1) - (58) (68 7) - - (87 6}
Transfers/reclassifications 06 236 123 303 - (66 B) -
At 31 March 2006 26513 1,1080 557 3 9701 354 999 3,036 0
Ansing on acquisitions 74 - - 513 14 - 141
Addibons 315 607 21 729 - 779 245 1
Other {note 30} - - - - 68 - 68
Grants and contnbubions - (36) - (13) - - (4 9)
Disposals {0 5) (07) - (6 2) - - {7 4)
Transfers/reclassifications 03 325 114 41 4 - (85 6) -
At 31 March 2007 304 0 1,196 9 570 8 1,082 2 43 6 92 2 32897
Deprenation
At 1 Apnl 2005 932 116 116 & 378 4 - - 600 1
Charge for year 141 132 103 636 27 - 1039
Disposals (10 2} - {5 8) (67 9) - - {83 9)
At 31 March 2006 971 248 121 4 3741 27 - 6201
Charge for year 183 151 106 68 1 31 - 1152
Dsposals 02) (o7 - (41) - - {50)
At 31 March 2007 1152 392 132 0 4381 58 - 7303
Net book value
At 31 March 2006 168 2 1,083 2 4359 596 0 327 99 9 2,4159
At 31 March 2007 188 8 1,157.7 438.8 644 1 37.8 922 2,559 4

Out of the total depreciation charge of £115 2 million (2006 £103 9 million), £1 5 milbon {2006 £1 4 million) has been charged to
capital projects and £113 7 million (2006 £102 5 mlhon) against profits

Asset lives and residual values are reviewed annually
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17 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

Assets held under finance leases included on the previous page

Fixed and
mobile plant
Land and Infrastructure Operational vehicles and Landfill Construction
butldings assets properties omputers restoratron n progress Total
£m im £m £m £m £m £m
Cost
At 31 March 2006 - 1812 3802 2612 - 841 906 7
At 31 March 2007 - 2713 3873 2771 - 523 988 0
Depreaabon
At 31 March 2006 - 35 54 6 126 5 - - 184 6
At 31 March 2007 - 65 599 137 9 - - 204 3
Net book amount
At 31 March 2006 - 1777 3256 1347 - 841 7221
At 31 March 2007 - 264.8 327.4 139.2 - 52.3 7837
Company
Fixed and
mokle plant,
vehicles and
computers
£m
Cost
At 1 Apnl 2005 03
hsposals (01)
At 31 March 2006 02
Addwons 02
Msposals {0 1)
At 31 March 2007 03
Deprecation
At 1 Apnl 2005 01
Charge for year 01
Msposals (01
At 31 March 2006 01
Charge for year 01
hsposals (01)
At 31 March 2007 01
Net book value
At 31 March 2006 01
At 31 March 2007 0.2

Asset lives and residual values are reviewed annually




18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES - NON-CURRENT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Group Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
£m £m £m £m
Amounts owed by subsidhary undertatangs - - 1701 127 4
Amounts owed by Joint ventures 5.8 28 - -
Other debtors 1.4 32 11 10
69 60 171.2 128 4
The fair values of trade and other recevables are as follows
Group Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
£m £&m £m m
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings - - 170.3 127 9
Amounts owed by joint ventures 9.2 48 - -
Other debtors 1.1 33 11 10
103 81 171.4 128 9

19. INVESTMENTS

Jont ventures

Shares Loans Total
£m m £m
Group
At 1 Apnl 2005 - - -
Acquisibions - 02 02
Additions 11 - 11
At 31 March 2006 11 02 13
Share of profit 02 - 02
Part repayment of loans - (01) {01)
At 31 March 2007 1.3 0.1 14
Subsidiary
undertaiings
£m
Company
At 1 Apnl 2005 9318
Additions 207 2
Dhsposals {195 2)
At 31 March 2006 943 8
At 31 March 2007 943.8

Betals of pnnopal subsidary and jownt venture undertalongs of the Group 2re set out 1n note 38
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19. INVESTMENTS (continued)

The Group's share of the results of its joint ventures and its share of the joint ventures” assets and labibties are

Assets Liabilities
Non-current Current Current Non-current Revenues Profit
£m £m £m £m £m £m
2006
Echo South West Limted 01 07 (09) on 49 01
Lakeside Energy from Waste
Holdings Limited 253 16 (15) (25 7) - -
254 23 (24) (25 8) 49 01
2007
Echo South West Limited 01 06 (0 8) - 52 01
Lakeside Energy from Waste
Holdings Limsted 383 28 (0 9) {36 9) 03 oz
384 34 (17 (36 9) 55 03
20 INVENTORIES
Group Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
£m £m £m im
Raw matenals and consumables 5.0 48 - -
Warkn progress 01 02 - -
5.1 50 - -
21, TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES - CURRENT
Group Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
£m £m £m £m
Trade recewables 118.0 912 - -
Less prowision for impairment of recewables {34.3) (27 6) - -
Trade receivables 837 636 - -
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertalangs - - 55.6 453
Amounts owed by joint ventures 09 11 - -
Other recewvables 32 46 0.3 03
Other prepayments and accrued 1ncome 34.7 252 01 01
122.5 94 5 56.0 457

The Directors consider that the carrpng amount of trade and other recevables approximates to their fair value

22 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Groug
2007
£m
Interest rate swaps — cash flow hedges
Assets 16.0

Company
2006 2007 2006
£m £m £
31 1.7 06

Liabibties -

(30 - -
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22 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Interest rate swaps and fixed rate borrowings are used to manage the mix of fixed and floating rates to ensure at least 50% of Group net
borrowings 1s at fixed rate At 31 March 2007 66% of Group net borrowings was at fixed rate (2006 68%)

At 31 March 2007, the Group had interest rate swaps to swap from floating to fixed rate and hedge finanaal babiihes with a notional
value of £636 0 mllion and a weighted average matunty of 3 1 years (2006 £676 0 milbon, with 3 5 years) The weighted average
nterest rate of the swaps for their nominal amount was 4 8% {2006 4 9%)

At 31 March 2007, the Company had interest rate swaps to swap from floating to fixed rate and hedge financal babbities wath a nohonal
value of £50 0 mllion and a weighted average matunty of 3 0 years (2006 £50 0 million, with 4 0 years) The weighted average interest
rate of the swaps was 4 5% (2006 4 5%)

The amounts above are the fair value of swaps based on the market value of equivalent instruments at the balance sheet date Allthe
interest rate swaps are designated and effective as cash flow hedges and the fair values have been deferred 1n equity

23. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Group Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
£m £m £m im
Cash at bank and in hand a9 77 24.1 208
Short-term bank deposits 1143 911 - 400
Other deposits 4.7 06 - -
127 9 99 4 24.1 60 8

The effective interest rate on Group short-term deposits was 5 3% (2006 4 7%) and these deposits have an average matunty of
three days

Other deposits include £4 1 milhen (2006 ml) of restncted funds to settle long-term lease labihties {note 26)

Cash and cash equivalents compnse the following for the purposes of the cash flow statement-

Group Company

2007 2006 2007 2006
£m £m im £m
Cash and cash equivalents as above 127.9 99 4 241 60 8

Bank overdrafts {note 26) (10.9) (185) - -
117.0 80¢ 24.1 60 8

Less deposits with a matunty of three months or more 47 06 - -
112.3 803 24,1 608
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24. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES - CURRENT

Group Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
£m im £ £m
Trade payables 848 938 0.1 05
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertalangs - - 14.5 141
Amounts owed to joint venture 0.3 04 - -
Other tax and sooal secunty 42.7 248 0.3 02
Other creditors 9.9 17 6 34 88
Accruals 38.2 335 1.0 16
175.9 1701 19.0 252
The Directers consider that the carrying amount of trade and other payables approximates to their fair value
25. CURRENT TAX LIABILITIES/(RECOVERABLE)
Group Company
2007 2006 2007 2005
£m £m £m £m
Corporation tax 36.5 240 (1.2} -
26. BORROWINGS
Group Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
fm fm fm £m
Current
Bank overdrafts 109 185 - -
Short-term loans 76 a1 75 -
European Investment Bank 16.3 42 - -
Unsecured loan stock notes 2.1 39 2.1 39
Amounts owed to substdiary undertakings - - 2937 279 2
3659 267 303.3 2831
Obhgations under finance leases 48.9 280 - -
85.8 54 7 303.3 2831
Non-current
Bank and other loans 350.1 3127 130.0 157 4
European Investment Bank 215.9 2322 - -
566 0 544 9 130.0 157 4
Oblbigations under finance leases 1,033.4 926 9 - -
1,599 4 1,471 8 130.0 157 4
Total borrowings 1,685 2 1,526 5 433.3 440 5

The Directors consider that the carnang amounts of current borrowings approxamate to their fair value
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26. BORROWINGS (continued)

The farr values of the non-current borrowings were

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2007 2006
Book value Fair valus Book value Fair value
£m £m £m £m
Group

Bank and other loans 3501 349.7 3127 3127
European Investment Bank 2159 2109 2322 226 9
566 0 560 6 5449 5396
Obhgations under finance leases 1,033 4 921.8 926 9 8845
1,599.4 1,482 4 14718 1,424 1

Company
Bank leans 130.0 130.0 157 4 157 4

Where market vatues are not available, fair values of borrowings have been calculated by discounting expected future cash flows at

prevailing interest rates

The exposure to interest rate changes and the repnaing dates at the balance sheet was

Group Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
£m £m £m £m
6 months or less 1,012.1 3840 138.2 159 7
6 — 12 months 450.5 140 7 1.4 16
1-5years 222.6 896 8 - -
Over 5 years - 1050 - -
1,685.2 1,526 5 139.6 161 3
The matunty of non-current borrowings was
Group Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
£m £m £m £m
Between 1 and 2 years 93.2 64 4 - -
Between 2 and 5 years 442.0 150 4 1300 157 4
Over 5 years 1,064.2 1,257 0 - -
1,599.4 1,4718 1300 157 4
The effective interest rates at the balance sheet date were
Group Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
LS % * %
Bank overdrafts 6.2 55 - -
Short-term loans 58 58 5.7 -
European Investment Bank 56 47 - -
Unsecured loan stock notes 4.8 40 48 490
Bank and other loans 53 49 5.8 50
Finance leases 4 38 - -
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25. BORROWINGS (continued)

Finance lease babihites - mmmum lease payments

Group Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
£m &m £m £m
Withwn one year 64.4 388 - -
In the second to fifth years inclusive 270.0 2191 - -
After five years 1,866.7 11,3792 - -

2,201.1 1,637 1 - -
Less future finance charges {1,118 8) {682 2) - -

1,082.3 954 9 - -

Included above are accrued finance charges ansing on obhigations under finance leases totalling £126 4 milbon (2006 £109 2 million),
of whch £36 5 milhon {2006 £23 8 million) 15 repayable within one year

Within obligations under finance leases, South West Water Limited has utibsed finance lease facilities of £180 0 million for certain water
and sewerage business property, plant and equipment that are secured by bank letters of credit1ssued by Umted Kingdom financial
institutons These letters of credit, covenng the full penod of the finance leases, are renewable between the finanaalinstitubhons and
South West Water Linmited at five-yearly intervals, the next being March 2011

Dunng the year the penod for repayment of these leases was extended wath an agreement to deposit with the lessor group amounts
equal to the difference between the onginal and revised payments due The accumulated deposits, £4 1 milon at 31 March 2007, are
being held to settle the lease hality over the penod from the end of the onginal lease term The deposits are subject to a registered
charge given as secunty to the lessor for the balance outstanding

Undrawn commtted borrowing faalites

Group Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
£m £m £m £m
Floating rate
Expinng wathin one year 120.0 500 45,0 -
Expinng after ane year 150 0 160 0 105 0 950
270.0 210 0 1500 950

In addition, the Group has short-term uncomnutted bank facihies of £90 ¢ milhon The Company has £80 0 milhon short-term
uncommitted bank facbities

27 OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Group Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
£m fm £m £€m
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings - - 8.7 87
Cther creditors 2.1 22 - -
2.1 22 8.7 87

74




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

28. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS
The Group operates a number of pensign schemes including a defined centnbution section wathin the main scheme

The assets of the Group’s pension schemes are held 1n separate trustee admimstered funds The trustees of the funds are required

to actin the best wnterest of the funds’ beneficanes The appointment of schemes’ trustees 1s determined by the schemes’ trust
documentabon The Group has a policy that one-half of all trustees other than the Chairman are nominated by members of the fund,
including current pensioners

Defined contnbution schemes
Pension costs for defined contnbution schemes were £0 8 million (2006 £0 5 million)

Defined benefit schemes
The prinaipal actuanal assumptions at the balance sheet date were

2007 2006

% %

Expected return on scheme assets 69 67
Rate of increase in pensionable pay 40 38
Rate of increase for present and future pensions 3.0 28
Rate used to discount schemes’ babihihes 5.4 5¢
Inflation 30 28

Mortabty
Assumphions regarding future mortality expenence are set based on actuanal adwice in accordance with published statistics
and expenence

The average life expectancy 1n years of a pensioner rehinng at age 62 on the balance sheet date1s projected at

2007 2006
Male 23.8 220
female 266 250

The average life expectancy in years of 2 pensioner retinng at age 62, 20 years after the balance sheet date1s projected at

2007 2006

Male 245 229

Female 27.3 258
The sensitwvities regarding the pnnapal assumphons used to measure the schemes’ halmbtes are:

Impact on

Change in schemes

assumption batnlities

Rate of ynerease 1n penstonable pay +/-0 5% +/-2 4%

Rate of increase 1n present and future pensions +/- 0 5% +/-6 0%

Rate used to discount schemes’ habties +/-05%  +/-10 0%

Inflation +/-05%  +/-10 0%

Mortality rate +/-1year +/-2 5%
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28. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (continued)

The amounts recogmsed 1n the income statement were.

Group Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
£m £m £m m
Current sennce cost (12 6} (83) {08) {0 4}
Past serice cost (08) (10) - -
Total included wathnn employment costs (13.4) (93) (08) (0 4)
Expected return on pension schemes’ assets 221 178 1.7 24
Interest cost on rebrement benefit obligations (18.4) (16 6} (1.4) {14)
Total included withn net finance costs 3.7 12 0.3 10
Total (charge)/credit 97) (81) (0.5) 06
The actual return on schemes’ assets was £23 6 mlbon (2006 £52 O mllion)
The amounts recogmsed 1n the statement of recegmsed income and expense were
Group tompany
2007 2006 2007 2006
£m £m £m £€n
Actuanal (losses)/gains recogmsed in the year {12) {28) {0 &) 07
The amounts recogmsed in the balance sheet were
Group Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
£m £m £m £m
Fair value of schemes’ assets 347.6 3175 27.0 254
Present value of defined benefit obhigations (388.8) (359 2) (30.4) (28 7)
Net babibty recogmsed 1n the balance sheet {41.2) {417 (3.4} {33)
The schemes’ assets and the expected long-term rates of return at the year end were
Expected 2007 Expected 2006
retum Value Fund retum Value Fund
% £m % % im %
Equihes g0 194.3 56 77 1985 62
Property/currency 7.8 40.2 11 77 149 5
Bonds 47 1125 33 47 916 29
Other 5.0 0.6 - 47 125 4
347.6 100 3175 100
The Company's share of the schemes’ assets at the balance sheet date were
2007 2006
£m £m
Equities 152 159
Property/currency 2.9 12
Bonds 8.9 73
Other - 10
27.0 25 4

7%
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28. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (continued)

The expected return on plan assets 1s determned by considenng the long-term returns and the balance between nsk and reward on the
vanous categones of Investment assets held Expected returns on equity and property investments reflect long-term rates of return
expenenced n the respective markets Expected yields on fixed interest investments are based on gross redemption yields as at the
balance sheet date

In conjunction wath the trustees and investment advisers, the Group has restructured its portfolio of defined benefit pension
nvestments duning the year following a review of strategy This led te a new asset allocation structure with the objective of increasing :
nvestment returns whilst reducing nsk The revised asset allocation has three main elements
- anincreased holding of bonds which are expected to be less volable than most other asset classes and are a better match for the
schemes” labihibes
~ areduchon 1n the proportion of equities, but with fund managers having more freedem 1n making nvestment deqisions to
maximse returns
- nvestment of a relatvely small proporhion of the schemes’ assets (orca 10%) 1n alternative asset classes which give the potental
for gaiming higher returns {property and currency)

Equities held by the scheme are spread between the UK (airca 55%) and international markets (airca 45%) excluding emerging markets

The Group provides retirement benefits to some of 1ts former and approxamately 54% of current employees through defined benefit
schemes The level of rerement benefit1s pnnaipally based on final annual salary earned 1n employment

The habihities of the defined benefit schemes are measured by using the projected umt credit method which 1s an accrued benefits
valuation method in which the scheme habibihes make allowance for projected earnmings

An alternative method of valuation to the projected umt credit method 1s a solvency basts which 1s estimated using the cost of buying
out benefits with a suitable insurer This amount represents the amount that would be required to settle the schemes’ habilies at the
balance sheet date rather than the Group continuing to fund the on-geing halbibes The Group esbmates the amount required to
settle the schemes” habwlities at the balance sheet date was £549 million

Movements in the balance sheet net hability were

Group Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
£m £m £m im
At 1Apnl (61 7) (79 8) (33) (6 4)
Income statement (¢ (81} {0 5) 06
Statement of recogmsed ncome and expenditure (1.2) {28} (0.4) 07
Regular contnbutions 2.8 438 - 02
Prepayment of regular contnbutions 8.6 44 2 0.8 16
At 31 March (412) “1n (34) (33)
Movements in the fair value of schemes’ assets were |
Group Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
£m £m £m £m

At 1 Apnl 3175 2238 25.4 79
Expected return on schemes’ assets 221 178 17 24
Actuanal gains 15 342 0.1 39
Members’ contnbutions 0.3 r4 - 0t
Benefits paid (13.1) (@3 (1.0) {0 7)
Group regular contnbutions 2.8 48 0.5 02
Prepayment of Group regular contnbutions 8.6 44 2 03 16
Acgwsihon of subsichary 79 - - ~
At 31 March 347.6 3175 27.0 25 4
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28. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (continued)

Movements in the present value of defined benefit obligations were

Group Company

2007 2006 2007 2006
£m £m £m £m
At1 Apnl {359 2) (303 6) (28.7) {24 3)
Serwice cost (13.4) (23) (0 8) (04)
Interest cost (18.4) (16 6) (1.4) (14)
Actuanal losses (2.7) (37 0) {0 5) (32)
Members’ contnibutions (03) (20} - (01)
Benefits paid 1341 93 10 07

Acquisiion of subsidiary (79) - - -
At 31 March (388 8) (359 2) (30.4) (28 7)

The Group's transition date to IFRS was 1 Apnl 2004 and the following histoncal data has been presented from that date The mistoncal
data will be bunlt up to a rolling five-year record over the next two years

2007 2006 2005
£m £m im

Group
Fair value of schemes’ assets 347 & 3175 2238
Present value of defined benefit obligations (388.8) {359 2} (303 6)
Net habibity recogmsed (41 2) (41 7) (79 8)
Expenence gains on schemes’ assets
Amount (E£m) 1.5 342 98
Percentage of schemes’ assets 0 4% 10 8% 4 4%
Expenence losses on defined benefit obligabons
Amount (£m} (2.7) (370) (7 9)
Percentage of defined benefit obligations (0 N% (10 3)% {2 6)%

The expenence loss in 2007 of £2 7 million includes anincrease 1n habibtes of £16.0 mulhon ansing from the use of an updated
longevity assumption for pensioners

The cumulative actuanal losses recogmsed 1n the Group statement of recogmsed income and expense at 31 March 2007 were
£2 1 milbion {2006 £0 9 mlbon)

2007 2006 2005
£m £m £m

Company

Fair value of schemes’ assets 21.0 254 17 9

Present value of defined benefit obligatons (30.4) (28 7} (24 3}

Net babihity recogmsed (34) (33} (6 4)

Expenence gawns on schemes’ assets

Amount (£m) 04 39 09

Percentage of schemes’ assets - 15 3% 5 0%

Expenence losses on defined benefit obligations

Amount (£m) {0 4) (0 3) {11}

Percentage of defined benefit obligabons {0.1)% (01)% (4 5Y%

The cumulative actuanal gains recogmsed n the Company statement of recogmised income and expense at 31 March 2007 were
£3 1 mlbhon (2006 £3 4 mlhon)
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28 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (continued)

The most recently completed tnenmal actuanal valuation of the Group’s defined benefit schemes was carned out as at 1 Apnl 2004
The Group's current senace cost has increased from 11 5% of pensionable earmings 1n 2004/05 to 21 7% 1n 2006/07 On 1 Apnl 2006
the existing schemes were closed to new entrants (replaced by a new scheme with reduced benefits) and contnbution rates for most
employees were increased from 5% to 7% In August 2005 a prepayment of Group regular pension contnbutions to March 2010 of
£44 2 mlbhon was made A further £8 6 milhon prepayment was made 1n September 2006 As a result of these prepayments no further
Group regular contnbutions are expected to be paid to the schemes duning the year ending 31 March 2008

The Group has agreed with the trustees that it wall aim to ebminate the actuanally calculated on-going funding defiat of arca

£59 milhon as at 31 March 2004 over the remaimng service hfe of scheme members, which 1s expected to be airca 13 years The Group
momtors funding levels on an annual basis and a further formal review will be undertaken followang the results of the next tnenmal
valuation, as at 1 Apnl 2007

Contnbution levels are based on the current semice costs and the expected future cash flows of the defined benefit schemes
The cash flows ansing from the payment of the defined benefits contained in the Apnl 2004 actuanal valuation are expected to be
settled from that date as shown n the graph below

Graph here

29 DEFERRED TAX
Deferred tax 1s provided 1n full on temporary differences under the hability method using a tax rate of 30% (2006 30%)

Movement on the deferred tax account were

Group Compaty

2007 2006 2007 2006
£m im fm £m
Liabibty/{asset) at 1 Apnl 302.8 2828 {1.8) (21)
Charged/(credited} to the income statement 13.3 202 0.1 (0 4)
{Credited)/charged to equity (0 4) {2 0) {0 1) 07

Ansing on acquisihons (20) 18 - -
Liabibty/{asset) at 31 March 3137 302 8 (18) {18)

Deferred tax assets have been recogmised 1n respect of all temporary differences gmng nse to deferred tax assets because 1t 1s probable
that these assets will be recovered
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29. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

All deferred tax assets and habilities are within the same Junsdichon and may be offset as perrmtted by IAS12 The movementin

deferred tax assets and habilities 1s shown below

Group
Deferved tax habilities
Accelerated Leased
tax deprenation assets Other Total
£m £m £m £m
At 1 Apnl 2005 293 4 43 214 3191
Charged/(credited) to the income statement 159 08 (21) 146
Ansing on acquisihons {32) - 53 21
At 31 March 2006 3061 51 24 6 3358
Charged/{credited) to the income statement 63 49 (21) 91
Ansing on acquisihons (2 4) - 20 {0 4)
At 31 March 2007 310.0 10.0 24.5 344 5
Deferred tax assets
Retrement
benefit
Provisions oblgations Other Total
im £m £m £m
At 1 Apnl 2005 (94) (23 9) (30) {36 3)
Charged/{credited) to the income statement 20 122 (8 6) 56
Credited to equity - (0 8) {12) 20)
Ansing on acquisibons {0 3) - - (0 3)
At 31 March 2006 {77) (12 5) (12 8) {32 0)
Charged/{credited) to the \ncome statement 04 a5 33 42
Credited to equity - {0 4) - (0 4}
Ansing on acquisittons (16) - - (16)
At 31 March 2007 {89) {12.4) (9.5} (30.8)
Net deferred tax habibty
At 31 March 2006 3028
At 31 March 2007 3137
Company
Deferred tax assets
Retsrement
benefit
chlxgations Other Tatal
fm £m £m
At 1 Apnl 2005 {19) {02 (2 13
Charged/(credited) to the income statement 07 (0 4) 03
Charged/(credited) to equity 02 (0 2) -
At 31 March 2006 {10) {0 8) (18)
Charged to the income statement 01 - 01
Credited to equity (01) - o1y
At 31 March 2007 (10) {08) {1.8)
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29 DEFERRED TAX {continued)

The deferred tax credited/(charged) to equity dunng the year was

Group Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
im m £m £€m
Actuanal gains/(losses) on defined benefit schemes 0.4 08 01 {02)
Share-based payments {note 34) - 12 - 02
0.4 20 0.1 -
30. PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES AND CHARGES
Emaronmental
and tandfll Qther Total
restoration Restryctunng Provisions. 2007
£m fm £m £€m
At 1 Apnl 2006 766 12 o2 780
Charged/(credited) to the income statement 57 {02) - 55
Ansing on acquisiions 180 - - 180
Landfiil restoratren 68 - - 68
Utilised duning year (7 8) (10) - (88)
At 31 March 2007 99 3 - 02 995

The additional landfill restorahion provision of £6 8 mlbion recogmsed 1n the year has been matched wath an addibon to property, plant
and equipment

The analysis of provisions between current and non currentis

2007 2006
£m £m

Current 132 11 4
Non-current 86.3 66 6
99.5 780

Emvironmental and landfilt restoration provisions are expected to be substantally utibsed over the penod from 2008 to beyond 2035
The provasions have been established assurmng current waste management technology based upon estimated costs at future prices which
have been discounted to present value The restructunng provision pnnapally retated to severance costs

31. SHARE CAPITAL

2007 2006
£m £€m

Authonsed

429,975,270 ordinary shares of 40 7p each 1750 -

2006 (143,325,090 ordinary shares of £1 221/10 each - 1750

131,818,190 B Shares of £1 10 each, 35,858,521 converted to Deferred Shares of £1 10 each) - 1450

Allotted, called-up and fully pad

356,123,879 ordinary shares of 40 7p each 144.9 -

2006 (118,608,847 ordinary shares of £1 221410 each - 1448

35,858,521 Deferred Shares of £1 10 each) - 394
144 9 184 2
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31 SHARE CAPITAL (continued)
Ordinary shares allotted during the year

2007 number 2006 number
Ordinary Ordinary Ovdanary Ordinary
shares of shares of shares of shares of
40 Fpeach £1 22y, each £1 22y ezch £1 11 each
In beu of £21 0 million cash under scnp dwidend alternative - - - 2,087,293

For consideration of £1 9 milbion under the Company’s
Sharesave Scheme (2006 £1 6 mllion) 1,082,338 - 5,683 314,962

Issued wn respect of share options granted - - - 116,886

For consideration of £3 5 mllion, shares purchased
and subsequently cancelled (2006 ml) (50,000)  (245,000) - -
1,032,338 (245,000) 5,683 2,519,141

On 31 July 2006 each of the Company’s 1ssued and umssued existing ordinary shares of £1 22 1/10 each were sub-dwided into three new
Ordinary shares of 40 7p each

Dunng 2006 a capital return to shareholders was made by way of the B Share Scheme amounting to £143 5 milhon, of which

£39 4 mlhon was by way of the mihal dwvidend payment and £104 1 million was through share redemption The B Shares which
received the imtiat dwadend were subsequently converted 1nto Deferred Shares, redeemed at the clase of business on 6 Apnl 2006 for
a total aggregate consideration of one pence and were then cancelled At 31 March 2006, £39 4 million of the capital return via the

B Share Scheme was outstanding and held 1n Share Capital and £5 7 million of the B Shares not redeemed until 6 Apnl 2006 were held
within other payables, note 24

On 17 February 2006 there was a consohdation of the ordinary shares of the Company whereby for every 11 existing ordinary shares of
£1 11 each held, shareholders recewed 10 new ordinary shares of £1 22110 each As a result, the number of ordinary shares 1n 1ssue was
reduced by 11,860,317

Employee share schemes

The Group operates a number of share plans for the benefit of employees Details of each plan are set out below In each table the price
and number of shares for the comparative penods has been restated to reflect the sub-division of the Company’s ordinary shares by way
of the three for one spbt on 31 July 2606

1) Sharesave Scheme

An all-employee savings related plan s operated that enables employees, including executive directors, to 1nvest up to a maximum of
£250 per month for three or five years These savings can then be used to buy ordinary shares at a pnce set at a 20% discount to the
market value at the start of the savings penod at the third, fifth or seventh anmversary of the option being granted Ophions expire six
months following the exercise date and, except for certawn speaific arcumstances such as redundancy, lapse if the employee leaves the
Group before the ophion exercise penod commences

Outstanding options to subscnbe for ordinary shares of 40 7p each under the Company’s share option schemes are

Pened when Thousands of shares w1 respect of

Date granted and ophons normally which options cutstanding at 11 March

subscniption pnice fully paxd exerasable 2007 2006

6 July 1999 275p 2002 - 2006 1 18
5 July 2000 154p 2003 ~ 2007 189 201
4 July 2001 163p 2004 — 2008 33 180
9 July 2002 189p 2005 - 2009 236 246
8 July 2003 177p 2006 - 2010 351 1,251
6 July 2004 200p 2007 - 2011 803 852
5 July 2005 270p 2008 - 2012 669 717
4 July 2006 358p 2009 - 2013 643 ~
2,925 3,465

At 31 March 2007 there were 1,145 participants in the Scheme (2006 1,121)
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31 SHARE CAPITAL (continued)
Employee share schemes (continued)

1} Sharesave Scheme (continued)

The number and weighted average exerase pnce of Sharesave options are

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2007 2006
Number of Weighted Number of Weghted
ordinary shares average exercise ardhnary shares average exerase
(thousands) price per share p {thousands) pnee pershare p
At 1 Apnl 3,465 201 3,846 180
Granted 665 358 T44 270
Exercised {1,082) 177 (963) 169
Expired (123) 248 (162} 196
At 31 March 2925 244 3,465 201

The weighted average pnce of the Company’s shares at the date of exerase of Sharesave opons dunng the year was 477p (2006 345p)
The ophons outstanding at 31 March 2007 had a weighted average exercise pnce of 244p (2006 201p) and a weighted average

remaining contractual bfe of 2 0 years (2006 2 0 years)

The aggregate fair value of Sharesave opbons granted dunng the year was £0 7 million (2006 £0 6 milhon), determined using the
Black-Scholes valuabion model The sigmficant inputs into the valuation model at the date of 1ssue of the options were

Weighted average share pnce
Weighted average exercise pnce
Expected volabhbity

Expected bfe

Risk-free rate

Expected dvadend yield

2007 2006
321p 260p
257p 208p

22.3% 23 7%

4 2years 3 Fyears
4.6% 4 5%
4.6% 52%

Expected volatlity was determined by calculating the mstoncal volatibty of the Group’s share pnce over the previous two years

) Restncted Share Plan

Under this plan Executive Directors and semor management receive a conditional award of shares 1n the Company The eventual number
of shares, 1f any, which vest 1s dependent upon the acmevement of the performance condition of the plan over the restncted penod,

being not less than three years

The number of weighted average pnce shares in the Restricted Share Plan are

2007 2006
Number of Weighted Number of Werghted
ordinary shares average sxercise ordinary shares average exeroise
({thousands) price per share p {thousands) pnce per sharep
At 1 Apnl 1,347 287 1,536 246
Granted 166 499 423 357
Vested (95) 195 (225) 213
Lapsed {120) 270 (252) 213
Share conschidation - - {135) -
At 31 March 1,498 346 1,347 287

The awards outstanding at 31 March 2007 had a weighted average pnce of 346p (2006 287p) and a weighted average remaimng
contractual bfe of 1 2 years (2006 1 7 years) The Company’s share pnce at the date of the awards ranged from 195p to 499p
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31 SHARE CAPITAL (continued)
Employee share schemes (continued)
1) Restncted Share Plan (continued)

The aggregate fair value of awards granted dunng the year was £1 0 mithon (2006 £0 9 milhen}, determined using a Monte-Carlo
simulation model The sigmficant inputs into the valuation modet at the date of the share awards were

2007 2006 |

|
Weighted average share pnce 346p 287p I
Expected volahhty 22,6% 23 6% i
Risk-free rate 4.7% 4 6%

Expected volatibity was determined by calculating the histoncal volah bty of the Group's share pnce over the previous two years

m) Incentive Bonus Plan - Deferred Shares

Awards under the plan to Executive Directors and semor management involve the release of ordinary shares in the Company to
partiapants.

The number and weighted average pnce of shares in the Incentive Bonus Plan are

2007 2006

Humber of Weighted average Number of Weighted average

ordinary exercise price ordinary exeroise pnce

shares (thousands) per share p shares (thousands) pershare p

At 1 Apnl 501 269 534 232

Granted 139 484 186 328

Vested (234) 255 (162) 217

Lapsed - - {9) 217
Share consohdation - - {48) - |

At 31 March 406 350 501 269

The awards autstanding at 31 March 2007 had a weighted average pnce of 350p (2006 269p) and a werghted average remaiing
contractual bfe of 1.4 years (2006 1 5 years) The Company’s share pnce at the date of the awards ranged from 253p to 484p

The aggregate fair value of awards granted dunng the year was £0 6 mtbon (2006 £0 6 million}, determined from market value

No option pnang 1ssues anse as dividends declared on the shares are recevable by the parbapants 1n the scheme and there 1s no
performance condition since vesting 1s usually conditional upon continuous serice with the Group for a period of three years from the
date of the award

Options granted to Directors, included above, are shown in the audited part of the Directors’ remuneration report

32 SHARE PREMIUM ACCOUNT

£m
At 1 Apnl 2005 1537
Adjustment for shares 1ssued under the scnp diwidend alternatve (2 3)
Premiwum on shares 1ssued for cash consideration 23
Ubbsed on creation of 130,463,483 B Shares of £1 10 each (143 5}
At 31 March 2006 102
Premum on shares 1ssued for cash consideration 15
At 31 March 2007 117
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33 CAPITAL REDEMPTION RESERVE

fm

At 1 Apnl 2005 -

Transferred from retained earmngs on redemption of 89,404,091 B Shares of £1 10 each 98 4
At 31 March 2006 98 4
Transferred from retaned earmngs on redemption of 5,200,871 B Shares of £1 10 each 57
35,858,521 Deferred shares cancelled 39 4
Own shares purchased and subsequently cancelled 03
At 31 March 2007 1438

34 RETAINED EARNINGS AND OTHER RESERVES

Hedqng Own Retained
reserve shares earnings Tetal
£m im £m £m
Group
At 1 Apnl 2005 - (5 9) 4191 4132
Adjustments an adophon of IAS 32/39 1 Apnl 2005 (0 9) - 95 86
Profit for the year - - 378 378
Other recogmsed 1ncome and expense for the year 10 - (20) (10)
Adjustment for shares 1ssued under the senp diidend alternative - - 210 210
Dwidends paid - - (55 1) (55 1)
Adjustment 1n respect of share-based payments - - 17 17
Deferred tax 1n respect of share-based payments - - 12 12
Own shares 1ssued to the Pennon Employee Share
Trust 1n respect of share options granted - (12) - (12}
Adjustment n respect of share options vesting - 11 (11) -
B Share payments - - (137 8) (137 8)
At 31 March 2006 01 (6 0) 294 3 288 4
Profit for year - - 939 939
Other recogmsed 1ncome and expense for the year 157 - {08) 149
Dwadends pad - - (61 0) {61 0}
Adjustment n respect of share-based payments - - 21 21
Own shares acquired by the Pennon Employee Share
Trust in respect of share options granted - (23) - 23
Adjustment 1n respect of share options vesting - 11 {11) -
B Share payments - - {57) 57
Own shares purchased and subsequently cancelled - - {3 5) (35)
At 31 March 2007 15.8 (7.2) 318.2 326.8

The own shares reserve represents the cost of ordinary shares 1n Pennon Group Ple 1ssued to or purchased in the market and held by the
Pennon Employee Share Trust to satisfy awards under the Group’s Restncted Share Plan and Incentwve Bonus Plan

Duning the year the trustees of the Pennon Employee Share Trust acquired 46,684 of the Company's ordinary shares of £1 22110 each
and 319,334 ordinary shares of 40 7p each, financed through non-interest beanng advances made by sponsonng group compames
(2006 117,000 ordinary shares of £1 11 each)

The market value of the 1,980,000 ordinary shares of 40 7p each (2006 616,000 ordinary shares of £1 221/10 each) held by the trust at
31 March 2007 was £11 6 million {2006 £8 3 milhon)
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34. RETAINED EARNINGS AND OTHER RESERVES {continued)

Hedging Retaned
reserve £armings Total
£m £m £m

Company
At 1 Apnl 2005 - 366 3 366 3
Adjustments on adophion of IAS 32/39 1 Apnl 2005 - - -
Profit for the year - 214 9 214 9
Other recogmsed income and expense for the year 06 05 11
Adjustment for sharesssued under the scnp dividend alternative - 210 21Q
Dwidends pad - (55 1) (55 1)
Adjustment 1n respect of share-based payments - 04 04
Deferred tax in respect of share-based payments - 02 02
Adjustment 1n respect of share options vesting - (03) {0 3)
B Share payments - (137 8) (137 8)
At 31 March 2006 06 4101 4107
Profit for the year - 938 93 8
Other recogmsed 1ncome and expense for the year 11 {0 3) 08
Dwidends paid - (610} (61 0)
Adjustment n respect of share-based payments - 05 05
Adjustment in respect of share options vesting - (0 4) (0 4)
B Share payments - {(57) (57)
Own shares purchased and subsequently cancelled - {3 5} (3 5)
At 31 March 2007 17 433.5 435.2

The B Share payments of £137 8 mlbon in 2006 compnse £98 4 milhon for shares redeemed and £39 4 mllion for amounts paid

as dwidend
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35. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Reconaibation of profit for the year to cash generated from operations

Cash generated from operations

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Group Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
£m £m £m £m
Continuing operahions
Profit for the year 93.9 378 93.8 214 9
Adjustments for
Employee share schemes 21 17 0.5 04
Deferred income released to profits - {03) - -
Profit on disposal of property, ptant and equipment (2 6) {11) - -
Profit on dispesal of investment (0.6) - - -
Depremation charge 113.7 102 & 01 01
Amortisation of intangible assets 18 16 - -
Share of post-tax profit from joint venture (03) {01} - -
Interest payable and sinlar charges 98.3 147 0 99 233
Interest recewable {291) (40 4) (16.1) (5 1)
Dwidends recevable - - (90.1) (212 3)
Taxation 37.2 16 3 12 {10)
Changes 1n working capital {excluding the effect of acquisihon of subsidianes)
Increase 1n inventones (01) (03) - -
(Increase)/decrease 1n trade and other recewvables (20.7) 20 (53.4) 100 2
Increase/{decrease) n trade and other payables 169 84 (0.4) 54
Increase/{decrease) 1n retirement benefit oblgations 20 (39 7) - (14)
Decrease in provisions for habihes and charges (7 4) {3 3) - -
Cash generated/{outflow) from operations 305.1 2321 (54.5) 104 5
36 NET BORROWINGS
Group Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
£m £m £m im
Cash and cash equivalents 127 9 99 4 241 60 8
Borrowmngs — current
Bank overdrafts {10.9) (18 5) - -
Other current borrowings (26.0) (82) (9 6) (39)
Finance lease obhgations (48.9) (28 0) - -
Amounts owed to subsichary undertakings - - (293.7) (279 2}
Total current borrowangs {85.8) {54 7} (303.3) (283 1}
Borrowings — non current
Bank and other loans (350.1) {312 7) (130 0) {157 4)
Other non-current borrowings (215.9) {232 2) - -
Finance lease obhigations (1,033.4) {926 9) - -
Total non-current borrowings (1,599 4) (1,471 8) (130.0) (157 4)
Total net borrowtngs {1,557 3) (1.4271) (409.2) (3197}
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37 ACQUISITIONS

On 13 May 2006 the entire 1ssued share capital of Wyvern Waste Services Limted, (now renamed Vindor Waste (Somerset) Limted),
was purchased by Vindor Waste Management Limted for a cash consideration of £25 4 milhion, including costs of £0 4 million
The acquisition has been accounted for using the acquisihon method

Vindor Waste (Somerset) Limited contnbuted revenues of £26 7 mithon and net profit of £2 8 mlhon for the penod from 13 May 2006
to 31 March 2007 If the acquisition had occurred on 1 Apnl 2006 Group revenues for the year would have been £29 3 milhon and
profit for the year would have been £3 3 milhon These amounts have been calculated after applying the Group’s accounting polhicies,
adjusting the results to reflect the fair value adjustments as 1f they had applied from 1 Apnt 2006 and include the costs of integrating
the acquisibon with the exisbing business

Allintangibte assets have been recogmised at their respective fair values The residual excess over the net assets acquired has been
recogmsed as goodwill The goodwili1s attnbuted to the profitability of the acquired business and the antcipated future operating
synergies ansing from the combination

Book Fair value Fanr
value adjustment value
£m fm £m
Otherintangible assets - 36 306
Property, plant and equpment 14 3 {2 9) 114
Recewables 59 - 59
Payables (4 2) - (4 2)
Prowisions — environmental (8 2) {9 8} (18 0)
Taxahon - current (0 4) - {0 4)
Taxation — deferred 16 07 23
Cash and cash equivalents 30 - 30
Net assets acqured 120 (8 4} 36
Goodwll 218
Total consideration 254
Satisfied by
Cash 250
Directly attnbutable costs 04
25 4
Net cash outflow ansing on acquisition
Cash consideration 25 4
Cash and cash equavalents acquired (30)
22 4

The intangible assets acquired as part of the acquisition relate to customer contracts
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37 ACQUISITIONS (continued)

0On 13 February 2007 the entire 1ssued share capital of Skipaway Holdings Limited, {now renamed Vindor Waste (Medway) Limited),
was purchased by Vindor Waste Management Lirmted for a cash consideration of £15 1 malbion, including costs of £0 4 million
The acquisiton has been accounted for using the acquisiton method

Vindor Waste (Medway) Limted contnbuted revenues of £1 9 milhon and net loss of £0 6 million for the penod from 13 February 2007
to 31 March 2007 If the acqusition had occurred on 1 Apnl 2006 Group revenues for the year woutd have been £16 5 milhon and profit
for the year would have been ml These amounts have been calculated after applying the Group’s accounting pelicies, adjusting the
results to reflect the fair value adjustments asif they had applbed from 1 Apnl 2006 and include the costs of integrating the acquisition
with the existing business

Allntangible assets have been recogmsed at their respective provisional fair values. The restdual excess over the net assets acquired
has been recogrised as goodwiil The provisional goodwll s attnbuted to the profitability of the acquired business and the anticipated
future operating synergies ansing from the combination

Book Fair value Provisional
value adjustment Rairvalue
im fm £m
Other intangible assets 02 01 03
Property, plant and equipment 27 - 27
Recewvables 22 - 22
Payables (2 6) - (2 6)
Taxation — current (02) - 02
Taxation — deferred {03) - (03)
Finance leases {14) - (14)
Cash and cash equivalents 05 - 05
Net assets acquired 11 01 12
Goadwill 139
Total consideration 151
Satisfied by
Cash 147
Directly attnbutable costs 04
151
Net cash outflow ansing on acquisition
Cash considerabon 151
Cash and cash equivalents acquired {0 5}
14 6

The intangible assets acquired as part of the acqusition relate to customer contracts
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38 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARY AND JOINT VENTURE UNDERTAKINGS AT 31 MARCH 2007

Country of incorporation, registration and pnncipal operations
Water and sewerage

South West Water Limited* England
Pemnsula Leasing Limited England
Pemnsula Properties (Exeter) Limited England
South West Water Finance Plc England

Waste management

Vindor Limited* England
Vindor Waste Limted England

Vindor Waste Disposal Linmted England
Vindor Waste Exeter Limited England
Dragon Waste Limted England
Vindor Waste Management Limited England
Vindor EnviroScot Limited Scotland
Vindor Glass Recycling Limited England
Vindor Parkwood Holdings Limited Bntish Vargin Islands
Parkwood Group Limited England

Vindor Waste (Bristol Holdings) Limited England
Vindor Waste {Bnstol) Liited England

Vindor Waste Kent Linnted England
Vindor Waste (Landfill Restoration} Limited Engtand
Vindor Waste (Medway) Holdings Limited England
Vindor Waste (Somerset) Liited England
Vindor Waste (Thames) Limted England
Vindor Waste (Suffolk) Limted England
Vindor Waste (West Sussex) Limited England

Other

Pemnsula Insurance Limted* Guernsey

Peminsula Water Limited* England

* Indicates the shares are held directly by Pennon Group Plc, the Company
t Operations are carred out m England

Dunng the year South West Water Finance Plc was established

All shares tnissue are ordinary shares The subsidiary undertakings are wholly-owned, except Dragon Waste Limited where 81% of the
ordinary shares are held by Vindor Waste Lirmted ALl compames above are consobdated 1 the Group finanaal statements

Joint ventures
Both joint ventures and the subsidiary undertakings of Lakeside Energy from Waste Holdings Limited are incorporated and registered
n England which s also their country of operation

Share capital 1n 1ssue Percentage held Actity

Echo South West Limited 100,000 A Ordinary shares 100% Customer contact management
100,000 B Orchnary shares -

Shares 1n Echo South West Limited are held by South West Water Limited

Lakeside Energy from Waste Holdings Limited 1,000,000 A Orcinary shares -
1,000,000 B Ordnary shares 100%
Lakeside Energy from Waste Limited Waste management
Lakeside Energy Limted Waste management

Shares 1n Lakeside Energy from Waste Holdings Limted are held by Vindor Waste Management Limited
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39 OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS - MINIMUM LEASE PAYMENTS

Group Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
£m £m £m £m
Commetments under non-cancellable operating leases expinng

Within one year 5.6 4 4 - -
Later than one year and less than five years 16.0 121 - -
After five years 798 701 - -
101.4 866 - -

The Group leases vanous offices, depots and workshops under non-cancellable operabng lease agreements The leases have vanous
terms, escalabon clauses and renewal nghts Property leases are negotiated for an average term of 25 years and rentals are reviewed on

average at five yearly mntervals

The Group also leases plant and machinery under non-cancellable operating lease agreements

40. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Group Company
2007 2005 2007 2006
£m £m £m £m
Guarantees

Borrowing facbties of subsidary undertakings - - 3220 657 ¢
Performance bonds 81.6 808 81.6 8038

Letters of credit 5.1 76 - -
Other 6.9 69 6.9 69
93 6 953 410.5 745 6

Guarantees in respect of performance bonds are entered 1nto in the normal course of business No hahibty 1s expected to anse 1n respect
of the guarantees

The guarantee nt respect of letters of credit has been gven by Vindor Waste Limited in support of the borrowings of the joint venture of
Vindor Waste Management Limited, Lakeside Energy from Waste Holdings Linited In addihon, Vindor Waste Management Limited has
given a commitment to supply 200,000 tonnes of waste per annum {or pay market prnice based compensation) to the energy from waste
plant of the joint venture The plant s expected to be commissioned dunng the financial year 2008/09 The Directors consider that the
committed waste volume will be available 1n the ordinary course of business

Other contingent habibibes relate to a possible obhigation to pay further consideration in respect of a previously acquired business when
the outcome of planning applications 1s known

41, CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Group Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
£m im £m £m
Contracted but not provided 71.7 66 6 - -
Share of commitment contracted but not provided by joint venture 417 64 2 - -
113 4 1308 - -
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42 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Dunng the year, Group compames entered mto the following transachons with related parties who are not members of the Group

2007 2006
£m £m
Sales of goods and services
Echo South West Limted 2.6 25
Purchase of goods and senices
Echo South West Limted 9.5 90
Year end balances
2007 2006
£m £m
Recervables due from related parties (notes 18 and 21)
Echo South West Limited 0.9 12
Lakeside Energy from Waste Lymted 5.8 27
6.7 39
Payables due to related parties (note 24)
Echo South West Limted 0.3 04

All amounts relate to trading balances except £5 5 milhon of loans included within recervables due for repayment in instalments

between 2009 and 2030 Interest1s charged at 6% until 2008 then 15% thereafter

Company
The following transactions with subsidiary undertakings occurred 1n the year

2007

2066

£m m
Sales of goods and serices (management fees) 65 57
Purchase of goods and services (support services) 0.5 05
Interest recewable (loans) 12.3 20 4
Interest payable (short-term funding} 0.6 12
Dmndends receved 90 1 2123

Sales of goods and sennces to subsidiary undertakings are at cost Purchases of goods and sennces from subsidiary undertakings are

under normal commercial terms and conditions that would also be available to unrelated third parbies

Year end balances
Recewvables due from subsidrary underfakings (notes 18 and 21)

2007 2006

£m £m

Loans 224.7 169 8
Trading balances 03 24

Interest on £119 9 million of the loans 15 charged at a fixed rate of 6 0% (2006 £84 ¢ million, 6 0%) Interest on the balance of the
loans 15 charged at Barclays Bank PLC base rate +1% (2006 Barclays Bank PLC base rate +1%) The loans are repayable 1n instalments
over the penod 2008 to 2012 Dunng the year £0 2 milbon (2006 £0 1 milhon) was prowided 1n respect of loans to subsidianes not
expected to be repaid
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42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

2007 2006
£m £m

Payabiles due to subsidiary undertakings (notes 24, 26 and 27)
Loans 2937 2192
Trading balances 23.2 228

The loans from subsidiary undertakings are unsecured and 1nterest free without any terms for repayment

43. EXPLANATION OF TRANSITION TO IFRS BY THE COMPANY

Pennon Group Plc, the Company, reported under UK GAAP 1n1ts previously published finanaial statements for the year ended 31 March
2006 The date of transition to IFRS for the Company was 1 Apnl 2005

The transition to IFRS did not result in any change to net assets from that previously reported under UK GAAP The only presentational
'mpact on assets and habwhibes was as a result of 1AS19, "Employee Benefits,” 1n respect of the treatment of the deferred tax asset on
the retirement benefit obligation Under UK GAAP, FRS17 “Retirement benefits,” the pension deficit was shown net of the deferred tax
asset Under IAS19 the retirement benefit obligation 1s shown gross and the related deferred tax assetisncluded as part of other
deferred tax assets or habhities

The restatements of the balance sheet at 31 March are

2006 2005
£m im

Deferred tax asset

Reported under UK GAAP 08 0z

IAS 19 Pensions 10 19

Reported under IFRS 18 21

Retirement benefit obligations

Reported under UK GAAP (23) (4 5)

IAS 19 Pensions (1 0) (19

Reported under IFRS (33) {6 4)

Simlarly, 1n the )ncome statement the change n the deferred tax asset related to the pension defioit 1s part of tax on ordinary actwibes other thann
respect of any actuanal loss or gain which s included within the statement of recogmsed income and expense

The restatements of the profit for the year and net gains not recogmsed directly in the income statement for the year ended 31 March 2006 are

2006
£m

Profit for the year

Reported under UK GAAP 215 6

IAS 19 Pensions on

Reported under IFRS 214 ¢

Net gams not recogrised directly in the income statement

Reported under UK GAAP (02)

IAS 19 Pensions 07

Reported under IFRS 05
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

IFRS IFRS IFRS UK GAAP UK GAAP
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
£m £m im tm tm
Income statement
Revenue 748.3 645 7 5514 4713 417 2
Qperating profit before excepticnal items 200.0 1751 1509 136 3 127 0
Net interest payable (69.2) (106 6) (620) (57 2) (52 1)
Share of profit/(loss} injoint ventures 0.3 01 01 {03) {7
Profit before tax and exceptional tems 131.1 110 9 890 7188 742
Net excephonal items before tax - {56 8) 01 (6 5) -
Taxation (37.2) {16 3) (235) (10 8) (17 1)
Profit for the year 93.9 78 656 615 571
Dmdends proposed 66.0 610 551 511 144 3
Earmings per share {basic)
From continuing operations
Before exceptionalitems and deferred tax 30.3p 25 2p 21 4p 19 2p 18 3p
Exceptionalitems - (10 0)p (13)p (1 7p -
Deferred tax (3.8)p (5 3)p (4 1)p {0 9)p (35)p
After exceptionalitems and deferred tax 26 5p 99p 16 Op 16 6p 14 8p
Declared diwdend per share 18.55p 17 2p 14 3p 13 8p 13 1p*

Earmings per share and dmidend per share for March 2006 and earlier years have been restated to reflect the sub-division of the
Company’s ordinary shares by way of a three for one split on 31 July 2006

*Excluding speaal intenm dwidend of 23 3p per share

Capital expenditure

Acquisihons 37.0 458 308 198 418
Property, plant and equipment 245.1 249 7 1810 170 0 204 6
Balance sheet

Non-current assets 2,709 8 2,527 5 2,2922 2,191 3 2,084 6
Net current (habbbies)/assets (39 9) (61 2) 1931 759 17 5
Non-current habihties (2,042.7) (1,885 1) (1,776 4) (1,367 6) (1,213 3)
Net assets 627.2 5812 708 9 899 6 888 8

Number of employees (average for year)

Water and sewerage business 1,301 1,299 1,336 1,341 1,343
Waste management 1,686 1,388 1,169 895 685
Qther businesses 38 35 39 39 35

3,025 2,122 2,544 2,275 2,063

Information pnor to 31 March 2004 was reported under UK GAAP which may differ matenally from IFRS The main differences
relate to the treatment of infrastructure assets, retrement benefits, goodwill and intangibles, deferred tax, dwidends payable
and financal instruments
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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

FINANCIAL CALENDAR
Financal year end 31 March
Exghteenth Annual General Meeting 26 July 2007
2007 Final dwidend payable 2 October 2007
2007 Half yearly financial report announcement November 2007
2008 Intenm dwidend payable Apnl 2008
2008 Prelimnary results announcement May 2008
Nineteenth Annual General Meeting July 2008
2008 Final dwadend payable October 2008

SHAREHOLDER ANALYSIS AT 31 MARCH 2007

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDINGS

At 13 June 2007, the following interests in the
1ssued share capital had been notfied pursuant to
the Financial Senices Authonty’s Disclosure and
Transparency Rules

Amenpnse Finanaal Inc 12 58%
Pictet Asset Management SA 7 19%
AXA SA andits Group compames 5 49%
Prudentyal Plc group of compames 5 00%
Legal & General Group plc 3 56%
Standard bife Investments Ltd 352%
Lansdowne Partners Ltd 323%

Number of Percentage of Percentage of
Range shareholders total shargholders ertinary shares
1-100 2,290 10 06 002
101 ~ 1,000 8,932 3925 125
1,001-5,000 9,913 43 56 587
5,001 -50,000 1,308 575 395
50,001 - 100,000 80 035 158
100,001 ~ HIGHEST 235 103 87 33
22,758 100 0 1000
Holder
Indmaduals 20,514 90 14 847
Compames 175 077 258
Trust compamies (pension funds, etc) 2 om -
Banks and nominees 2,067 908 88 95
22,758 100 0 1000

Further shareholder information
may be found at.

WWW. pennon-group.co.uk
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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

SHAREHOLDER SERVICES

Share dealing service

The low-cost share dealing senvice offered by Stocktrade enables
shareholders to buy and sell shares in the Company on a low-
cost basis and to make regular investments 1n the Company
Telephone Stocktrade on 0845 601 0995 and quote LOW
0107 Commissian1s 0 5% (subyect to a mammurm charge of
£15) to £10,000, then 0 2% thereafter

Share qift service

Through Shareqift, an independent chanty share donation
scheme, shareholders who only have a small number of shares
with a value that makes 1t uneconomical to sell them, can
donate such shares to chanty Donations can be made by
completion of a simple share transfer form which 1s available
from Lloyds TSB Registrars

Indwidual Savings Accounts

By holding thenr shares n the Company in a Mim or a Maxy
Indwrdual Savings Account (ISA), shareholders may gan
tax advantages The corporate ISA 1s admimstered by Lloyds
TSB Registrars

Dividend re-investment plan

The Company 1s operating a Dnadend Re-investment Plan

The plan provides Shareholders with the opportumty to invest
the whole of the cash dvidend they receive on their Pennon
Group shares to buy further shares 1n the Company at favourable
commission rates Full details of the Plan, including how to
join, will be sent out to sharehelders on 24 August 2007.

Details of the above shareholder services are available from the
Company Secretary's Department, telephone 01392 443024

Online portfolio serice

The online portfolio service provided by Lloyds TSB Reqistrars
gives shareholders access to more information on thewr
nvestments Details of the portfobo sernice are available
from Ltoyds TSB Registrars ontime at www shareview co uk

Pennon Group Plc

Registered office

Peminsula House, Rydon Lane, Exeter EX2 7HR
Registered 1n England No 2366640

%%

Electronic communications

Shareholders can elect to receive shareholder commumcations
electromezlly by sigmng up through www shareview co uk - a
website operated by Lloyds TSB Registrars Shareholders need
only their ‘shareholder reference’ pnnted on the proxy form
enclosed with this Annual Report There1s no charge to reqister
and shareholders will also have access to informahon about
their shareholding

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The 2007 Annual General Meeting will be held on Thursday
26 July 2007 Further detanls are set out 1n the Notice of
Annual General Meeting sent to all shareholders

Appownting a proxy

A Form of Proxy 1s enclosed with the Notice of Annual General
Meeting and instructions for 1ts use are shown on the form

Electronic proxy voting

Shareholders also have the opportumty to register the
appointment of a proxy for any general meeting of the
Company once notice of the meeting has been gwven and
may do so for the 2007 Annual General Meeting and any
adjournment(s) thereof via www sharevote co vk - a website
operated by Lloyds TSB Reqistrars

Electromc proxy appoyntment through CREST

CREST members who wish to appoint a proxy or proxies through
the CREST electromc proxy appointment senace may do so for the
2007 Annual General Meeting and any adjournment(s) thereof by
following the procedures descnbed n the CREST manual

THE PENNON WEBSITE

The Pennon website at www pennon-group co uk provides news
and details of the Company's actmities plus bnks to Group
websites The investor information sechion contans up-to-date
nformabon including dwidend payment dates and amounts

It also holds mstoncal details and a comprehensive share pnce
wnformation sechion

Visit www pennon-group co uk




